
 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Crockett Convener; and Councillors Donnelly, Kiddie, Laing, Malone, 

May, Noble, Reynolds and Young 

 

 
Town House, ABERDEEN  

14th November 2014 
 
 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the PENSIONS COMMITTEE are requested to meet on 
MONDAY, 24 NOVEMBER 2014 at 10.00 am in COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - TOWN HOUSE 
 
 

 
 
 

 
JANE G. MACEACHRAN 

HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 

B U S I N E S S 

 

1 Exempt Business   

 Members are requested to resolved that any exempt business on this Agenda be 
considered with the press and public excluded. 
 

2 Apologies for Absence   

 

 3a   Minute of the Special Meeting of the Pensions Panel held on 30th June 
2014 - For Approval  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

 3b   Minute of the Meeting of the Pensions Panel held on 8th September 2014 - 
For Approval  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

4 Matters Arising   

 

5 Draft Minute of the Meeting of the Joint Investment Advisory Committee held on 
28th & 29th August 2014 - For Information  (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

6 Report on the 2013/14 Audit of North East Scotland Pension Fund - Report by the 
External Auditor  (Pages 15 - 40) 
 

7 New Local Government Pensions Scheme (Scotland) (2015)  (Pages 41 - 64) 
 

8 Corporate Governance Report  (Pages 65 - 106) 
 

 NOT FOR PUBLICATION 

 

9 Governance Report  (Pages 107 - 118) 
 

10 Fund Performance Report  (Pages 119 - 140) 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Fiona 
Smith, tel 522516 or email fismith@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 
 



 

 

 ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

PENSIONS PANEL 
 

ABERDEEN, 30th June 2014 – Minute of Meeting of the PENSIONS PANEL.   
 
Present Councillor B Crockett, Convener, Councillor A Donnelly, 

Councillor J Noble and Cllr J Reynolds.  
 
In Attendance Mr S Whyte, Head of Finance, Ms A Mollison, Legal 

Manager, Ms L Goodchild, Pensions Manager, Ms A 
MacDonald, External Audit and Ms F Smith, Governance 
Support Officer.  

 
 
EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
1.   The Panel was requested to determine that the following items of business, 

which contained exempt information as described in Schedule 7(A) of the 
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, be taken in private:- 

 
3) Admitted  

  
The Panel resolved:- 
In terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to 
exclude the press and public from the meeting during consideration of item 3 so 
as to avoid disclosure of exempt information of the classes described in 
paragraph 12. 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
2. Apologies for absence were noted from Cllr A Malone.   
 
The Panel resolved: 
To note the apologies received. 
 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board 
resolved that in terms of Section 50A (4) of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973 that the public be excluded from the meeting 
during the consideration on the items on the grounds that it was 
likely in view of the nature of proceedings that if members of the 
public were present during the consideration of these items that there 
would be a disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 8 & 12 of part 1 of Schedule 7A of the said Act. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 3a

Page 1



 

 

ADMITTED BODIES 
 
3. Councillor Donnelly declared an interest in part this item as a result of 

his role as Trustee of Oakbank School.  He considered that the nature 
of his interest required him to withdraw from the meeting, which he 
did for the part of this item relating to Fund Employers being 
considered. 

 
The Panel received a verbal update in respect of on-going litigation from 
the Legal Manager.  Following this update there followed an opportunity for 
Members to raise any questions and thereafter a detailed discussion on the 
update was held.  
 
The Committee approved the recommendation made by officers that 
discussion around the settlement of the action take place and that the 
litigation be paused to enable this to occur.  

 
The Panel Resolved: 
To agree that discussion around the settlement of the action take place and that 
the litigation be paused to enable this to occur.. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR B CROCKETT  - Convenor 

Page 2



 

 

 ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

PENSIONS PANEL 
 

ABERDEEN, 8th September 2014 – Minute of Meeting of the PENSIONS PANEL.   
 
Present Councillor B Crockett, Convener, Councillor A Donnelly, 

Councillor A Malone, Councillor J Noble and Cllr J Reynolds.  
 
In Attendance Mr S Whyte, Head of Finance, Ms J MacEachran, Head of 

Legal & Democratic Services, Ms L Goodchild, Pensions 
Manager, Mr S Boyle, External Audit, Ms A MacDonald, 
External Audit and Ms F Smith, Governance Support Officer.  

 
 
EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
1.   The Panel was requested to determine that the following items of business, 

which contained exempt information as described in Schedule 7(A) of the 
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, be taken in private:- 

 
11) Governance Report 
12) Investment & Accounting Report 
13) Aberdeen City Council Transport Fund Report 
  

The Panel resolved:- 
In terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to 
exclude the press and public from the meeting during consideration of items 11 - 
13 so as to avoid disclosure of exempt information of the classes described in 
paragraph 8 (Items 12 & 13) and paragraph 12 (Item 11). 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
2. There were no apologies for absence received. 
 
 
 
MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE PENSIONS PANEL HELD ON 16TH JUNE 2014 
 
3. The Panel had before it, and approved as a correct record, the Minute of 

the Pensions Panel meeting of 16th June 2014. 
 
The Panel resolved: 
To approve the minute. 
 

 

 
MATTERS ARISING 
 
5. There were no matters arising 

Agenda Item 3b

Page 3



 

 

ADMINISTRATION AND TECHNICAL & COMMUNICATIONS 
 
6. The Principal Pensions Officer (Benefits) and the Principal Pensions Officer 

(Technical & Communications) were present at the meeting for this item 
and provided a presentation detailing the role and systems used by both 
teams. 

 
Thereafter, the Panel had before it a report from the Head of Finance which 
provided an overview of the administration of the scheme by the Pensions 
Section. 

 
The Pensions Manager introduced the report and advised that the report 
contained a summary of activity over the three reporting areas namely: 
Benefit Administration; Technical & Communication matters and 
Administration Performance statistics. 
 

The Panel Resolved: 
To note the report. 
 
 
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUNDS - REPORT TO THOSE 
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE ON THE 2013/14 AUDIT 
 
7. The Panel had before it a report from the External Auditor which set out, for 

the Pensions Panel consideration, the matters arising from the audit of the 
financial statements for 2013/14 that require to be reported to the Panel 
under ISA 260. 

 
 The External Auditor introduced the report and advised that ISA 260 

requires auditors to raise specific matters arising from the audit of the 
financial statements to those changed with governance of a body in 
sufficient time to enable appropriate action to be taken. 

 
 Thereafter the report detailed the matters which required to be reported, 

these being: conduct and scope of the audit, fraud and audit opinion and 
representations.  The report further details the significant findings from the 
audit and the resolutions identified for each finding. 

 
The Panel Resolved: 
To note the report. 
 
 
NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUNDS – INTERIM REPORT 2013/14 
AUDIT 
 
8. The Panel had before it a report from the External Auditor which provided a 

summary of the findings of the audit work carried out in the period to June 
2014 as part of the 2013/14 audit of North East Scotland Pension Funds. 

 
 The External Auditor introduced the report and advised that the audit work 

conducted covered the areas of Governance and Accountability and Key 

Page 4



 

 

Financial Controls.  The report set out an action plan which detailed the 
high level risks that were identified in the audit and the steps being taken 
by officers in addressing these.  The report noted that the majority of 
actions have been completed with only three outstanding. 

 
The Panel resolved: 
To note the report. 
 
 
NEW LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (SCOTLAND) 2015 
 
9. The Panel had before it a report from the Head of Finance which provided 

an update on the progress made in implementing the new Local 
Government Pension Scheme. 

 
 The Pensions Manager introduced the report and provided an overview of 

the content to Members.  It was noted that the new LGPS (Scotland) will 
take effect from 1st April 2015 and will replace the existing scheme.  The 
report provided updates in respect of the Head of Agreement, the New 
Scheme Implementation Project and a Project Plan update. 

 
The Panel resolved: 
To note the report. 
 
 
ADMITTED BODY STATUS – SANCTUARY HOUSING AND SANCTUARY 
SCOTLAND 
 
10. The Panel had before it a report from the Head of Finance which notified of 

an application from Sanctuary Group for admitted body status for 
Sanctuary Scotland.  

 
 The Pensions Manager introduced the report and advised of the application 

received and advised that the Scheme Actuary is currently assessing the 
bond requirement.   

 
The Panel resolved: 
- To admit Sanctuary Scotland into the North East Scotland Pension Fund, 

transferring existing staff employed by Tenant First Housing Co-operative. 
- To otherwise note the report. 
 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board 
resolved that in terms of Section 50A (4) of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973 that the public be excluded from the meeting 
during the consideration on the items on the grounds that it was 
likely in view of the nature of proceedings that if members of the 
public were present during the consideration of these items that there 

Page 5



 

 

would be a disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 8 & 12 of part 1 of Schedule 7A of the said Act. 

 
 
 
GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
11. Councillor Donnelly declared an interest in part this item as a result of 

his role as Trustee of Oakbank School.  He considered that the nature 
of his interest required him to withdraw from the meeting, which he 
did for the part of this item relating to Fund Employers being 
considered. 

 
The Panel had before it a report from the Head of Finance which provided 
an update to Member on the Fund’s compliance with the Pensions Fund’s 
Governance policies. 

 
 The Pensions Manager introduced the report and advised that it provided 

an overview in respect of the funds governance.  The report set out 
recommendations in respect of the tendering for an Investment Consultant 
and summarised and issues relating to admitted bodies.  The report further 
provided a Funding update as at 30th June 2014 and outlined current and 
future training and conference opportunities. 

 
The Panel Resolved: 
- To approve the tendering of Investment Consultant services 
- To otherwise note the report. 
 
 
INVESTMENT AND ACCOUNTING REPORT 
 
12. The Panel had before it a report from the Head of Finance which provided 

an update in respect of the investment activity of the Fund to 30th June 
2014. 

 
The Pensions Manager introduced the report and advised that it provided 
an overview of investment performance and asset allocation for the 
preceding quarter.  Further the report outlined an updated debtors analysis 
and details of current termination valuations provided.   

 
The Panel resolved: 
- To approve the tendering of Global Custody services 
- To otherwise note the report. 
 
 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL TRANSPORT FUND 
 
13. The Panel had before it a report from the Head of Finance which advised of 

the outcome of the de-risking tender exercise for the Aberdeen City Council 
Transport Fund. 

 

Page 6



 

 

 The Pensions Manager introduced the report and provided an overview of 
the outcome of the tender exercise. 

 
The Panel Resolved: 
To approve the making of an investment management agreement in respect of a 
long term de-risking strategy for the Aberdeen City Transport Fund. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR B CROCKETT  - Convenor 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
 

JOINT INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

ABERDEEN, 28th August and 29th August 2014 – Minute of Meeting of the JOINT 
INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE.   
 
Present Councillor B Crockett, Convener, Councillor Richard Cowling, 

Vice Convener, Councillor S Lonchay, Councillor A Malone, 
Cllr J Reynolds, Mr M McCall, Mr M Middleton and Mr A 
Williams. 

 
In Attendance Ms L Goodchild, Pensions Manager, Ms C Mann, Pensions 

Officer (investments), Mr J Belford, Corporate Accounting 
Manager (28th August 2014 only), Ms J Hope, Pensions 
Adviser (29th August 2014 only), Ms D Sim, External Audit, 
and Ms F Smith, Policy & Advice Officer.  

 
  

 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
1. Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Bews, Cllr Coull, Cllr 

Leadbitter and Mr Scott.   
 
 
THURSDAY 28TH AUGUST 2014 
 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
2. There were no declarations of interest made. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING – 30TH MAY 2014 
 
3. The minute of the previous meeting held on 30th May 2014 was approved 

as a correct record. 
 
The Committee Resolved: 
To approve the minute. 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS PANEL MEETINGS DATED 10TH MARCH 2014 
 
4. The Committee noted for information the minutes of the Pension Panel 
 meeting held on 10th March 2014. 
 
The Committee Resolved 
To note the minutes. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



 

 

 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
5. The Committee had before it a report from the Chief Accountant which 

reviewed the Pensions Fund Corporate Governance and Social 
Responsible Investment activity for the three month period ending 30th 
June 2014. 

 
 The Pensions Officer (Investments) introduced the report and summarised 

the contents of it.  The report provided an overview of voting over the past 
quarter where the fund has participated in votes at 148 meetings.  The 
most contentious areas voted on included remuneration reports, annual 
reports and auditor appointments.  The report further gave an overview of 
the current business of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF).  
Finally the report provided detail on investment statement to which the 
Fund has added its name during the quarter to June 2014, including a 
statement on Investment in Bangladesh and a letter to the US Securities 
and Exchange Commission from the Forum for Sustainable and 
Responsible Investment. 

 
The Committee Resolved: 
To note the report. 
 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board 
resolved that in terms of Section 50A (4) of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973 that the public be excluded from the meeting 
during the consideration on the items on the grounds that it was 
likely in view of the nature of proceedings that if members of the 
public were present during the consideration of these items that there 
would be a disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 6 of part 1 of Schedule 7A of the said Act. 

 
 
 
FUND PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
6. The Committee had before it a report which provided a review of the 

investment activity of both the North East Scotland Pension and Transport 
funds for the three month period ending 30th June 2014. 

 
 The Pensions Manager introduced the report and provided an overview of 
 the contents of it.  There followed an opportunity for discussion on the 
 contents by Committee members. 
 
The Committee Resolved: 
To note the report. 

Page 10



 

 

 
 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE 
 
7. The Committee had before is a report from the Chief Accountant which 

provided an update on the Fund’s Investment Strategy and proposed 
actions to secure the funds benchmark allocation. 

 
 The Pensions Manager introduced the report and provided an overview on 

the contents of it.  There followed an opportunity for discussion on the 
contents by Committee members. 

 
The Committee Resolved: 
 

- To approve an additional commitment of £20m to SL Capital. 
- To defer consideration of the disposal and write down of the In-house fund 

to the next Committee meeting but to meantime delegate authority to the 
Head of Finance and Pensions Manager, following consultation with the 
Convener, to approve any disposals on the in-house fund which are 
deemed to be beneficial to the Fund. 

- To approve an allocation to the Diversified Growth Fund to achieve full 
benchmark allocation for alternative investments. 

- To approve the continued due diligence for Foreign Exchange solutions 
- To agree to tender for a Global Custodian. 

 
 
BAILLIE GIFFORD 
 
8. Ms L Dewar and Mr A Tait from Baillie Gifford were present at the meeting 
 for this item and provided an overview to the Committee on the mandate 
 they hold on behalf of the Fund. 
 
The Committee Resolved: 
To note the presentation. 
 
 
BARINGS 
 
9. Mr A Wilde and Mr B Corris from Barings were present at the meeting for 

this item and provided an overview to the Committee on the mandate they 
hold on behalf of the Fund. 

 
The Committee Resolved: 
To note the presentation. 

 
 
ABERDEEN PROPERTY INVESTORS 
 

Page 11



 

 

12. Mr A Rogers and Mr M Dinsdale, Aberdeen Property Investors were 
 present at the meeting of this item and provided an overview to the 
 Committee on the mandate they hold on behalf of the Fund. 
  
The Committee Resolved: 
To note the presentation. 
 
 
ABERDEEN ASSET MANAGERS (GLOBAL EX UK) 
 
16. Mr M Dinsdale, Mr S Methven, and Mr M Gordon James from Aberdeen 

Asset Managers were present at the meeting for this item and provided an 
overview to the Committee on the Global ex UK mandate they hold on 
behalf of the Fund 

 
The Committee Resolved: 
To note the presentation. 
 
 
FRIDAY 29TH AUGUST 2014 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTING 
 
12. The Committee received a presentation from officers in respect to the 

introduction of electronic distribution of meeting papers.  It was noted that 
Officers are currently exploring options for ensuring the security of 
information and, as yet, do not have a firm date for introduction. 

 
 Following discussion, the Committee agreed in principle the introduction of 

electronic papers and noted that officers will revert in due course with 
further details of this initiative. 

 
The Committee Resolved: 

- To agree, in principle, the introduction of electronic distribution of 
Committee papers. 

- To note that officers will revert in due course with further details of this 
initiative.  

 
 
TRAINING 
 
13. The Pensions Adviser delivered a training session to Members on the 

North East Scotland Pension Fund Investment Strategy. 
 
The Committee Resolved: 
To note the training provided. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

MAVERN – SCOTTISH LOAN FUND 
 
14. Mr A Craig from Mavern was present at the meeting for this item and 

provided an overview to the Committee on the Scottish Loan Fund. 
 
The Committee Resolved: 
To note the presentation. 
 
 
BLACKROCK 
 
15. Mr J Edwards and Mr I Sattar from Blackrock was present at the meeting 

for this item and provided an overview to the Committee on the mandate 
they hold on behalf of the Fund.  . 

 
The Committee Resolved: 
To note the presentation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR B CROCKETT - Convenor 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

N
o

rt
h

 E
a
s
t 

S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
 

P
e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
s

 

A
n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

 

P
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

ity
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u
d
it 

 
 

O
ct

o
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

    

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



C
o

n
te

n
ts

 
K

e
y 

m
e
ss

a
g

e
s 

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

 3
 

In
tr

o
d
u
ct

io
n
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 5

 

F
in

a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 6

 

F
in

a
n
ci

a
l p

o
si

tio
n
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

 1
1

 

G
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 a

cc
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 1

5
 

B
e
st

 v
a
lu

e
, 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 1
9

 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 I
 –

 S
ig

n
ifi

ca
n
t 
a
u
d
it 

ri
sk

s 
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
 2

1
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 I
I–

 A
ct

io
n
 p

la
n
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 2
4

 

K
e

y
 c

o
n

ta
c

ts
 

 F
io

n
a

 M
it

ch
e

ll
-K

n
ig

h
t,

 A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

fm
it

ch
e

ll
-k

n
ig

h
t@

a
u

d
it

-s
co

tl
a

n
d

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

D
a

v
e

 R
ic

h
a

rd
so

n
, 

S
e

n
io

r 
A

u
d

it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

d
ri

ch
a

rd
so

n
@

a
u

d
it

-s
co

tl
a

n
d

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

T
o

m
m

y
 Y

u
le

, 
S

e
n

io
r 

A
u

d
it

o
r 

ty
u

le
@

a
u

d
it

-s
co

tl
a

n
d

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

: 
0

8
4

5
 1

4
6

 1
0

1
0

 

 K
e

y
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 
 S

te
p
h
e
n
 B

o
yl

e
, 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

sb
o
yl

e
@

a
u
d
it-

sc
o
tla

n
d
.g

o
v.

u
k 

A
n
n
e
 M

a
cD

o
n
a
ld

, 
S

e
n
io

r 
A

u
d
it 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

a
m

a
cd

o
n
a
ld

@
a
u
d
it-

sc
o
tla

n
d
.g

o
v.

u
k 

D
e
ir
d
re

 S
im

, 
A

u
d
ito

r 

d
si

m
@

a
u
d
it-

sc
o
tla

n
d
.g

o
v.

u
k 

 A
u
d
it 

S
co

tla
n
d
 

B
u
si

n
e
ss

 H
u
b
 1

1
 

2
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

W
e
st

, 
M

a
ri
sc

h
a
l C

o
lle

g
e
  

B
ro

a
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

A
B

1
0
 1

A
B

  
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
: 
0
8
4
5
 1

4
6
 1

0
1
0
 

W
e
b
si

te
: 

w
w

w
.a

u
d
it-

sc
o
tla

n
d
.g

o
v.

u
k 

 

Page 16



K
e

y
 M

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
  

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
3

 

 

K
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
 

 

•
U

n
q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 a
u

d
ito

r's
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n

d
 P

e
n

si
o
n

 F
u
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
ity

 C
o
u

n
ci

l 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 F

u
n

d
. 

F
in

a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 

•
T

h
e

 m
a

in
 f

u
n

d
 w

a
s 

8
8

%
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 la

st
 a

ct
u

a
ri
a

l v
a

lu
a

tio
n

. 
•

F
u
n

d
 g

ro
w

th
 is

 la
rg

e
ly

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 b

y 
in

ve
st

m
e

n
t r

e
tu

rn
s,

 w
ith

 o
n

ly
 £

2
m

 
a
ri
si

n
g
 f

ro
m

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
' n

e
t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s.
 

•
T

h
e

 tr
a
n

sp
o

rt
 f

u
n

d
 in

ve
st

m
e

n
t s

tr
a
te

g
y 

h
a

s 
re

ce
n

tly
 b

e
e

n
 c

h
a

n
g
e

d
 t
o

 
re

fle
ct

 th
a

t 
it 

is
 a

 m
a

tu
ri
n

g
 f

u
n

d
. 

F
in

a
n
ci

a
l p

o
si

tio
n

 

•
F

u
n

d
 g

o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n

g
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
 T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 w
ith

 t
h

e
 in

tr
o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 
a

 P
e

n
si

o
n

s 
B

o
a

rd
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y 
re

g
u

la
tio

n
s 

fr
o
m

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

5
 t
o

 a
ss

is
t 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
•

T
h

e
se

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
g
o

ve
rn

a
n

ce
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 p
ri
o

vi
d
e

 a
n

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

ity
 t
o

 r
e
vi

e
w

 f
u

n
d

 s
cr

u
tin

y 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
re

 is
 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t a

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
s 

b
y 

th
e

 P
e

n
si

o
n

s 
C

o
m

m
itt

e
e

 to
 t
h

e
 

a
d

m
in

is
te

ri
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 

•
S

ys
te

m
s 

o
f 
in

te
rn

a
l f

in
a

n
ci

a
l c

o
n

tr
o
l o

p
e

ra
te

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
. 

 

G
o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

 &
 

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 

•
P

o
si

tiv
e

 I
n

ve
st

m
e

n
t r

e
tu

rn
 o

ve
r 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

a
in

 f
u

n
d

 b
u

t 
sl

ig
h

tly
 

b
e

h
in

d
 b

e
n

ch
m

a
rk

 o
ve

r 
a
 f

iv
e

-y
e

a
r 

p
e

ri
o

d
. 

•
A

u
to

-e
n

ro
lm

e
n

t b
o

o
st

e
d

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 f
u

n
d

 a
s 

a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
st

a
ff

 th
a

n
 e

xp
e

ct
e

d
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

.  
 

B
e
st

 V
a
lu

e
, 
u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

&
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 

•
T

h
e

 in
iti

a
l r

e
su

lts
 f

ro
m

 th
e

 2
0

1
4

 tr
ie

n
n

ia
l a

ct
u

a
ri
a

l r
e
vi

e
w

 a
re

 d
u

e
 s

o
o

n
.  

 
•

N
e
w

 r
e
g
u

la
tio

n
s 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 fr
o
m

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

5
, 
w

ill
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t a

 n
e

w
 c

a
re

e
r 

a
ve

ra
g
e

 p
e

n
si

o
n

 s
ch

e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

a
ve

 im
p

lic
a

tio
n

s 
fo

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

rs
' 

re
co

rd
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

th
o

se
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
.  

 

O
u
tlo

o
k 

Page 17



K
e

y
 M

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
  

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 4

 

 
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n

ts
 

1
. 

W
e
 h

a
ve

 g
iv

e
n
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 a

u
d
it 

o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

fin
a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
ci

l T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 F
u
n
d
. 
  
  

2
. 

W
h
ile

 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 f
u
n
d
 g

re
w

 b
y 

£
2

6
3
m

 w
h
ic

h
 is

 a
n
 in

cr
e
a
se

 o
f 

1
0
.2

%
 in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 o
n
ly

 £
1
.8

m
 a

ro
se

 f
ro

m
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

’ n
e
t 

co
n
tr

ib
u
tio

n
s.

  
T

h
e
 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 f
u
n
d
 d

e
cr

e
a
se

d
 in

 v
a
lu

e
 b

y 
  
  
 

£
0
.9

m
 in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 is

 in
 a

 n
e
g

a
tiv

e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 p

o
si

tio
n
. 

 T
h
e
 

co
st

 o
f 

p
e
n
si

o
n
s 

a
n
d
 b

e
n
e
fit

s 
e
xc

e
e
d
s 

 in
co

m
e
 f
ro

m
 

co
n
tr

ib
u
tio

n
s 

b
y 

a
ro

u
n
d 

£
1
m

 e
a
ch

 y
e
a
r.

 

   F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it

io
n

  

3
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 f
u
n
d
 w

a
s 

in
 d

e
fic

it 
a
t 
th

e
 2

0
1
1
 v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 w

h
e
n
 it

s 

a
ss

e
ts

 a
m

o
u
n
te

d
 t
o
 8

8
%

 o
f 

its
 f
u
tu

re
 li

a
b
ili

tie
s.

 A
n
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 

a
ct

u
a
ri
a
l v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 b

y 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
. 

  
 

4
. 

A
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

ve
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 T

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 F
u
n
d
 t

o
 

re
fle

ct
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
 is

 c
lo

se
d
 t

o
 n

e
w

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 is

 m
a
tu

ri
n
g
 

in
 n

a
tu

re
. 
 W

ith
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
n
si

o
n
e
rs

 e
xc

e
e
d
in

g
 a

ct
iv

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

a
im

s 
to

 r
e
d
u
ce

 r
is

k 
o
ve

r 
tim

e
  
a
n
d

 

p
ro

vi
d
e
 a

ss
e
ts

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

lia
b
ili

tie
s.

  
  

  
  

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 

5
. 

T
h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
 h

a
s 

re
ce

n
tly

 r
e
p
la

ce
d
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

p
a
n
e
l. 

 T
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
ity

 t
o
 r

e
vi

e
w

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g

a
in

st
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 b
e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
. 
 T

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

b
o
a
rd

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l  

2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 it

s 

in
te

rf
a
ce

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

e
st

a
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
 

6
. 

T
h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

p
a
n
e
l w

a
s 

p
re

vi
o
u
sl

y 
th

e
 b

o
d
y 

ch
a
rg

e
d
 w

ith
 

g
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 in
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

th
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f
u
n
d
s.

 W
ith

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

ch
a
n
g

e
s 

in
 t
h
e
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

, 
th

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
ity

 s
h
o
u
ld

 

b
e
 t

a
ke

n
 t

o
 r

e
vi

e
w

 t
h
e
 s

cr
u
tin

y 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 

fu
n
d
s 

a
n
d
 e

n
su

re
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 is
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

fu
n
d
s 

to
 t
h
e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 

7
. 

In
 o

th
e
r 

re
sp

e
ct

s 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
s’

 g
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 

so
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y 
sy

st
e
m

s 
o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l c

o
n
tr

o
l. 

 

 

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
, 
u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

8
. 

M
a

in
 f

u
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 is
 a

b
o
ve

 b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

 

p
e
ri
o
d
 b

u
t 
o
ve

r 
5
 y

e
a
rs

, 
it 

fa
lls

 s
lig

h
tly

 b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
ch

m
a
rk

. 
 

O
u

tl
o

o
k

 

9
. 

N
e
w

 r
e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1
5
 w

ill
 s

e
e
 t

h
e
 in

tr
o
d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 

sc
h
e
m

e
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 c

a
re

e
r 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 r

e
va

lu
e
d
 e

a
rn

in
g

s.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 

re
q

u
ir
e
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

’ 
a
n
d
 f

u
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
. 

  

Page 18



In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

  
 

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 5

 

 
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

1
0

. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 is
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

fin
d
in

g
s 

a
ri
si

n
g
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

o
f 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

(N
E

S
P

F
).

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l a

u
d
it 

re
p
o
rt

 is
 t

o
 

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r’
s
 o

p
in

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 

re
p
o
rt

 a
n
y 

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n
t 
is

su
e
s 

a
ri
si

n
g

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it.

  
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

is
 d

iv
id

e
d
 in

to
 s

e
ct

io
n
s 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
fle

ct
 o

u
r 

p
u
b
lic

 s
e
ct

o
r 

a
u
d
it 

m
o
d
e
l. 

 

1
1

. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 is
 a

d
d
re

ss
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
ci

l, 
a
s 

th
e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g

 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 f
u
n
d
s,

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u
d
it 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

co
n
si

d
e
re

d
 b

y 
th

e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 o

n
 2

4
 N

o
ve

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

 

R
e
p
o
rt

s 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

ta
ke

h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h

e
 

p
u
b
lic

, 
a
s 

a
u
d
it 

is
 a

n
 e

ss
e
n
tia

l e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g

. 
 

1
2

. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

w
e
b

si
te

 a
ft

e
r 

it 
h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

co
n
si

d
e
re

d
 b

y 
th

e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
ng

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 T

h
e
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 in

 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 m
a
y 

b
e
 u

se
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 a
n
n
u
a
l 

o
ve

rv
ie

w
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 lo

ca
l a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
u
d
its

. 
 T

h
e
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

 

is
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

o
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

tio
n
 C

o
m

m
itt

e
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

co
tt
is

h
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t.
  

1
3

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
ce

p
t 
o
f 

a
u
d
it 

ri
sk

 is
 o

f 
ke

y 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
ce

 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 
 D

u
ri
ng

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

ta
g

e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

a
u
d
it 

w
e
 id

e
n
tif

ie
d
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
ke

y 
a
u
d
it 

ri
sk

s 
w

h
ic

h
 in

vo
lv

e
d
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
st

 le
ve

l o
f 

ju
d
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 im

p
a
ct

 o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

. 
 W

e
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

in
 o

u
r 

a
n
n
u
a
l a

u
d
it 

p
la

n
 t
h
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 s

o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

s 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 a

u
d
it 

w
o
rk

 w
e
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
ke

 t
o
 s

e
cu

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

. 
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 I
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 s

ig
n
ifi

ca
n
t 

a
u
d
it 

ri
sk

s 
id

e
n
tif

ie
d
 a

t 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 w
e
 a

d
d
re

ss
e
d
 

e
a
ch

 r
is

k 
in

 a
rr

iv
in

g
 a

t 
o
u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

. 

1
4

. 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 I
I 

is
 a

n
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 h

ig
h
 le

ve
l r

is
ks

 w
e
 

h
a
ve

 id
e
n
tif

ie
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it.

  
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
ve

 c
o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 t

h
e
 

is
su

e
s 

a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 t
a
ke

 t
h
e
 s

p
e
ci

fic
 s

te
p

s 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
lu

m
n
 

h
e
a
d
e
d
 "

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
ct

io
n

/r
e
sp

o
n
se

".
  

1
5

. 
W

e
 r

e
co

g
n
is

e
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
t 
a
ll 

ri
sk

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 e

lim
in

a
te

d
 o

r 
e
ve

n
 

m
in

im
is

e
d
. 

 W
h
a
t 
is

 im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

is
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 r

is
ks

 a
n
d
 h

a
ve

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 t

h
e
se

 r
is

ks
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
ci

l, 
a
s 

a
d
m

in
is

te
ri
ng

 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

ro
p
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

sh
o
u
ld

 e
n
su

re
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y 

a
re

 

sa
tis

fie
d
 w

ith
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
ct

io
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
ve

 a
 

m
e
ch

a
n
is

m
 in

 p
la

ce
 t
o
 a

ss
e
ss

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
ito

r 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s.

  

1
6

. 
W

e
 h

a
ve

 in
cl

u
d
e
d
 in

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
ly

 t
h
o
se

 m
a
tt

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
ve

 

co
m

e
 t
o
 o

u
r 

a
tt
e
n
tio

n
 a

s 
a
 r

e
su

lt 
o
f 

o
u
r 

n
o
rm

a
l a

u
d
it 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s;
 c

o
n
se

q
u
e
n
tly

, 
o
u
r 

co
m

m
e
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 

re
g

a
rd

e
d
 a

s 
a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 r

e
co

rd
 o

f 
a
ll 

d
e
fic

ie
n
ci

e
s 

th
a
t 

m
a
y 

e
xi

st
 o

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
co

u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
. 

1
7

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
o
p
e
ra

tio
n
 a

n
d
 a

ss
is

ta
n
ce

 a
ff

o
rd

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it 

te
a
m

 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it 

is
 g

ra
te

fu
lly

 a
ck

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
d

. 

Page 19



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
  

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 6

 

 
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 

1
8

. 
W

e
 h

a
ve

 g
iv

e
n
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 o

p
in

io
n
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

ci
a
l 

st
a
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

N
E

S
P

F
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 g

iv
e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f
a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l t

ra
n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

o
f 

th
e
 f

u
n
d
s 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 o

f 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

is
p
o
si

tio
n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

ss
e
ts

 a
n
d
 li

a
b
ili

tie
s.

  
  
 

O
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 p
u

b
li

s
h

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

1
9

. 
A

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
vi

e
w

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 o

th
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 w

ith
 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

, 
in

cl
u
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 E

xp
la

n
a
to

ry
 F

o
re

w
o
rd

, 

th
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 S

ys
te

m
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l F

in
a
n
ci

a
l C

o
n
tr

o
l a

n
d
 

th
e
 G

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

 W
e
 h

a
ve

 n
o
th

in
g

 t
o
 

C
o
m

b
in

e
d

 d
e

a
lin

g
s 

w
ith

 e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 a
n

d
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 -
 n

e
t 
in

co
m

e
 

£
0

.8
m

 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
tio

n
 

in
co

m
e
 £

11
3
.1

m
 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 c

o
st

s 
£
11

2
.3

m
 

C
o
m

b
in

e
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s 
o

n
 

in
ve

st
m

e
n

ts
 £

2
6

1
.8

m
 

N
e
t 

in
co

m
e
 f
ro

m
 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
ts

 
£

4
6

.3
m

 

C
a
p
ita

l g
ro

w
th

 
£

2
1

5
.5

m
 

C
o

m
b
in

e
d

 a
ss

e
t 
va

lu
e

 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 9

.9
%

 

M
a
in

 F
u
n
d
 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
ts

 u
p
 

1
0

.3
%

 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 F
u
n
d
 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
ts

 
d
o
w

n
 1

.1
%

 

C
o
m

b
in

e
d

 n
e

t 
a

ss
e

ts
 

£
2

,9
1

3
.4

m
 

In
cr

e
a
se

 in
 t

h
e
 

ye
a
r 

£
2

6
2

.7
m

 

Page 20



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
  

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 7

 

 
 

re
p
o
rt

 in
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 
th

e
se

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

L
e
g

a
li

ty
  

2
0

. 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 a

u
d
it 

w
o
rk

 w
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
e
 le

g
a
lit

y 
o
f 

th
e
 

p
e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n
d
s’

 f
in

a
n
ci

a
l t

ra
n
sa

ct
io

n
s.

  
T

h
is

 in
cl

u
d
e
s 

o
b
ta

in
in

g
 

w
ri
tt

e
n
 a

ss
u
ra

n
ce

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 P

ro
p
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r.

  
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 

le
g

a
lit

y 
is

su
e
s 

a
ri
si

n
g

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 
to

 t
h
e
 a

tt
e
n
tio

n
 o

f 
th

o
se

 c
h
a
rg

e
d
 w

ith
 g

o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

. 

 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

2
1

. 
O

u
r 

‘R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
o
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

a
u
d
it
’, 

w
a
s 

p
re

se
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n
e
l o

n
 8

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
T

h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
a
t 
re

p
o
rt

 w
a
s 

to
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 

th
e
 s

ig
n
ifi

ca
n
t 
fin

d
in

g
s 

a
ris

in
g

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it 

p
ri
or

 t
o
 f

in
a
lis

a
tio

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 it
e
m

s 
a
re

 

su
m

m
a
ri
se

d
 in

 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s.

  
 

 P
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
a
l 
a
n

d
 m

o
n

e
ta

ry
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
  

2
2

. 
T

h
e
 u

n
a
u
d
ite

d
 a

cc
o
u
n
ts

 r
e
fle

ct
e
d
 p

ri
va

te
 e

q
u
ity

 v
a
lu

a
tio

n
s 

ca
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
t 

3
1
 D

e
ce

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 t
h
e
 b

e
st

 

e
st

im
a
te

s 
a
va

ila
b
le

 t
o
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h
e
n
 p

re
p
a
ri
ng

 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

a
cc

o
u
n
ts

. 
V

a
lu

a
tio

n
s 

a
t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 w

e
re

 r
e
ce

iv
e
d
 in

 J
u

n
e
 

2
0
1
4
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 o
f 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
iff

e
re

n
ce

 t
o
 m

e
ri
t 
a
m

e
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

a
cc

o
u
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 e

ff
e
ct

 o
f 

th
e
 a

d
ju

st
m

e
n
ts

 w
a
s 

to
 in

cr
e
a
se

 t
h
e
 

R
e
tu

rn
 o

n
 I

n
ve

st
m

e
n
ts

 (
F

u
n
d
 A

cc
o
u
n
t)

 a
n
d
 N

e
t 
In

ve
st

m
e
n
t 

A
ss

e
ts

 (
N

e
t 
A

ss
e
ts

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t)

 b
y 

£
3
.8

7
2
m

. 
  

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
re

se
n
ta

tio
n
a
l a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
ce

ss
e
d
 t
o
 im

p
ro

ve
 

th
e
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
s 

w
ith

in
 t

h
e
 a

cc
o
u
n
ts

. 

2
3

. 
A

d
ju

st
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 
m

a
d
e
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

m
is

st
a
te

m
e
n
ts

 id
e
n
tif

ie
d

 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it.

  
T

h
e
se

 m
is

st
a
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
re

 im
m

a
te

ri
a
l t

o
 t

h
e
 

a
cc

o
u
n
ts

 a
s 

a
 w

h
o
le

. 
 H

a
d
 a

n
 a

d
ju

st
m

e
n
t 

b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
, 
th

e
 n

e
t 

im
p
a
ct

 o
f 

th
e
 m

is
st

a
te

m
e
n
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 h
a
ve

 in
cr

e
a
se

d
 t

h
e
 N

e
t 

A
d
d
iti

o
n
s 

fr
o
m

 D
e
a
lin

g
s 

w
ith

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 (
in

 t
h
e
 F

un
d
 A

cc
o
u
n
t)

 

a
n
d
 N

e
t 

A
ss

e
ts

 b
y 

£
0
.3

5
5
m

. 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fe

e
s
  

2
4

. 
In

ve
st

m
e
n
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

e
xp

e
n
se

s 
a
re

 in
cl

u
d
e
d
 in

 t
h
e
 F

u
n
d
 

A
cc

o
u
n
ts

 w
ith

 f
u
lle

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 d

is
cl

o
se

d
 in

 a
 n

o
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

a
cc

o
u
n
ts

. 
  

A
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
, 
th

e
 m

a
in

 f
u
n
d
 d

is
cl

o
se

d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fe

e
s 

o
f 

£
1
0
.4

m
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

ith
 £

5
.3

m
 t
h
e
 

p
re

vi
o
u
s 

ye
a
r.

  
In

 li
n
e
 w

ith
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

ct
io

n
 in

 o
u
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

A
n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

, 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
o
k 

a
ct

io
n
 t

o
 id

e
n
tif

y 
p
ri
va

te
 e

q
u
ity

 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fe

e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 p

re
vi

o
u
sl

y 
b
e
e
n
 in

cl
u
d
e
d
 in

 t
h
e
 

va
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 in

ve
st

m
e
n
ts

 in
 t

h
e
 n

e
t 

a
ss

e
t 
st

a
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
cc

o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
m

 in
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
ct

ic
e
 o

n
 

L
o
ca

l A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
cc

o
u
n
tin

g
 in

 t
h
e
 U

K
 (

th
e
 C

o
d
e
).

  
 

2
5

. 
In

 r
e
co

g
n
iti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
a
ct

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 is

 a
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
a
re

a
, 

C
IP

F
A

 h
a
s 

is
su

e
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

g
u
id

a
n
ce

, 
a
cc

o
u
n
tin

g
 f
o
r 

lo
ca

l a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
e
n
si

o
n
 

sc
h
e
m

e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
co

st
s,

 w
h
ic

h
 is

 r
e
co

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e
 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 
 T

h
e
 g

u
id

a
n
ce

 a
im

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
d
e
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

co
n
si

st
e
n
t 
a
cc

o
u
n
tin

g
 in

 d
e
a
lin

g
 w

ith
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

Page 21



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
  

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 8

 

 
 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

u
n
ce

rt
a
in

ty
 e

.g
. 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 r
e
la

te
d
 f
e
e
s,

 p
o
o

le
d
 f
u
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fe

e
s 

a
n
d
 p

ri
va

te
 e

q
u
ity

 a
n
d
 h

e
d
g

e
 f
u
n
d
s.

 

2
6

. 
D

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it 

o
f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

, 
w

e
 id

e
n
tif

ie
d
 a

 

p
o
te

n
tia

l u
n
d
e
rs

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
in

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 f
e
e
s.

  
A

 f
e
e
 w

a
s 

lik
e
ly

 

to
 b

e
 p

a
ya

b
le

 t
o
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
r’
s
, 
B

a
ill

ie
 G

iff
o
rd

, 
in

 

re
sp

e
ct

 o
f 
th

e
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
 e

n
d
e
d
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

4
, 

h
o
w

e
ve

r 
a
s 

u
n
ce

rt
a
in

ty
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 u

n
til

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 p
e
ri
o
d
 

w
a
s 

co
m

p
le

te
, 
it 

w
a
s 

d
iff

ic
u
lt 

to
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 a

 r
e
a
so

n
a
b
le

 

e
st

im
a
te

 a
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 
 W

h
ile

 a
 c

o
n
tin

g
e
n
t 
lia

b
ili

ty
 w

a
s 

in
cl

u
d
e
d
 in

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
ite

d
 a

cc
o
u
n
ts

, 
th

is
 w

a
s 

a
n
 a

re
a
 w

h
ic

h
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

ss
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
cc

ru
a
ls

 a
re

 

re
co

g
n
is

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 
 A

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
ve

 n
o
w

 b
e
e

n
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o
 a

lig
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 p
e
ri
o
d
 w

ith
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l y

e
a
r 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 e
a
rl
ie

r 
id

e
n
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 o

f 
re

a
so

n
a
b
le

 e
st

im
a
te

s 
fo

r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 f
e
e
 a

cc
ru

a
ls

. 
  
  

P
e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 l
ia

b
il
it

y
 

2
7

. 
T

h
e
 a

ct
u
a
ri
a
l v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
p
ro

m
is

e
d
 r

e
tir

e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
n
e
fit

s 
in

 li
n
e
 w

ith
 

IA
S

 1
9
 a

ss
u
m

p
tio

n
s 

is
 £

3
,4

2
3
m

  
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p
re

se
n
ts

 a
 £

1
2
m

  

re
d
u
ct

io
n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 li

a
b
ili

ty
 s

ta
te

d
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
. 
 T

h
is

 

co
n
si

d
e
rs

 t
h
e
 lo

n
g

 t
e
rm

 v
ie

w
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f
u
n
d
 in

 m
e

e
tin

g
 it

s 

fu
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
itm

e
n
ts

 h
a
vi

n
g
 t

a
ke

n
 e

m
p
lo

ye
rs

' c
o
n
tr

ib
u
tio

n
 r

a
te

s 

a
n
d
 r

e
ve

n
u
e
s 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
d
 f
ro

m
 in

ve
st

m
e
n
ts

 in
to

 a
cc

o
u
n
t.
  

T
h
e
 

d
e
fic

it 
a
ri
si

n
g
 f
ro

m
 t

h
is

 v
a
lu

a
tio

n
 d

o
e
s 

n
o
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 a

n
 im

m
e
d
ia

te
 

ca
sh

 in
je

ct
io

n
 b

u
t 

is
 in

te
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y 
in

cr
e
a
se

d
 

co
n
tr

ib
u
tio

n
s 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 lo

n
g
 t

e
rm

. 
 T

h
e
 a

ss
u
m

p
tio

n
s 

w
ith

in
 t

h
e
 

IA
S

1
9
 v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 a

re
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 a

ct
u
a
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 

m
o
ve

m
e
n
t 
is

 t
h
e
 a

ct
u
a
ry

's
 u

se
 o

f 
a
 d

is
co

u
n
t 
ra

te
 o

f 
4
.5

%
 a

t 
3
1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 t

o
 r

e
fle

ct
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 is
 a

 

h
ig

h
e
r 

d
is

co
u
n
t 
ra

te
 t
h
a
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
vi

o
u
s 

ye
a
r 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 a

ct
u
a
ry

 

u
se

d
 a

 r
a
te

 o
f 

4
.2

%
. 
 T

h
e
 u

se
 o

f 
a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

d
is

co
u
n
t 
ra

te
 in

 t
h
e
 

a
ct

u
a
ry

's
 a

ss
u
m

p
tio

n
s 

g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 p

ro
d
u
ce

s 
a
 lo

w
e
r 

p
e
n
si

o
n
 

lia
b
ili

ty
. 

  
  

 

2
8

. 
T

h
is

 y
e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 a

ct
u
a
ry

 w
id

e
n
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
fin

iti
o
n
 o

f 
 ‘A

A
 r

a
te

d
’ 

b
o
n
d
s 

in
 t

h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

tio
n
 u

se
d
 t

o
 d

e
ri
ve

 t
h
e
 d

is
co

u
n
t 
ra

te
. 
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

o
w

n
g
ra

d
e
 o

f 
th

e
 U

K
 s

o
ve

re
ig

n
 c

re
d
it 

ra
tin

g
 in

 

2
0
1
3
, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
o
n
d
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
ry

’s
 m

o
d
e
l 
fe

ll 

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n
tly

. 
 I

n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 r

o
b
u
st

n
e
ss

 o
f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

se
t 

a
n
d
 w

ith
 t

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
p
ro

vi
d
in

g
 g

re
a
te

r 
st

a
b
ili

ty
 o

ve
r 

tim
e
, 
th

e
 

a
c
tu

a
ry

 w
id

e
n
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
‘A

A
 r

a
te

d
’ b

o
n
d
s 

in
 t

h
e
 

ca
lc

u
la

tio
n
 u

se
d
 t
o
 d

e
ri
ve

 t
h
e
 d

is
co

u
n
t 
ra

te
. 
 T

h
e
 d

is
co

u
n
t 
ra

te
 

re
fle

ct
s 

th
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
’s

 t
o
le

ra
n
ce

 o
f 
ri
sk

 a
n
d
 w

ith
 t
h
e
 

ch
a
n
g

e
 in

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
b
o
n
d
s 

u
se

d
 in

 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

tio
n
, 

w
e
 

n
o
te

d
 a

n
 in

cr
e
a
se

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 4
.2

%
 t

o
 4

.5
%

. 
 T

h
is

 p
la

ce
s 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 F
u
n
d
 in

 a
 d

iff
e
re

n
t 

p
o
si

tio
n
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

S
co

tt
is

h
 

fu
n
d
s 

in
 t
h
a
t 

it 
is

 t
h
e
 o

n
ly

 f
u
n
d
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 a
 d

e
cr

e
a
se

 in
 t

h
e
 

IA
S

1
9
 li

a
b
ili

ty
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

 (
E

xh
ib

it 
1
).

 

Page 22



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
  

  

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
9

 

 

E
x
h

ib
it

 1
 –

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
o

s
it

io
n

  

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

Im
p

a
ir

m
e
n

t 
lo

s
s
e
s

 

2
9

. 
 A

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
, 
th

e
 a

cc
o
u
n
ts

 c
o
n
tin

u
e
d
 t

o
 in

cl
u
d
e
 a

 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
tia

l n
o
n

-c
o
lle

ct
io

n
 o

f 
£
2
.6

m
 f
ro

m
 a

 

fo
rm

e
r 

a
d
m

itt
e
d
 b

o
d
y 

o
f 

th
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f
u
n
d
. 
 T

h
e
 d

e
b
t 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

th
e
 s

u
b
je

ct
 o

f 
a
 lo

n
g
st

a
n
d
in

g
 d

is
p
u
te

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n
d
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

d
m

itt
e
d
 b

o
d
y.

  
In

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3,

 a
ft

e
r 

lit
tle

 p
ro

g
re

ss
, 
th

e
 

m
a
tt
e
r 

w
a
s 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l l

e
g

a
l a

d
vi

so
rs

. 
 I

n
 

Ju
n
e
 2

0
1
4
, 
fo

rm
a
l l

e
g

a
l a

ct
io

n
 w

a
s 

p
o
st

p
o
n
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 

a
d
m

itt
e
d
 b

o
d
y 

a
u
th

o
ri
se

d
 it

s 
a
u
d
ito

rs
 t

o
 s

h
a
re

 f
in

a
n
ci

a
l 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 w

ith
 c

o
u
n
ci

l o
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
ith

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o
 r

e
a
ch

in
g

 

se
tt

le
m

e
n
t.
  
 

3
0

. 
W

h
ile

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 d

u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
 in

 b
ri
n
g

in
g

 t
h
is

 

lo
n
g

st
a
n
d
in

g
 m

a
tt

e
r 

to
 a

 c
o
n
cl

u
si

o
n
, 

w
e
 h

a
d
 a

n
tic

ip
a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
it 

w
o
u

ld
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
so

lv
e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
u
d
it 

w
a
s 

co
n
cl

u
d
e
d
 in

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
ve

 h
o
w

e
ve

r 

a
d
vi

se
d
 u

s 
th

a
t 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
a
ch

e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 m

a
tt

e
r 

a
n
d
 b

o
th

 p
a
rt

ie
s 

co
n
ce

rn
e
d
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o
w

a
rd

s 
a
 f

a
vo

u
ra

b
le

 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
. 
  
  
  
 

R
e
fe

r 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
 

O
u

tl
o

o
k

 

3
1

. 
T

h
e
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

N
E

S
P

F
 a

re
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 in

 

a
cc

o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 C

o
d
e
. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 n
e
w

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s 
a
d
o
pt

e
d
 

in
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 in

cl
u
d
e

: 
 

·
 

IF
R

S
 1

3
 F

a
ir
 V

a
lu

e
 M

e
a
su

re
m

e
n
t 

 

·
 

IA
S

 3
2
 F

in
a
n
ci

a
l I

n
st

ru
m

e
n
ts

: 
P

re
se

n
ta

tio
n
 

·
 

A
n
n
u
a
l I

m
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 I
F

R
S

s 
2
0
0
9
-2

0
1
1
 c

yc
le

. 

3
2

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
vi

se
d
 L

o
ca

l A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
cc

o
u
n
ts

 (
S

co
tla

n
d

) 
R

e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

a
p
p
ly

 f
o
r 

fin
a
n
ci

a
l y

e
a
rs

 2
0
1
4

/1
5
 o

n
w

a
rd

s.
  
T

h
e
 r

e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

se
t 

o
u
t 

in
 d

e
ta

il 
w

h
a
t 

is
 r

e
q

u
ire

d
 in

 r
e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 
fin

a
n
ci

a
l 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t,

 in
te

rn
a
l c

o
n
tr

o
l, 

a
n
d
  
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l a

cc
o
u
n
ts

 

th
e
m

se
lv

e
s.

  
T

h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 N

E
S

P
F

 in
 t

e
rm

s 
o
f 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

’ c
o
n
si

d
e
ra

tio
n
 o

f 
d
ra

ft
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
ite

d
 a

cc
o
u
n
ts

 la
rg

e
ly

 

a
lr
e
a
d
y 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 t

im
e
sc

a
le

s 
sp

e
ci

fie
d
 in

 t
h
e
  

n
e
w

 r
e
g

u
la

tio
n
s.

  
  
 

Page 23



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
  

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
 

 
 

3
3

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

re
q

u
ir
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n
d
s 

to
 h

a
ve

 a
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t.
  
F

ro
m

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
, 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s 

in
cl

u
si

o
n
 o

f 
a
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l f

in
a
n
ci

a
l 

co
n
tr

o
l. 

 T
h
e
 n

e
w

 a
cc

o
u
n
ts

 r
e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

re
co

m
m

e
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 

o
n
e
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

is
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n

 f
u
n
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
l r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

cc
o
u
n
ts

 b
u
t 
th

a
t 
it 

sa
tis

fie
s 

th
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

b
o
th

 s
e
ts

 o
f 

re
g

u
la

tio
n
s.

 

3
4

. 
W

h
ile

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

ra
ft
 a

cc
o
u
n
ts

 w
e
re

 s
u
b
m

itt
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

p
e
n
si

o
n
s 

p
a
n
e
l o

n
 1

6
 J

u
n
e
, 

it 
w

a
s 

so
m

e
 t

h
re

e
 w

e
e
ks

 la
te

r 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a
p
e
r 

p
a
ck

a
g

e
 w

a
s 

su
b
m

itt
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
u
d
it.

  
A

s 

w
e
 h

a
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ce

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it 

o
n
 9

 J
u
n
e
, 
th

e
 d

e
la

y 

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n
tly

 im
p
a
ct

e
d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

p
la

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

 

re
a
llo

ca
tio

n
 o

f 
re

so
u
rc

e
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it 

p
la

n
. 
 

3
5

. 
T

h
e
 a

d
d
iti

o
n
a
l t

im
e
 w

a
s 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 b

y 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
ct

ify
 e

rr
o
rs

 in
 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p

o
si

tio
n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

u
st

o
d
ia

n
 in

 r
e
la

tio
n
 t
o
 

p
ri
va

te
 e

q
u
ity

 t
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s.

  
T

h
is

 p
ro

b
le

m
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 f

o
r 

so
m

e
 t
im

e
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s 

a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o
 r

e
vi

e
w

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

vi
d
e
r.

  
 

Page 24



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it

io
n

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
 

 
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 

3
6

. 
N

E
S

P
F

 c
o
n
si

st
s 

o
f 
tw

o
 f
u
n
d
s,

 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 

F
u
n
d
 (

th
e
 m

a
in

 f
u
n
d
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
ci

l T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

F
u
n
d
 (

th
e
 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 f
u
n
d
).

 

3
7

. 
A

lth
o
u
g

h
 b

o
th

 f
u
n
d
s 

b
e
n
e
fit

 f
ro

m
 s

h
a
re

d
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 a
n
d

 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
tiv

e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

, 
th

e
ir
 a

ss
e
ts

 a
n
d
 li

a
b
ili

tie
s 

a
re

 

a
cc

o
u
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

se
p
a
ra

te
ly

. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 f
u
n
d
 p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
p
e
n
si

o
n
s 

fo
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ye
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
tio

n
s 

a
n
d
 h

a
s 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 2

2
,0

0
0
 

a
ct

iv
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 f
u
n
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 is

 c
lo

se
d
 t

o
 n

e
w

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
h
a
s 

o
n
ly

 8
5
 a

ct
iv

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 4

0
0
 

p
e
n
si

o
n
e
rs

. 
 B

o
th

 f
u
n
d
s 

a
re

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 S

ch
e
m

e
. 

 

M
a
in

 f
u

n
d

 

3
8

. 
T

h
e
 n

e
t 
a
ss

e
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 f
u
n
d
 g

re
w

 b
y 

£
2
6
3
.6

m
 t

o
 £

2
,8

3
4
m

, 

w
h

ic
h
 is

 a
n
 in

cr
e
a
se

 o
f 

1
0
.2

%
 in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 W
h
ile

 o
n
ly

 £
1
.8

m
 o

f 

th
is

 c
a
m

e
 f
ro

m
 d

e
a
lin

g
s 

w
ith

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
th

is
 is

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
o
si

tio
n
 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
vi

o
u
s 

ye
a
r 

a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt 
o
f 

th
e
 p

o
si

tiv
e
 im

p
a
ct

 o
f 

th
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

tio
n
 o

f 
a
u
to

-e
n
ro

lm
e
n
t 
in

 2
0
1
3/

1
4
 b

y 
th

e
 la

rg
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 in
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d

. 
 (

E
xh

ib
it 

2
) 

3
9

. 
In

tr
o
d
u
ce

d
 b

y 
th

e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

A
ct

 2
0
1
1
, 
a
u
to

-e
n
ro

lm
e
n
t,
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
ro

l 
th

e
ir
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 i
n
to

 ‘
a
 q

u
a
lif

y
in

g
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
’ 
 b

y
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 s

ta
g

in
g
 d

a
te

s
. 
 T

a
ke

-u
p
 a

n
d
 r

e
te

n
tio

n
 

o
f 

a
u
to

-e
n
ro

lle
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 in
 N

E
S

P
F

 w
a
s 

g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n
 

e
xp

e
ct

e
d
, 

le
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 a

 p
o
si

tiv
e
 b

o
o
st

 t
o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 t
h

is
 y

e
a
r 

(E
xh

ib
it 

3
).

 T
h
e
 s

ta
g

in
g
 d

a
te

s 
o
f 

sm
a
lle

r 
e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 f
a
ll 

in
 f
u
tu

re
 

ye
a
rs

, 
th

o
u
g

h
 t
h
e
 im

p
a
ct

 is
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

s 
si

g
n
ifi

ca
n
t.

 

 

E
x
h

ib
it

 2
 –

 N
e
t 

A
d

d
it

io
n

s
 f

ro
m

 d
e
a
li

n
g

 w
it

h
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
T

e
c
h
n

ic
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 U

n
it
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 D

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 

 

  

-1
0
,0

0
0

.0
0
0

-5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0

0
.0

0
0

5
,0

0
0

.0
0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
0

Scottish Borders

Falkirk

Fife

Lothian

Shetland

Highland

Tayside

Orkney Islands

North East

Dumfries & Galloway

Lothian Buses Fund

Tayside Transport

Strathclyde Fund 3

Strathclyde Fund 1

Aberdeen Transport

Scottish Homes

2013/14 FA: Net additions from 
dealings with members £000 

Page 25



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it

io
n

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
 

 
 

E
x
h

ib
it

 3
: 

M
a
in

 f
u

n
d

: 
tr

e
n

d
s
 i

n
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

 N
E

S
P

F
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

  

4
0

. 
T

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 m
a
rk

e
t 

va
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
 w

a
s 

1
0
.4

%
. 
T

h
is

 

co
m

p
a
re

s 
w

e
ll 

w
ith

 t
h
e
 b

e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 o
f 

9
.0

%
 o

ve
r 

o
n
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

O
ve

r 
th

e
 lo

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 f
iv

e
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 
g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
1
3
.9

%
 w

a
s 

a
ch

ie
ve

d
 b

u
t 

th
is

 r
e
m

a
in

s 
a
 f
ra

ct
io

n
 b

e
h
in

d
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
ch

m
a

rk
 o

f 

1
4
.1

%
. 

4
1

. 
W

h
ile

 t
h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 

a
ss

e
ts

 is
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
, 

th
e
 

o
ve

ra
ll 

fu
n
d
in

g
 p

o
si

tio
n
 is

 s
u
ch

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
’s

 a
ss

e
ts

 d
o
 n

o
t 

co
ve

r 
its

 li
a
b
ili

tie
s 

a
n
d
 if

 t
h
e
 f

u
n
d
 w

a
s 

w
o

u
n
d
 u

p
 im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

, 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 le

ft
 w

ith
 a

n
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 g

a
p
 o

f 

a
ro

u
n
d
 £

5
8
9
m

. 
  
(E

xh
ib

it 
4
).

 

E
x
h

ib
it

 4
: 

S
n

a
p

-s
h

o
t 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n

d
 l
ia

b
il
it

ie
s
 

 
N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

 
2
0
1
1

 

V
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

 

£
m

 

2
0
1
3

 

R
o

ll
-f

o
rw

a
rd

 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

 

£
m

 

2
0
1
4

 

R
o

ll
-f

o
rw

a
rd

 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

 

£
m

 

A
s

s
e
ts

  
2
,2

1
8

 
2
,5

6
8

 
2
,8

3
4

 

L
ia

b
il

it
ie

s
 

2
,5

1
2

 
3
,4

8
9

 
3
,4

2
3

 

N
e
t 

s
u

rp
lu

s
/(

li
a
b

il
it

y
) 

(2
9
4
) 

(8
6
5

) 
(5

8
9
) 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 L
e
v

e
l 

8
8
%

 
7
5

%
 

8
3
%

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

 N
E

S
P

F
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

  

 

4
2

. 
T

h
e
 f

u
n
d
 is

 h
o
w

e
ve

r 
co

n
si

d
e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 g
o
in

g
 c

o
n
ce

rn
, 
w

ith
 it

s 

fu
n
d
in

g
 p

o
si

tio
n
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 e

ve
ry

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 b
y 

a
n
 a

ct
u
a
ry

. 
 

T
h
e
 la

st
 f

u
ll 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
’s

 a
s
s
e
ts

 

a
m

o
u
n
te

d
 t

o
 8

8
%

 o
f 
th

e
 f
u
n
d
’s

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 (

E
xh

ib
its

 4
 a

n
d
 5

) 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 g

a
p
 is

 c
u
rr

e
n
tly

 b
e
in

g
 a

ss
e
ss

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 

a
ct

u
a
ry

 a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 a

ct
u
a
ri
a
l v

a
lu

a
tio

n
. 
  

  
  
  

0

5
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0

1
5

,0
0

0

2
0

,0
0

0

2
5

,0
0

0

3
0

,0
0

0

P
e

n
si

o
n

e
rs

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

Page 26



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it

io
n

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

3
 

 
 

E
x
h

ib
it

 5
: 

A
c
tu

a
ri

a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 

th
e
 t

w
o

 f
u

n
d

s
 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
c
tu

a
ri

a
l 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 

 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
u

n
d

 

4
3

. 
T

h
e
 n

e
t 
a
ss

e
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 t

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 f
u
n
d
 f

e
ll 

b
y 

£
0
.9

m
 (

1
.1

%
) 

b
u
t 

re
m

a
in

 a
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 £

8
0

m
. 
 T

h
e
 f
u
n
d
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 in

 a
 d

e
fic

it 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

p
o
si

tio
n
 f

o
r 

se
ve

ra
l y

e
a
rs

 in
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l c

o
st

 o
f 

p
e
n
si

o
n
s 

a
n
d
 b

e
n
ef

its
 is

 a
ro

u
n
d
 £

1
.0

m
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
tio

n
s 

re
ce

iv
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 E

xh
ib

it 
6
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e
 p

o
si

tio
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
ry

’s
 

p
e
rs

p
e
ct

iv
e
. 
  
 

  

E
x
h

ib
it

 6
: 

S
n

a
p

-s
h

o
t 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n

d
 l
ia

b
il
it

ie
s
 

 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 F
u

n
d

 

 
2
0
1
1

 

V
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

 

£
m

 

2
0
1
3

 

R
o

ll
-f

o
rw

a
rd

 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

 

£
m

 

2
0
1
4

 

R
o

ll
-f

o
rw

a
rd

 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

 

£
m

 

A
s

s
e
ts

  
6
7
.9

 
8
0
.3

 
7
9
.5

 

L
ia

b
il

it
ie

s
 

7
1
.5

 
8
8
.2

 
8
5
.2

 

N
e
t 

s
u

rp
lu

s
/(

li
a
b

il
it

y
) 

(3
.6

) 
(7

.9
) 

(5
.7

) 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 L
e
v

e
l 

9
5
%

 
9
1

%
 

9
3
%

 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

N
E

S
P

F
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

  4
4

. 
T

h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

fil
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 f
u
n
d
 is

 s
h
o
w

n
 in

 

E
xh

ib
it 

7
. 
 A

s 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
 is

 c
lo

se
d
, 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a

ct
iv

e
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s 

is
 f

a
lli

n
g
 e

a
ch

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 is

 n
o
w

 1
3
%

 o
f 
th

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
b
o
n
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
’s

 p
o
rt

fo
lio

 a
t 

3
2
%

 r
e
fle

ct
s 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

in
cr

e
a
si

n
g

 c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 o

ve
r 

a
ss

e
t 

va
lu

e
s 

a
s 

th
e
 f
u
n
d
 m

a
tu

re
s.

 
 

 

Page 27



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it

io
n

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

4
 

 
 

E
x
h

ib
it

 7
: 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
u

n
d

: 
tr

e
n

d
s
 i
n

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

 N
E

S
P

F
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

   O
u

tl
o

o
k

 

4
5

. 
B

o
th

 f
u
n
d
s 

h
a
ve

 a
n
 in

cr
e
a
si

n
g

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
n
si

o
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 li

vi
n

g
 lo

n
g

e
r.

  
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
ct

iv
e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 in
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 f
u
n
d
 is

 n
o
w

 4
0
%

, 
d
o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 5
6
%

 t
e
n
 

ye
a
rs

 a
g

o
. 
 T

h
is

 is
 a

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
to

r 
to

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 p

re
ss

u
re

s 
a

s 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e
n
si

o
n
s 

co
n
su

m
e
 t
h
e
 in

co
m

e
 f
ro

m
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
tio

n
s,

 

re
d
u
ci

n
g
 t

h
e
 s

u
rp

lu
s 

fo
r 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
t.
 

 

4
6

. 
D

u
e
 t

o
 t
h
e
 c

lo
se

d
 a

n
d
 m

a
tu

ri
n
g

 n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 f
u
n
d
, 

a
 

st
ra

te
g

y 
w

ill
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 b

e
 im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 a
im

e
d
 a

t 
re

d
u
ci

n
g

 

ri
sk

 o
ve

r 
tim

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 a

ss
e
ts

 t
o
 m

a
tc

h
 t

h
e
 f
u
n
d
’s

 

lia
b
ili

tie
s.

 

4
7

. 
T

h
e
 2

0
1
4
 a

ct
u
a
ri
a
l v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 is

 c
u
rr

e
n
tly

 b
e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y 

th
e
 a

ct
u
a
ry

 w
ith

 a
n
 in

iti
a
l v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 a

n
d
 in

d
ic

a
tio

n
 o

f 
th

e
 li

ke
ly

 

im
p
a
ct

 o
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 ‘
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 r

a
te

s 
d
u
e
 in

 D
e
ce

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

 

0

5
0

1
0

0

1
5

0

2
0

0

2
5

0

3
0

0

3
5

0

4
0

0

4
5

0

P
e

n
si

o
n

e
rs

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

Page 28



G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
  

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

5
 

 
 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 
a
c

c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 

 

 

4
8

. 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
ci

l a
s 

a
d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
ce

 a
re

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

e
st

a
b
lis

h
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

e
n
su

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

co
n
d
u
ct

 o
f 
th

e
 a

ff
a
ir
s 

o
f 

th
e
 N

E
S

P
F

 a
n
d
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
ito

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
cy

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

 

o
f 

th
e
se

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
  

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

 

4
9

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 N

E
S

P
F

 is
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
ci

l, 
a
s 

a
d
m

in
is

te
ri
ng

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 T

h
e
  

co
u
n
ci

l h
a
s 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

p
e
n
si

o
n
 f
u
n
d
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 t
o
 

th
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n
e
l. 

 F
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
, 
th

e
 p

a
n
e
l c

o
n
si

st
e
d
 o

f 
fiv

e
 

e
le

ct
e
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
a
n
 in

cr
e
a
se

 o
f 

o
n
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

re
vi

o
u
s 

ye
a
r.

 

F
ro

m
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
, 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 w

id
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
s,

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n 

st
re

n
g

th
e
n
e
d

 b
y 

th
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 
a
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 C

o
m

m
itt

e
e
 w

ith
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

n
in

e
 t

o
 r

e
p
la

ce
 t
h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n
e
l. 

  
  
  
  

5
0

. 
In

 2
0
1
3/

1
4
, 
th

e
 J

o
in

t 
In

ve
st

m
e
n
t 

A
d
vi

so
ry

 C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 (

JI
A

C
) 

in
cl

u
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n
e
l t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
ith

 t
e
n
 

o
th

e
rs

 d
ra

w
n
 f
ro

m
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
tio

n
s 

a
n
d
 in

cl
u
d
in

g
 t
ra

d
e
 

u
n
io

n
 r

e
p
re

se
n
ta

tio
n
. 
 T

h
e
 J

IA
C

 e
va

lu
a
te

s 
a
n
d
 a

d
vi

se
s 

o
n
 f

u
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
r 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

. 
 

5
1

. 
W

e
 h

a
ve

 p
re

vi
o
u
sl

y 
co

m
m

e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 a

b
se

n
ce

 o
f 

fo
rm

a
l 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
  

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 J

IA
C

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 p

a
n
e
l. 

 D
u
ri
n
g

 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
, 
w

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 I

n
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 A

cc
o
un

tin
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

w
a
s 

p
re

se
n
te

d
 t
o
 e

a
ch

 m
e
e
tin

g
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
n
e
l w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 a

 

su
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
is

su
e
s.

  W
h
ile

 t
h
is

 d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 

re
g

u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 
m

a
tt
e
rs

 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n
e
l, 

it 
d
o
e
s 

n
o
t 
p
ro

vi
d
e
 e

xp
lic

it 
a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

s 
o
r 

re
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
tio

n
s 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 J

IA
C

's
 v

ie
w

 o
f 
fu

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

. 
 O

u
r 

co
n
ce

rn
 is

 a
 la

ck
 o

f 
e
vi

d
e
n
ce

 o
f 

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
. 

 I
f 
a
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
t 

S
ys

te
m

s 
o
f 
in

te
rn

a
l c

o
n
tr

o
l 

co
n
tin

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
e
d
 in

 
re

sp
e
ct

 o
f 
th

e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n
d
s 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r 

th
e
  

p
re

ve
n
tio

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
te

ct
io

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u
d
 a

n
d
 ir

re
g

u
la

ri
tie

s 
a
re

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
o
ry

 

A
s 

th
e
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 r

e
m

it 
o
f 
th

e
 

n
e
w

 P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 is

 
d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
, 

th
e
re

 is
 s

co
p
e
 t
o
 

co
n
si

d
e
r 

its
 a

cc
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

th
e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
  

M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
 g

o
ve

rn
in

g
 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
s 

is
 s

lig
h
ly

 n
a
rr

o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 s

u
g

g
e
st

e
d
 b

y 
g

u
id

a
n
ce

 
g

iv
e
n
 b

y 
S

co
tt

is
h
 M

in
is

te
rs

 

T
h
e
re

 is
 s

co
p
e
 t
o
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

st
re

n
g

th
e
n
 

g
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
  

Page 29



G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
  

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

6
 

 
 

u
n
d
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 is
su

e
 w

e
re

 t
o
 a

ri
se

, 
w

e
 f

e
e
l t

h
a
t 

e
xi

tin
g
 

m
in

u
te

s 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
or

tin
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

p
ro

vi
d
e
 a

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
u
d
it 

tr
a
il 

to
 d

e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

 c
o
n
ce

rn
s 

ra
is

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
itt

e
e
 

a
n
d
 d

e
ci

si
o
n
s 

ta
ke

n
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

a
y.

 

5
2

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
w

e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

L
o
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 
P

e
n
si

o
n
 S

ch
e
m

e
 

G
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 g
u
id

a
n
ce

  
d
e
sc

ri
b
e
s 

th
a
t 
a
ll 

ke
y 

st
a
ke

h
o
ld

e
rs

 

sh
o
u
ld

 h
a
ve

 a
n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
ity

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
p
re

se
n
te

d
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e
 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

, 
w

ith
 e

q
u
a
l a

cc
e
ss

 t
o
 p

a
p
er

s.
 T

h
e
 r

e
m

it 
o
f 

th
e
 J

IA
C

 is
 r

e
st

ri
ct

e
d
 t

o
 in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

o
ve

rs
ig

h
t 
o
f 

o
th

e
r 

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
tiv

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 p

o
si

tio
n
 is

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
e
n
tir

e
ly

 b
y 

th
e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

5
3

. 
T

h
e
 b

e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 p

ri
n
ci

p
le

s 
in

 t
h
e
 g

u
id

a
n
ce

 a
ls

o
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e
s 

th
e
 g

o
ve

rn
in

g
 c

o
m

m
itt

e
e
s 

to
 in

cl
u
d
e
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
p
re

se
n
ta

tio
n

: 

e
m

p
lo

yi
n
g

 a
u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
(a

s 
is

 t
h
e
 c

a
se

),
 s

ch
e
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 

(i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

e
n
si

o
n
e
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

),
 in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l o

b
se

rv
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

xp
e
rt

 a
d
vi

so
rs

. 
V

o
tin

g
 r

ig
h
ts

 m
a

y 

b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l a

u
th

o
ri
tie

s,
 b

u
t 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

le
a
r 

a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
sp

a
re

n
t 
a
n
d
 in

cl
u
d
e
 t
h
e
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n
 f

o
r 

n
o
t 

e
xt

e
n
d
in

g
 v

o
tin

g
 

ri
g

h
ts

 t
o
 e

a
ch

 b
o
d
y 

o
r 

g
ro

u
p
 r

e
p
re

se
n
te

d
. 

 

5
4

. 
F

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 2

0
1
5
, 

th
e
 L

o
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 S

ch
e
m

e
 

(S
co

tla
n
d
) 

R
e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

2
0
1
4
 in

tr
o
d
u
ce

s 
n
e
w

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

sc
h
e
m

e
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

. 
 A

 k
e
y 

ch
a
n
g

e
 is

 t
h
e
 c

re
a
tio

n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

B
o
a
rd

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

it 
a
lo

n
g
si

d
e
 t

h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 C

o
m

m
itt

e
e
 

fu
n
ct

io
n
s 

o
f 

th
e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 T

h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 w
ill

: 

 

·
 

b
e
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
ss

is
tin

g
 t

h
e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 in
 

re
la

tio
n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
ith

 s
ch

e
m

e
 r

e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

R
e
g

u
la

to
r 

·
 

co
n
si

st
 o

f 
e
q

u
a
l n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

sc
h
e
m

e
 e

m
p
lo

ye
r 

re
p
re

se
n
ta

tiv
e
s 

a
n
d
 t
ra

d
e
 u

n
io

n
s 

(4
 f
ro

m
 e

a
ch

 s
id

e
) 

5
5

. 
T

h
e
 S

co
tt
is

h
 P

u
b
lic

 P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

A
g

e
n
cy

 (
S

P
P

A
) 

is
su

e
d
 d

ra
ft
 

re
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

fo
r 

co
n
su

lta
tio

n
 o

n
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
, 

w
ith

 a
 

cl
o
si

n
g

 d
a
te

 o
f 

1
1
 N

o
ve

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
 W

h
ile

 a
d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
d
s 

o
f 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
d
ra

ft
 r

e
g

u
la

tio
n
s,

 t
h
e
re

 is
 li

m
ite

d
 t

im
e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n
d
s 

to
 s

e
t 
u
p
 n

e
w

 b
o
a
rd

s 
to

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 

tim
e
ta

b
le

. 
  

5
6

. 
T

h
e
 in

tr
o
d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 
lo

ca
l p

e
n
si

o
n
 b

o
a
rd

s 
m

a
rk

s 
a
 s

e
a
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 

in
 t

h
e
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 o
f 

L
G

P
S

 f
u
n
d
s.

  
In

 r
e
co

g
n
iti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e
se

 

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

, 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 n

e
w

 p
e
n
s
io

n
 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
 is

 c
o
n
tin

u
in

g
 w

ith
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

it 
o
f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

p
e
n

si
o
n
s 

p
a
n
e
l b

u
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

re
vi

e
w

 a
s 

th
e
 n

e
w

 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 e
vo

lv
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
se

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 t

o
 g

a
th

e
r 

p
a
ce

 in
 t

h
e
 

n
e
xt

 f
e
w

 m
o
n
th

s.
 

5
7

. 
T

h
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 in

 g
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 p
ro

vi
d
e
s 

a
n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
ity

 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

u
n
d
s 

to
 r

e
vi

e
w

 t
h
e
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
itt

e
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

JI
A

C
 a

n
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

e
xt

e
n
d
in

g
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

st
a
ke

h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
  

R
e
fe

r 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
 

Page 30



G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
  

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

7
 

 
 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
  

5
8

. 
W

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 a

u
d
it 

o
p
in

io
n
 w

a
s 

in
tr

o
d
u
ce

d
, 
w

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 in

 t
h
e
 b

o
d
y 

ch
a
rg

e
d
 w

ith
 

g
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 in
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

th
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f
u
n
d
s.

  
It
 m

a
d
e
 s

e
n
se

 

th
a
t 
g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l m

a
tt
e
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

is
cu

ss
e
d
 b

y 
 

th
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

p
a
n
e
l. 

 T
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 p

a
n
e
l i

s 
to

 s
e
t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
n
d
s 

a
n
d
 t

o
 o

ve
rs

e
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
ito

r 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
vi

n
g

 c
o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 t
h
e
 

re
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
tio

n
s 

o
f 

th
e
 J

IA
C

. 
 H

o
w

e
ve

r,
 a

s 
th

e
re

 is
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
n
e
l a

n
d
 J

IA
C

, 
th

is
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 

m
o
d
e
l i

s 
n
o
t 

a
s 

ro
b
u
st

 a
s 

it 
co

u
ld

 b
e
. 
 I
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 

sc
ru

tin
y 

fr
o
m

 d
e
ci

si
o
n
 m

a
ki

n
g

, 
a
n
d
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

g
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 

ch
a
n
g

e
s 

ta
ki

n
g
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

in
 t

h
e
 L

G
P

S
, 
it 

is
 t

im
e
ly

 t
o
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
e
 r

o
b
u
st

n
e
ss

 o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 r

o
le

. 
  

5
9

. 
In

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 w

ith
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
itt

e
e
s,

 a
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
 

sh
o
u
ld

 f
it
 w

it
h
in

 a
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

 g
o
o
d
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n

ce
 

a
cr

o
ss

 a
ct

iv
iti

e
s.

  
O

p
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

ve
d
 a

cc
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 m

ig
h

t 

in
cl

u
d
e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
 f
u
ll 

co
u
n
ci

l o
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 A

u
d
it,

 R
is

k 

a
n
d
 S

cr
u
tin

y 
C

o
m

m
itt

e
e
 (

A
R

S
C

) 
to

 t
a
ke

 a
n
 a

d
d
iti

o
n
a
l o

ve
rs

ig
h
t 

ro
le

 o
f 

p
e
n
si

o
n
 a

ct
iv

iti
e
s 

o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf 

o
f 
th

e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n
g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 E

xi
st

in
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

s 
w

o
u
ld

 c
o
n
tin

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 b

y 

th
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
 b

u
t 

in
 a

d
d
iti

o
n
, 
fu

ll 
co

u
n
ci

l o
r 

A
R

S
C

 

w
o
u

ld
 r

e
ce

iv
e
 a

d
d
iti

o
n
a
l r

e
p
o
rt

s 
in

 t
h
e
ir
 s

cr
u
tin

y 
ro

le
. 

  

R
e
fe

r 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
 

  In
te

rn
a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

6
0

. 
T

h
e
 f

u
n
d
s’

 f
in

a
n
ci

a
l s

ys
te

m
s 

a
re

 p
ro

vi
d
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
ng

 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. W
e
 w

e
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 t

a
ke

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it 

o
f 

th
e
 

co
u
n
ci

l t
h
a
t 
h
ig

h
 le

ve
l f

in
a
n
ci

a
l c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 t
h
a
t 

im
p
a
ct

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

p
e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
s
’ 
fin

a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
p
e
ra

te
d
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
ly

 d
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
 

6
1

. 
W

e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
vi

e
w

e
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 r
e
la

tin
g

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
tio

n
 t
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 s

ys
te

m
s.

  
O

u
r 

o
ve

ra
ll 

co
n
cl

u
si

o
n
 

w
a
s 

th
a
t 
th

e
 N

E
S

P
F

 h
a
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
ys

te
m

s 
o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l 

co
n
tr

o
l i

n
 p

la
ce

 in
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 

a
u

d
it

 

6
2

. 
In

te
rn

a
l a

u
d
it 

p
ro

vi
d
e
s 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

ro
p
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

w
ith

 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 o
n
 t

h
e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ri
sk

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 

in
te

rn
a
l c

o
n
tr

o
l a

n
d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

fo
r 

th
e
 

fu
n
d
s.

  
R

e
le

va
n
t 

in
te

rn
a
l a

u
d
it 

p
la

n
s 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s 
w

e
re

 

p
re

se
n
te

d
 d

ir
e
ct

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

p
a
n
e
l f

o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
st

 t
im

e
 d

u
ri
n
g

 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 P

o
si

tiv
e
 a

ss
u
ra

n
ce

s 
w

e
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t
h
e
 p

a
n
e
l i

n
 

re
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l a

u
d
its

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 p

a
yr

o
ll 

a
n
d
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 

fu
n
d
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l c

o
n
tr

o
ls

. 

6
3

. 
G

e
n
e
ra

lly
, 

w
e
 s

e
e
k 

to
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l a

u
d
it 

w
h
e
re

ve
r 

p
o
ss

ib
le

 a
n
d
, 
a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

ce
ss

, 
w

e
 c

o
n
cl

u
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 in

te
rn

a
l a

u
d
it 

se
rv

ic
e
 o

p
e
ra

te
s 

Page 31



G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
  

  
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

8
 

 
 

in
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
ith

 r
e
le

va
n
t 

P
u
b
lic

 S
e
ct

o
r 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s 
(P

S
IA

S
) 

w
h
ic

h
 e

n
a
b
le

s 
u
s 

to
  
ta

ke
 a

ss
u
ra

n
ce

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
ir
 d

o
cu

m
e
n
ta

tio
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
ce

d
ur

e
s.

 

6
4

. 
F

ro
m

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
, 
th

e
 n

e
w

 a
cc

o
u
n
ts

 r
e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

re
q

u
ire

 t
h
e
 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 C

o
m

m
itt

e
e
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
ke

 a
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l r

e
vi

e
w

 o
f 

th
e
 

in
te

rn
a
l a

u
d
it 

fu
n
ct

io
n
 a

s 
it 

re
la

te
s 

to
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n
d
 m

a
tt

e
rs

. 

 

A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e
te

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

fr
a
u

d
  

6
5

. 
T

h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f
u
n
d
s 

co
m

p
lie

d
 w

ith
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

va
n
t 
fr

a
u
d
 a

n
d
 

ir
re

g
u
la

ri
ty

 p
o
lic

ie
s 

o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
ci

l d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 

m
a
tt
e
rs

 w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 d

ra
w

 t
o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
  

 

6
6

. 
T

h
e
 N

E
S

P
F

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

s 
in

 t
h
e
 N

a
tio

n
a
l F

ra
u
d
 I

n
iti

a
tiv

e
 (

N
F

I)
 

a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
ci

l w
id

e
 e

xe
rc

is
e
. 
 T

h
e
 N

F
I 

u
se

s 
e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 

d
a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

si
s 

te
ch

n
iq

u
e
s 

to
 c

o
m

p
a
re

 in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 b
y 

d
iff

e
re

n
t 

p
u
b
lic

 s
e
ct

o
r 

b
o
d
ie

s 
a
n
d
 d

iff
e
re

n
t 

fin
a
n
ci

a
l s

ys
te

m
s 

to
 id

e
n
tif

y 
d
a
ta

 m
a
tc

h
e
s 

th
a
t 
m

ig
h
t 

in
d
ic

a
te

 

th
e
 e

xi
st

e
n
ce

 o
f 
fr

a
u
d
 o

r 
e
rr

o
r.

  
O

ve
ra

ll,
 w

e
 c

o
n
cl

u
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

co
u
n
ci

l h
a
s 

sa
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 f
o
r 

in
ve

st
ig

a
tin

g
 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 d
a
ta

 m
a
tc

h
e
s 

id
e
n
tif

ie
d
 b

y 
th

e
 N

F
I.

  
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 

c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e
te

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
o

rr
u

p
ti

o
n

 

6
7

. 
T

h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

re
ve

n
tio

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
te

ct
io

n
 o

f 

co
rr

u
p
tio

n
 in

 t
h
e
 N

E
S

P
F

 a
re

 s
a
tis

fa
ct

o
ry

 a
n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
w

a
re

 

o
f 

a
n
y 

sp
e
ci

fic
 is

su
e
s 

th
a
t 

w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
co

rd
 in

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

. 

O
u

tl
o

o
k
  

6
8

. 
T

h
e
 L

o
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 S

ch
e
m

e
 (

S
co

tla
n
d
) 

R
e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

2
0
1
4 

a
p
p
ly

 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p
ri
l 2

0
1
5
. 
T

h
e
se

 in
tr

o
d
u
ce

 a
 

n
e
w

 p
e
n
si

o
n
 s

ch
e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p
la

ce
s 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
L
G

P
S

 a
s 

co
n
st

itu
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 L

o
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 S

ch
e
m

e
 

(S
co

tla
n
d
) 

R
e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

2
0
0
8
 (

a
s 

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
),

 "
th

e
 2

0
0
8
 

S
ch

e
m

e
".

  

6
9

. 
In

 c
o
n
tr

a
st

 t
o
 t

h
e
 2

0
0
8
 S

ch
e
m

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s 

a
 f

in
a
l s

a
la

ry
 

p
e
n
si

o
n
 s

ch
e
m

e
 in

 w
h
ic

h
 u

n
re

d
u
ce

d
 b

e
n
e
fit

s 
w

e
re

 p
a
ya

b
le

 t
o

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
6
5
, 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
ch

e
m

e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s 

fo
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 a

cc
ru

e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 o

n
 a

 c
a
re

e
r 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 r

e
va

lu
e
d
 

e
a
rn

in
g

s 
b
a
si

s 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

u
n
re

d
u
ce

d
 b

e
n
ef

its
 t

o
 b

e
 p

a
ya

b
le

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
ir
 s

ta
te

 p
e
n
si

o
n
 a

g
e
. 

7
0

. 
T

h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n
e
l h

a
s 

co
n
si

d
e
re

d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s 
o
n
 t

h
e
 im

p
lic

a
tio

n
s 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 r
e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
 is

 w
e
ll 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 h

a
vi

n
g

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 2

0
1
5
 S

ch
e
m

e
 in

 a
 n

e
w

 s
e
ct

io
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 N

E
S

P
F

 w
e
b
si

te
, 

a
n
d
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 o
n
 

th
e
 n

e
w

 s
ch

e
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 t

h
e
y 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
.

Page 32



B
e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
, 

u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
  
  

 
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 1

9
 

 
 

B
e

s
t 

v
a
lu

e
, 
u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

 

7
1

. 
A

d
m

in
is

te
ri
ng

 a
u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
h
a
ve

 a
 s

p
e
ci

fic
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

e
n
su

re
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

b
e
st

 v
a
lu

e
 in

 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

th
e
y 

p
ro

vi
d
e
. 
 T

h
is

 r
e
q

u
ire

s 
co

n
tin

u
o
u
s 

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ile

 m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
 b

a
la

n
ce

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 q

u
a
lit

y 
a
n
d
 

co
st

 a
n
d
 h

a
vi

n
g

 r
e
g

a
rd

 t
o
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y,

 e
q

u
a
l o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
iti

e
s 

a
n
d
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b
ili

ty
. 
T

h
e
re

 is
 a

ls
o
 t

h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 

p
u
b
lic

ly
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

lo
ca

l p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

st
a
ke

h
o
ld

e
rs

 k
n
o

w
 w

h
a
t 

q
u
a
lit

y 
o
f 

se
rv

ic
e
 is

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 

th
e
y 

ca
n
 e

xp
e
ct

 

in
 t

h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 
 

7
2

. 
T

h
e
 N

E
S

P
F

 h
a
s 

a
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
tio

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

w
h
ic

h
 

in
cl

u
d
e
s 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

e
a
su

re
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

. 
 F

ro
m

 

A
p
ri
l 2

0
1
4
, 

w
o
rk

flo
w

 s
ys

te
m

s 
h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n 

u
se

d
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 w
ith

 a
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 p
re

se
n
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

to
 t

h
e
 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n
e
l. 

7
3

. 
T

h
e
 f

u
n
d
 a

ls
o
 h

a
s 

a
 F

u
n
d

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 

su
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
In

ve
st

m
e
n
t 

P
ri
n
ci

p
le

s 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

In
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y.
  
T

h
e
se

 d
o
cu

m
e
n
ts

 li
n
k 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
st

ra
te

g
y 

to
 lo

n
g

 t
e
rm

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s 

a
n
d
 d

e
fin

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 c
ri
te

ri
a
. 

 In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

7
4

. 
N

in
e
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l f

u
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 p
ro

vi
d
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

u
p
d
a
te

s 
o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
se

 a
re

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
se

d
 f
o
r 

p
re

se
n
ta

tio
n

 t
o

 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
. 
 A

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

s 
a
re

 u
se

d
 d

e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 

th
e
 m

a
n
d
a
te

, 
a
n
d
 a

n
 o

ve
ra

ll 
co

m
p
o
si

te
 b

e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 is
 

ca
lc

u
la

te
d
 b

y 
th

e
 g

lo
b
a
l c

u
st

o
d
ia

n
. 

7
5

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 a
g

a
in

st
 b

e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 is
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 

th
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n
e
l a

n
d
 J

IA
C

. 
 E

xh
ib

its
 8

 a
n
d
 9

 s
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 o

n
e
, 

th
re

e
 a

n
d
 f

iv
e
 y

e
a
r 

re
su

lts
 a

g
a
in

st
 b

e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 f
o
r 

N
E

S
P

F
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 T

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 F
u
n
d
. 
  

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 m
e
a
su

re
s 

a
n
d
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 li
n
ke

d
 w

ith
 p

ri
o

ri
tie

s 
 

F
u

n
d
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t o

f 
In

ve
st

m
e
n
t 

P
ri
n
ci

p
le

s 
a
n
d
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
tio

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

a
re

 in
 

p
la

ce
 

M
e
a
su

re
m

e
n
t o

f 
in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 is
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y 

th
e
 

g
lo

b
a
l c

u
st

o
d
ia

n
 

R
e
vi

se
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

to
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

p
a
n
e

l a
n
d
 J

IA
C

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

R
e
g
u
a

la
r 

m
o
n
ito

ri
n

g
 o

f 
fu

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 

Page 33



B
e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
, 

u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
  
  

 
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
 

 
 

E
x
h

ib
it

 8
: 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 –
 m

a
in

 f
u

n
d

  

 
Y

e
a
r 

1
 

Y
e
a
r 

3
 

Y
e
a
r 

5
 

M
a
in

 f
u
n
d

  
1
0
.3

9
 

9
.9

7
 

1
3
.9

1
 

B
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 
9
.0

6
 

8
.4

9
 

1
4
.1

3
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

N
E

S
P

F
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

   

7
6

. 
T

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 m
a
rk

e
t 

va
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
 w

a
s 

1
0
.4

%
. 
T

h
is

 

co
m

p
a
re

s 
w

e
ll 

w
ith

 t
h
e
 b

e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 o
f 

9
.0

%
 o

ve
r 

o
n
e
 y

e
a
r,

 b
u
t 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 5

 y
e
a
rs

, 
g

ro
w

th
 w

a
s 

1
3
.9

%
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 b
e
h
in

d
 t

h
e
 

b
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 o
f 

1
4
.1

%
. 
  

  
 

7
7

. 
T

h
e
 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 f
u
n
d
 is

 m
a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
 p

o
si

tiv
e
 p

o
si

tio
n
 in

 t
h
e
 

lo
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

s 
b
u
t 

is
 f
a
lli

n
g

 b
e
h
in

d
 b

e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 in
 t
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

e
r 

te
rm

. 
 T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y 

is
 t
o
 t
u
rn

 t
h
is

 p
o
si

tio
n
 

a
ro

u
n
d
. 

    

E
x
h

ib
it

 9
: 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 –

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
u

n
d

  

 
Y

e
a
r 

1
 

Y
e
a
r 

3
 

Y
e
a
r 

5
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 f
u
n
d

  
0
.1

3
 

6
.9

4
 

1
3
.2

1
 

B
e
n
ch

m
a
rk

 
3
.1

3
 

8
.0

6
 

1
2
.7

2
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

N
E

S
P

F
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

 

Page 34



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 I
 –

 S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a
u

d
it

 r
is

k
s
  
  
  
 

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 2

1
 

 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

 –
 S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

s
 

T
h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 k

e
y 

a
u
d
it 

ri
sk

s 
id

e
n
tif

ie
d
 a

t 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 w
e
 a

d
d
re

ss
e
d
 e

a
ch

 r
is

k 
in

 a
rr

iv
in

g
 a

t 
o
u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

fin
a
n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

. 
 

 A
u

d
it

 R
is

k
 

 A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
  

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 p
e

n
si

o
n

 f
u
n
d
 in

cl
u
d
e
s 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

sc
h
e
d
u
le

d
 a

n
d
 

a
d
m

itt
e
d
 b

o
d
ie

s,
 e

a
ch

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
tin

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n
d

 o
n
 a

 

m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
si

s.
 E

ff
e
ct

iv
e

 d
a
ta

 v
e
ri
fic

a
tio

n
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
ito

ri
n

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
 t
o

 b
e

 in
 p

la
ce

. 

R
is

k
: 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 d

e
d

u
c
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e

 d
a
ta

 h
e
ld

 o
n
 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d
s
' 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
s
 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 o

r 
in

c
o
m

p
le

te
. 
  

 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
a
rr

y 
o
u
t 

m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
a
so

n
a
b

le
n
e
ss

 c
h
e
ck

s 
o
n
 e

m
p
lo

ye
rs

' 

co
n
tr

ib
u

tio
n
s 

a
n

d
 t

im
e
lin

e
ss

 o
f 

p
a

ym
e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
s.

  
O

n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a

l b
a
si

s,
  

 

a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 is
 r

e
q

u
e
st

e
d
 f

ro
m

 k
e
y 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 a
n
d
 in

 a
d

d
iti

o
n
, 

fr
o
m

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3

 

E
m

p
lo

ye
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 e

m
p
lo

ye
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 v

ia
 

th
e
 in

te
rn

e
t 

e
.g

. 
n
o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 o

f 
st

a
rt

e
rs

, 
le

a
ve

rs
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

. 
 B

o
th

 e
m

p
lo

ye
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 i-

co
n
n
e
ct

 a
re

 a
va

ila
b

le
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

ye
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g
 o

f 
st

a
rt

e
rs

, 
le

a
ve

rs
 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

. 
 H

o
w

e
ve

r,
  

i-
co

n
n
e
ct

 is
 g

e
a
re

d
 m

o
re

 t
o
w

a
rd

 m
u
lti

p
le

 e
ve

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

in
g
 a

n
d
 is

 u
se

d
 b

y 
th

e
 la

rg
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 in
 t
h

e
 f

u
n
d
. 

  

A
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 a

u
d
it 

p
ro

ce
ss

, 
e
m

p
lo

ye
e
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

ye
r 

co
n
tr

ib
u
tio

n
s 

a
re

 v
e
ri
fie

d
 f

o
r 

a
 

sa
m

p
le

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

. 
 A

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 

re
co

n
ci

lia
tio

n
s 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 d

iff
e
re

n
t 

sy
st

e
m

s 
a
re

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y 

p
e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 v

e
ri
fie

d
 a

s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 a

u
d

it 
p
ro

ce
ss

. 

C
o
ve

n
a

n
ts

 a
re

 h
e
ld

 in
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

a
d
m

itt
e
d

 b
o

d
ie

s 
to

 s
a

fe
g
u
a
rd

 a
g
a
in

st
 a

n
y 

im
p
a
ct

 o
n
 

th
e
 f

u
n
d
s 

if 
 s

m
a
ll 

b
o

d
ie

s 
e

xp
e
ri
e
n
ci

n
g
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l d

iff
ic

u
lti

e
s 

ca
n
 n

o
 lo

n
g
e
r 

a
ff

o
rd

 t
h

e
ir
 

co
n
tr

ib
u

tio
n
s.

  
W

h
e
re

 a
n
 a

d
m

itt
e
d
 b

o
d

y 
d

o
e
s 

n
o
t 
h

a
ve

 s
p
o
n
so

r,
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
s 

b
o
d

ie
s 

to
 h

a
ve

 c
o

n
tin

g
e

n
cy

 p
la

n
s 

in
 p

la
ce

.  
 

Page 35



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 I
 –

 S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a
u

d
it

 r
is

k
s
  
  
  
 

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 2

2
 

 
 

 A
u

d
it

 R
is

k
 

 A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

Im
p

a
ir

m
e
n

t 
lo

s
s
e

s
  

A
 s

ig
n
ifi

ca
n
t 

d
e

b
t 
in

 r
e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

a
 t
e
rm

in
a
tio

n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 

fr
o
m

 a
 f
o
rm

e
r 

a
d
m

itt
e
d
 b

o
d

y 
h

a
s 

b
e
e

n
 t
h

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
a

 d
is

p
u
te

 f
o
r 

so
m

e
 t

im
e
. 
T

h
is

 m
a
tt
e
r 

n
e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e

ly
 c

o
n
cl

u
d

e
d
. 

R
is

k
: 

th
e
 f

u
n

d
 i
s
 n

o
t 
e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

o
u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 d

e
b

t.
 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

s 
w

e
re

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 H

e
a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n
ce

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 d

e
b

t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

u
rs

u
e

d
. 
 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l l

e
g

a
l a

d
vi

se
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
ci

l r
e

vi
e

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 c

a
se

 a
n

d
 e

n
te

re
d

 in
to

 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n
s 

w
ith

 r
e

p
re

se
n
ta

tiv
e
s 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

a
d
m

itt
e
d
 b

o
d

y.
  

T
h
e
 c

a
se

 is
 p

ro
g
re

ss
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

  
le

g
a

l p
ro

ce
ss

 a
n

d
 it

 is
 e

xp
e
ct

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 f

a
vo

u
ra

b
le

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
a
ch

e
d
. 

  

 R
e
fe

r 
p

a
g

e
 9

 

 

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fe

e
s

 

In
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fe
e
s 

in
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

p
ri

va
te

 e
q

u
ity

 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 r
e
fle

ct
e
d
 in

 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
d
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
s 

th
a

t 
m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 

fe
e
s 

a
re

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 a
cc

o
u
n
te

d
 

fo
r.

 

R
is

k
: 

th
e
 f

u
n

d
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o

m
p
ly

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 C

o
d
e
. 

F
u
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

st
a

te
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e

vi
e

w
e
d
 t

o
 id

e
n
tif

y 
fe

e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
d

 f
o
rm

e
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

va
lu

e
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
o
se

 w
h

ic
h
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

a
si

ly
 id

e
n
tif

ie
d

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
cl

o
se

d
 

w
ith

in
 in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 

fe
e
s.

  
 

 R
e
fe

r 
p

a
g

e
s
 7

 a
n

d
 8

 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n

s 
p
a
n
e

l h
a
s 

in
cr

e
a
se

d
 f

ro
m

 4
 t
o
 5

 

a
n
d
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

la
n
 e

xi
st

s 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 J

IA
C

 is
 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

cr
u
tin

y 
o
f 

in
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 b
u
t 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
itt

e
e
 t
o
 t
h

e
 p

a
n

e
l n

e
e
d

 t
o
 

b
e
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e

n
e
d

. 
 

R
is

k
: 

g
iv

e
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 a

n
d
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

, 
th

e
re

 m
a
y
 

b
e
 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

ro
b
u
s
t 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
.  

W
h
ile

 it
 w

a
s 

a
g
re

e
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

le
a
re

r 
a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 J

IA
C

 t
o
 t

h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n

e
l, 

in
 o

u
r 

vi
e

w
 t

h
e
re

 is
 m

o
re

 t
o
 d

o
. 

  
 

 R
e
fe

r  
p

a
g

e
s
 1

5
 t

o
 1

7
 

Page 36



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 I
 –

 S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a
u

d
it

 r
is

k
s
  
  
  
 

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 2

3
 

 
 

 A
u

d
it

 R
is

k
 

 A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

In
te

rn
a
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

T
h
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

se
ct

io
n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
tio

n
a
l s

tr
u
ct

u
re

 n
e

e
d
s 

to
 b

e
 

re
vi

e
w

e
d
 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 it

 is
 f

it 
fo

r 
p
u
rp

o
se

 a
n

d
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e

 n
e
e
d
s 

o
f 

th
e
  

a
d
m

in
is

te
ri
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
In

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r,

 a
ct

io
n

 is
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
su

re
 t

h
e
re

 is
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

ca
p
a
ci

ty
 a

n
d
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 a

t 
se

n
io

r 

le
ve

l t
o
 a

ct
 f

o
r 

th
e
 lo

n
g
 t
e
rm

 b
e
n
e
fit

 o
f 

th
e
 f

u
n
d
s.

  

R
is

k
: 

th
e
 l
o

n
g
 t

e
rm

 g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d

 i
s
 w

e
a
k
e
n
e

d
 b

y
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

 m
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

.  

A
 r

e
vi

se
d

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 h
a
d
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s 

g
o
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 b

e
n
ch

m
a
rk

e
d
 w

ith
 N

A
P

F
 

b
e
fo

re
 f

in
a
lis

a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

tio
n
. 

 H
o

w
e

ve
r,

 t
h

is
 p

la
n
 h

a
s 

b
e
e

n
 o

ve
rt

a
ke

n
 b

y 

e
ve

n
ts

 w
ith

in
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
ity

 C
o

u
n
ci

l. 
  

A
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
st

ru
ct

u
ri
n
g
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ce

d
 in

 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 

 S
ta

g
e

 3
 is

 n
o

w
 in

 p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o
r 

st
a
ff

 b
e
lo

w
 h

e
a

d
s 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

s 
p
a

rt
 o

f 

th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

, 
th

e
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 p

e
n
si

o
n
s 

fu
n
d
 s

e
ct

io
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
. 

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

In
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
ch

m
a
rk

. 

R
is

k
: 

in
 t

h
e
 l
o

n
g
e
r 

te
rm

, 
p

o
o
r 

re
tu

rn
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
p

e
n
s
io

n
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

. 
 I

n
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

e
r 

te
rm

, 
th

e
re

 m
a
y
 

b
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n

d
s
 o

n
 f

u
n
d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 in
cl

u
d
e
s 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

ve
 d

o
cu

m
e
n
ta

tio
n
: 

·
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

In
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

P
ri

n
ci

p
le

s 

·
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
 

·
 

P
re

se
n
ta

tio
n
s 

a
n

d
 f

e
e
d

b
a
ck

 f
ro

m
 f
u
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

·
 

R
e
g
u

la
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 r
e
p
o
rt

s 

·
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 m
e
a
su

re
d
 o

n
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 3

 o
r 

5
 y

e
a
r 

b
a
si

s.
  

·
 

A
ct

io
n
 t
a
ke

n
 b

y 
JI

A
C

 a
n

d
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a

n
e

l. 
 

T
h
e
se

 w
e
re

 r
e
vi

e
w

e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e

 y
e

a
r 

to
 c

o
lla

te
 a

ss
u
ra

n
ce

s 
o
n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
ke

n
 b

y 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

.  

 R
e
fe

r  
p

a
g

e
s
 1

9
 a

n
d

  
2
0
  

 

 

  
 

Page 37



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 I
I 

–
 A

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
  
  
  
  

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 2

4
 

 
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

I–
 A

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

p
o

in
t/

p
a
g

e
 

Is
s
u

e
, 
ri

s
k
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
c
ti

o
n

/r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

1
/9

 
A

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
n
t 

d
e

b
t 
in

 r
e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

a
 t
e
rm

in
a
tio

n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 

fr
o
m

 a
 f
o
rm

e
r 

a
d
m

itt
e
d
 b

o
d

y 
h

a
s 

b
e
e

n
 t
h

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
a

 

d
is

p
u
te

 f
o
r 

so
m

e
 t
im

e
. 

 

R
is

k
: 

th
e
 F

u
n

d
 i

s
 n

o
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 m
a
n

a
g

in
g

 c
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 d
e
b

t.
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

: 
T

h
is

 m
a
tt
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s 

to
 b

e
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e

ly
 

co
n
cl

u
d

e
d
. 

  

 R
e
p
re

se
n

ta
tiv

e
s 

fo
r 

b
o
th

 t
h

e
 p

e
n
si

o
n

 

fu
n
d
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 a
d
m

itt
e
d
 b

o
d

y 
a
re

 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 f
a
vo

u
ra

b
le

 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
.  

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a

n
ce

 

 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 

Page 38



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 I
I 

–
 A

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
  
  
  
  

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
co

tla
n
d
 P

e
ns

io
n
 F

u
n
d
s 

- 
A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it 

P
a
g

e
 2

5
 

 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

p
o

in
t/

p
a
g

e
 

Is
s
u

e
, 
ri

s
k
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
c
ti

o
n

/r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

2
/ 

1
6
-

1
7

 

W
ith

 t
h
e
 s

ig
n
ifi

ca
n
t 

ch
a
n

g
e

s 
ta

ki
n
g
 p

la
ce

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 

g
o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

 o
f 

p
e
n
si

o
n
 f

u
n

d
s,

 it
 is

 t
im

e
ly

 t
o
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
e
 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

 o
f 

th
e
 s

cr
u
tin

y 
a

n
d
 a

cc
o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
 r

o
le

s 
in

 

re
la

tio
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 f
u

n
d
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
h
e

 o
p

e
ra

tio
n
 a

n
d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

JI
A

C
. 

 W
ith

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e
 p

a
n
e
l 

a
n
d
 J

IA
C

, 
th

e
 m

o
d
e
l i

s 
p
e
rh

a
p
s 

n
o
t 
a
s 

ro
b
u
st

 a
s 

it 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e
. 

 

In
 t
e
rm

s 
o
f 

a
cc

o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
th

e
re

 

is
 p

e
rh

a
p
s 

a
n

 o
ve

rs
ig

h
t 
ro

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 A

u
d

it,
 R

is
k 

&
 S

cr
u
tin

y 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
.  

R
is

k
: 

th
e
re

 i
s

 i
n

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
  

o
n

 

th
e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
s

. 
  

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

: 
W

ith
 t
h
e
 im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

tio
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
, 
th

e
re

 is
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
ity

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

a
d
m

in
is

te
ri
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 r

e
vi

e
w

 t
h
e
 a

d
e

q
u
a
cy

 o
f 

th
e
 

sc
ru

tin
y 

a
n
d
 a

cc
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 it
 h

a
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n
 a

n
d

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

JI
A

C
. 

  
  

 

A
n
 o

p
tio

n
s 

p
a
p
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
m

it,
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n

 o
f 

JI
A

C
 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 b

y 
th

e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 in

 N
o
ve

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

A
s 

th
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

B
o
a
rd

 e
vo

lv
e

, 
th

e
 r

e
m

it 
a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

tio
n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 C

o
m

m
itt

e
e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
vi

e
w

e
d
, 

a
s 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

O
p
tio

n
s 

P
a

p
e
r 

–
 

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r  

2
0
1
4

 

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

tio
n
 o

f 
 

a
p
p
ro

ve
d
 o

p
tio

n
 –

 

b
y 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 

  

 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE:   PENSIONS COMMITTEE     
   
DATE:     24 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
REPORT BY:   HEAD OF FINANCE   
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  NEW LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSIONS SCHEME 

(SCOTLAND)(2015)  
 
REPORT NUMBER:   PC/NOV14/LGPS 
 
 
  

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

  

A report was presented to the November 2013 meeting of the Pensions 
Committee setting out the key features of the New Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Scotland) 2015 and outlining the work to be undertaken by the Pension 
Fund Section in creating a project plan to meet the implementation deadline date 
of 1 April 2015.  This report provides an update on the progress in implementing 
the new scheme. 

  

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
  

It is recommended that the Committee note this report. 
  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

  
All costs related to the introduction of the new scheme will be met either by the 
Pension Fund or, employers within the Fund, if they are required by legislation to 
do so. 

  

Project management, compliance and risk, communications, training, technical 
support will all be met from with NESPF existing budget, with additional 
costs monitored. 

  

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

  

None 

  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 41



5. NEW LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (SCOTLAND) 2015 

  
5.1 Background 

  
The reform of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in Scotland, 
as with all the main public sector pension schemes, follows Lord Hutton of 
Furness’ report of March 2011 and the resulting Public Service Pensions 
Act 2013.  
  

The Scottish Local Government Pensions Advisory Group (SLOGPAG) has 
been appointed to deliver on the content and operation of a new Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 2015 for Scotland. 
  

The primary aim of SLOGPAG is to facilitate the delivery of a scheme that 
takes a balanced consideration of the unique Scottish position, which 
continues to provide valued benefits for scheme members, and is 
affordable, sustainable and fair to employers, scheme members and tax 
payers. 
  

Consequently, the high level objectives for the reform of the LGPS are set 
as follows: 
  

·    To ensure the sustainability of the scheme, the design of the new 
scheme should be such that existing members remain in the 
scheme and non-members are encouraged to join 

·    Levels of contribution rates which ensure protection of the lowest 
paid within the workforce 

·    Provide quality benefits to scheme members. 
  
The new LGPS (Scotland) will take effect from 1 April 2015 replacing the 
existing scheme from that date. 
  

As the new scheme commences all existing scheme members and new 
entrants will become members of the new LGPS (Scotland). 
  

The scheme design provides for a reformed scheme, which meets the 
legislative requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (the Act), 
and  delivers a scheme which is fair and valued by all scheme members – 
full time and part time workers; managers, administrators and manual 
workers; and long and short serving employees alike. The new scheme 
represents a fair deal for Local Government workers, employers and for the 
taxpayer, ensuring that the scheme remains both affordable and 
sustainable. 

    

 

Page 42



5.2 

5.2.1 

Heads of Agreement 
  
The Heads of Agreement on the LGPS (Scotland) 2015 were signed and 
published on 12th December 2013, with the final regulations laid before the 
Scottish Parliament on 9 June 2014. 
 

5.2.2 
  

Headline Features of the new scheme include: 
  

·     Change to Career Average Revaluation - this change reflects a 
requirement within the PSP Act. This type of scheme is particularly 
beneficial for lower paid members, individuals for whom promotion 
opportunities are limited or those where their earnings may reduce 
towards the end of their career. 

  

·     Change in the accrual rate from 1/60th to 1/49th
 

  

·     Retention of the 5 point tiered employee contribution rate, which is 
‘banded’. This provides for fairer contribution rates for scheme 
members at the lower end of the pay scale.  As contributions benefit 
from tax relief, a tiered arrangement of contributions, where scheme 
members pay a proportion of earnings up to each limit and then 
higher contributions on earnings above each limit, also improves the 
perceived fairness of contributions at different salary levels. 

  

 ·     Lump sum death in service benefit remains at three times pay 

  

 ·     Pensions for partners who cohabit and civil partners equal to those  
       benefits afforded to married couples. 

  

·     Retention of the ill-health pension provisions through a two-tier 
benefit scheme, with a third tier provided by a discretionary 
employer lump sum payment to operate alongside the scheme.  

  

·     The 50:50 Option – this is a new scheme design feature which 
allows employees eligible for LGPS membership or scheme 
members to elect to pay 50% of normal contributions, and in return 
accrue only 50% of their pension during that time.  Benefits such as 
death in service lump sum would still be retained.  This feature is not 
designed to replace long term membership of the full scheme. 

  

      ·    The scheme has been designed to help ensure it is both fair and     
           affordable into the future.  The Act also requires that costs are     
           managed through a cost control mechanism which requires the  
           scheme to set a cap, the ‘employer cost cap’.  This cap is used  
           when measuring changes in the cost of the scheme as assessed at  

Page 43



         valuations and will ensure that action is taken if the cost of the   
         scheme increases or decreases outside of the margins set around 
the 
         ‘employer cost cap’. 
  

An ‘at a glance’ guide to the features of the proposals post 2015 LGPS is 
available on the Pension Fund website www.nespf.org.uk with further 
information available at http://www.scotlgps2015.org. 

 
5.3 

 
New Scheme Implementation Project 
  
Implementation of the new scheme is a major project undertaking for the 
Pension Fund section and as such work commenced on the project 
planning to meet the delivery deadline of 1 April 2015 in late 2013.  
  
Project initiation document and a project plan have been approved and are 
being implemented by the Pensions Section with regular reporting to the 
Head of Finance and the Pensions Committee. 
  
The key objectives of the project plan are: 
  

·    To ensure the effective implementation of the new LGPS on 1 April 
2015 

·    Identify our key stakeholders and work with them to ensure that their 
individual needs are met for the delivery of the new scheme 

·    Identify and communicate the key features of the new LGPS 
·    Develop a training programme that supports both internal and 

external needs 
·    Have the technical capability in place to deliver the new scheme 

through partnership with our software provider Heywood’s 
·    Ensure that all key documentation is revised and issued to our 

stakeholders 
·    Fully liaise with SLOGPAG to ensure full engagement in the 

consultation and follow- through in implementing the new scheme 
·    Fully liaise with our Scottish counterparts through the Scottish 

Pensions Liaison Group and Scottish Pensions and Governance 
Group to ensure a consistent approach to implementation 

·    Take advantage of any lessons learned through liaison with our 
English and Welsh counterparts as their new scheme was effective 
from April 2014 

·    Report regularly to the Pensions Committee of Aberdeen City 
Council 

 
 
 
 

Page 44



5.4 
  
  
5.4.1 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5.4.2 
  

  

  

  
  
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
5.4.3 
  
  
  

  

  

5.4.4 

Project Plan Update  
  
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and 
Savings) (Scotland) Regulations 2014, following the consultation period 
which ended on 7th August 2014, were published on the 27th August 2014. 
  
The Regulations provide for the preserved transitional protection for certain 
groups and to ensure that active members within 10 years of their Normal 
Pension Age under the 2009 Scheme on 1 April 2012 are able to draw 
benefits which are no less than they would have been able to draw under 
the 2009 Scheme.    
  
Two training sessions were recently held:- 
  
· The Local Government Association (LGA) held an Employer training 

session on 23rd September 2014 at the Copthorne Hotel, Aberdeen. 
This session was open to all LGPS (Scotland) Employers and 3 
NESPF staff members attended.  

· NESPF also held an Employer training session on 23rd October 2014 
at the AECC. Each Employer was offered two spaces on the course 
with a recommendation that a representative from both Payroll and 
HR attend. In total 59 Employer delegates attended the training, 
representing 32 different Employers. In addition to the Employer 
delegates, 14 pension staff also attended the session.  
 

 Attendee feedback has been very positive with requests from several   
employers for further staff training. 
  

 Further training sessions are due to take place:- 
  
· The official LGE practitioner training will be held in Edinburgh on the 

20th and 27th January 2015. In-house training session for NESPF 
staff has been requested with a date to be confirmed. 

· Individual Employer training is to take place from December 2014 
and will be delivered by the Employer Relationship Team. 

 

Ongoing project work 
  
· Annual Benefit Statements were issued at the end of September 

2014 and included information on protections for existing members, 
change to Normal Pension Age and examples of benefits calculations 
under the new Scheme 
 

· A national website on the new Scheme is now available at 
http://scotlgps2015.org/. The Pension Fund has promoted the 
website to Scheme members both in the annual benefit statements 

Page 45



and on the NESPF website. 
 

· An information video is in production 
 

· A Payroll Guide was issued to Employers on 26th September 2014 
 
· The Altair IT system (calculates members benefits) – A provisional 

date of November 2014 for release update to Altair 5.1 from software 
provider Heywood’s. Once this is in place internal testing of the 
system will begin in line with the test plan – scheduled for 
December/January 2015. 
 

5.5 
  
5.5.1 
  
  
  
  
5.5.2 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Governance Arrangements 

  

The Public Services Pension Act 2013 sets out new governance 
requirements for pension funds across the UK, implementing the Hutton 
recommendations. The Draft LGPS Governance Regulations was open for 
consultation from 30th September to 11th November 2014. 
 
A copy of the Funds’ response to the consultation exercise is attached at 
Appendix I 
  

A copy of the Heads of Agreement on the new Governance arrangement 
has previously been issued to the Pensions Committee. 
  

·     Scheme Advisory Board – the Act requires the new Scheme 
regulations to provide for the establishment of a board with 
responsibility for providing advice to Scottish Ministers, at their 
request, on the desirability of changes to the Scheme. In addition for 
locally administered schemes, like the Local Government Pension 
Scheme in Scotland, where there is more than one scheme 
manager, the board can also provide advice (on request or 
otherwise) to the Scheme managers or the Scheme’s pension 
boards, in relation to the effective and efficient administration and 
management of the Scheme or any pension fund of the Scheme. 

  

·     Pension Board  - the Act will require Scheme regulations to provide 
for the establishment of a board with responsibility for assisting the 
scheme manager, or each scheme manager, in:- 

·     securing compliance with the scheme regulations and other 
legislation relating to the governance and administration of 
the scheme and any statutory pension scheme connected 
with it; 

  

Page 46



  
 
 
 
  
 
5.5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

·     securing compliance with requirements imposed in relation to 
the scheme and any connected scheme by the Pensions 
Regulator, and 

  

·     such other matters as the scheme regulations may specify 

  

Status of the Pension Board  
 

· The Pension Board is not a decision making Body 
· The Pension Board is not a scrutiny function  
· The Pension Board will be collectively and individually accountable to 

the Pensions Committee 
 

5.5.4 The Pension Board will determine the areas they wish to consider including 
 amongst others:- 
  

· reports produced for the Pensions Committee 

· requisition reports from the scheme managers on any aspect of the 
fund 

· monitor investments and the investment principles/strategy/guidance 

· the fund annual report 
· external voting and engagement provisions 

· fund administrative performance 

· actuarial reports and valuations 

· funding policy 

· any other matters that the Pensions Board deem appropriate 

 
5.5.5 The Heads of Agreement provide further details on the Pension Board in 

relation to: 
  

·     Membership of the boards 

·     Management of conflict of interest 
·     Role in supporting the Scheme Employer 
·     Requirement to publish a separate annual statement of their work 

 
5.5.6 A timetable has been set out by the Scottish Public Pensions Agency 

(SPPA) for the creation of new governance arrangements and this was 
previously issued to the Pensions Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



5.5.7 
 

Scottish Ministers have now issued a Model Constitution for the Board 
which sets out a recommendation for the minimum of: 
 
 4 union representative one from each of the following: 
 

· UNISION 
· UCAT 
· GMB 
· UNITE 

 
Each trade union has been contacted by the Pension Fund section and 
nominations from each organisation will be sought by 31 December 2014. 
 

4 Employer representatives, from: 
 
Councils 
Schedule Bodies  
Admitted Bodies 
 
The Council representatives are proposed as elected members.  The Fund 
will seek an elected member representative from each of the three Councils, 
Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire Council and Moray Council. 
Nominations will be sought from all remaining scheme employers for the 
remaining Board position.  Nominations to be sought by 30 November 2014. 
 

5.58 Initial training for Pension Board members will take place during spring 
2015. 
 

5.6 
  
  

Risk Register 
  
The risk register remains the key management document with regard to 
internal controls in delivering the new scheme arrangements. 
  
A copy of the risk register is appended in Appendix II. 
  
The risk register sets out the key risks which have been identified in 
implementing the new Scheme. These include:- 
 

·     resources with the pension section 
·     staff knowledge 
·     employer knowledge 
·     documentation 
·     costs 
·     system updates 

  
 

Page 48



The risk register sets out risk control measures, assesses whether these 
are operating effectively and actions proposed. Each identified risk is 
scored based on likelihood and impact. 
  
It will be updated on an ongoing basis and reported to the Pensions 
Committee on a quarterly basis. 

  

6. IMPACT 

  

6.1  The implementation date of 1 April 2015 will only be the starting point for ongoing 
change for the Pension Fund,  Not only the nature of benefit administration is 
changing from a ‘final salary scheme to a career average scheme but also the 
closer monitoring of scheme costs through the cost cap and the revisions to 
scheme governance.  The Pension Fund welcomes these changes and will 
participate actively in the transformation process. 

  

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

  

Heads of Agreement, New Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Scotland) – Summary 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014. 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings) 
(Scotland) Regulations 2014 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Governance) (Scotland) Regulations 2014 
(Draft regulations for consultation) 

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

  

Laura Goodchild 
Pensions Manager 
lgoodchild@nespf.org.uk 
01224 264158 

  

 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (GOVERNANCE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2014 
 
Aberdeen City Council Pension Fund (North East Scotland Pension Fund) - 
CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
This document details the comments of Aberdeen City Council Pension Fund on the draft 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Governance) (Scotland) Regulations 2014 (the “2014 
Regulations”).   
 
A - KEY POINTS  
 

1. Lack of Clarity & Inconsistencies: It is clear that much of the wording in the 
regulations has been copied from the governance Heads of Agreement which is 
inappropriate for primary legislation.  A number of areas of the 2014 Regulations 
lack clarity and would potentially lead to practical issues in implementing the 
Regulations.   
 

2. Appropriate breadth of appointments for Pension Boards: There is a concern that 
the 2014 Regulations confuse the issue of employer and member representation 
and the technical compliance function of the Pension Board. There needs to be 
sufficient flexibility to populate Pension Boards with suitably qualified persons. 
There is a significant risk that employer and member representatives do not have 
sufficient knowledge and understanding to perform the role.  
 

3. Active role of the Scheme Advisory Board: It will be important that the Scheme 
Advisory Board has an active role in advising the Scottish Ministers, rather than 
simply advising on the request of the Scottish Ministers, to ensure that the Scottish 
Ministers continue to have an active involvement and awareness of LGPS matters.  
 

4. Common purpose and duties: The Pensions Boards and Scheme Advisory Board 
should each operate as a single body with a common purpose and duty to act in the 
best interests of the relevant stakeholders in the fund and (where appropriate) the 
wider LGPS scheme. The bodies only therefore need to appoint a single secretary 
and a single set of advisors to support their respective functions. Such decisions 
would be made by agreement of the members of the relevant body in accordance 
with its constitution. It would be confusing, potentially divisive and inefficient to 
operate a dual “member versus employer” structure within a single body of the 
nature of the Scheme Advisory Board and Pensions Boards. With that in mind, all 
reference to this dual structure (e.g. “two sides” etc.) should be removed from the 
2014 Regulations.  

 
5. Representation of members: The reference to member representatives in the 

2013 Act has been limited to trade union representation in the 2014 Regulations. A 
significant number of members of the LGPS are not members of a trade union body.  

 
6. Standard of knowledge and understanding: The 2014 Regulations could further 

clarify the levels of knowledge and understanding required of Pension Board 
members by cross referring to the Pension Regulator’s Codes of Practice. An 
equivalent approach could also be taken in relation to members of the Scheme 
Advisory Board. This would help inform the prospective members of the 
expectations on them in performing their roles.  
 

Page 51



2 

 

7. Inconsistencies with the Heads of Agreement: A number of sections of the 2014 
Regulations are inconsistent with the governance Heads of Agreement, particularly 
relating to the Scheme Advisory Board and Pension Board. 
 

8. Responses to Governance Consultation from early in 2014: It appears that 
responses to the governance consultation earlier in 2014 appear not to have been 
taken into account in the drafting of the 2014 Regulations. 
 

 
B - DETAILED COMMENTS 
 
REGULATION COMMENT  
Scheme Advisory Board 
1(4) Certain Scheme managers manage multiple funds. This should be reflected 

in the definition here. 

‘Local government employer’ is not a helpful term. Nor is the definition 
helpful. Per Schedule 1 of the 2014 regulations: ‘“Scheme employer” means 
a body listed in Schedule 2 employing an employee who is eligible to be a 
member and includes an admission body.’ The additional term “local 
government employer” is therefore otiose as it has the same meaning as 
Scheme employer.   

2(1) Constitution and remit: The regulation should formally constitute and 
establish the Scheme Advisory Board.  

2(2)  The word “main” should be deleted as being ambiguous and confusing. The 
functions of the Scheme Advisory Board will be as stated in the 2014 
Regulations, with any other functions requiring to be expressly detailed 
therein.  

The Scheme Advisory Board should simply be constituted to advise the 
Scottish Ministers, rather than only doing so at their request.  

Provisions should be included around the Scheme Advisory Board’s ability to 
determine its own constitution, procedures etc.  

Provisions should be included around funding the costs of the Scheme 
Advisory Board, how the costs will be split and/or determined and whether 
there will be any budget oversight for the Scheme Advisory Board.  

2(3) Enforceability: This provision is not sufficiently clear in setting out the 
intention behind the requirement of a body to “have regard to the advice”. 
This may result in uncertainty and potential legal challenge, which would 
not be in the best interests of LGPS stakeholders.   2(3) should be removed. 

3(1) and 
3(2) 

Membership: As above, restricting the membership of the Scheme Advisory 
Board to a “bipartite body” of local government employer and trade union 
representatives would provide sufficient flexibility to ensure that this body 
includes appropriately representative and qualified persons from time to 
time to perform the relevant functions.  

The 2013 Act does not make specific reference to trade union 
representatives, rather providing for collective representation for members 
of the funds.  

Knowledge and expertise: The words “inform their role” could be replaced 
with “perform their role to an appropriately competent standard of 
knowledge, skill and care and with regard to any relevant guidance issued 
by the Pensions Regulator from time to time”. 

3(4) Secretaries: the role should be defined.   
A single body should not have two secretaries. This would create confusion 
and cause unnecessary duplication, confusion and bureaucracy. A single 
secretary should be appointed by agreement of the members of the Scheme 

Page 52



3 

 

Advisory Board and the constitution could deal with such matters as 
rotation, term, re-appointment, removal etc. 

3(5)  Advisers: The body itself should appoint its own advisers - acting 
collectively and with their common duty to the stakeholders of the funds in 
mind. The presence of multiple advisers would not be appropriate for the 
operation of a body of this nature nor would it be conducive to effective 
and efficient governance.  

Pensions Boards 
5 Constitution and remit:  

Responsibility for establishing the Pension Board and maintaining the 
Board’s constitution should be made clear. The Board itself should not be 
allowed to change its own constitution – this would not be a good 
governance model.   
The drafting of section 5(1) and (2) should be combined to more clearly 
state the responsibilities of the Pension Boards. In addition, (c) should be 
removed as being unnecessary and creating ambiguity. The remit of the 
Pension Board should be clearly set out in section 5 and not elsewhere.  See 
also the below comments on paragraph 8 of the 2014 Regulations. 

6(1) Membership:  The 2013 Act does not make specific reference to trade union 
representatives, rather providing for collective representation for members 
of the funds.  
In addition, the regulation should expressly set out that the Scheme 
Manager shall determine the membership of the Pension Board and the 
manner in which the appointment/removal process, terms of appointment, 
constitution etc. shall operate in consultation with the members and 
employers.  

6(2) The 2013 Act does not make specific reference to trade union 
representatives, rather providing for collective representation for members 
of the funds. The text ‘depending on size of membership’ does not appear 
to have any meaning and should be removed. 
4 is too large a minimum - -it is unlikely that smaller LGPS funds in Scotland 
will achieve representatives from 4 employers and/or members.  
In addition, employers do not have a collective organisation from which 
nominations can be sought. (CoSLA represent the Councils in Scotland). 
The allowance of substitutes is inconsistent with the Heads of Agreement.    

Knowledge and expertise:  The words “inform their role” should be 
replaced with “perform their role to an appropriately competent standard 
of knowledge, skill and care and otherwise in accordance with the 
requirements and guidance of the Pensions Regulator from time to time.” 

6(3) Remove the word ‘relevant’ 

6(4) Secretaries: as above for the Scheme Advisory Board.    
This was not included in the Heads of Agreement. 

6(5) Advisers: The body itself should appoint its own advisers - acting 
collectively and with their common duty to the stakeholders of the funds in 
mind. The presence of multiple advisers would not be appropriate for the 
operation of a body of this nature nor would it be conducive to effective 
and efficient governance 

6(7) The Scheme Advisory Board role is to advise, not mediate or adjudicate. 
Also the Scheme Advisory Board is unlikely to be established prior to 1 April 
2015 to assist in the event of disagreement in the establishment of the 
Pension Boards.   

6(8) Add the word ‘reasonable’.  Costs should also be agreed by the Scheme 
Manager.   

8 Implementation of remit: the remit of the Pension Board is set out in 

Page 53



4 

 

paragraph 5 and paragraph 8 of the 2014 Regulations in fact details the 
matters that the Pensions Board may review to support its remit. The 
heading of this clause should therefore be amended to avoid confusion and 
to ensure it is clear that the remit should not extend beyond that set out in 
the 2013 Act and provided for in paragraph 5 of the 2014 Regulations. The 
current drafting may otherwise lead to ambiguity around the extension of 
the remit of the Pensions Board beyond what is anticipated by the 2013 Act.  
Reference to investments should read ‘may’ rather than ‘shall’. 
8(1) – ‘Pension Committee’ should read ‘pension fund’. 
8(1)(d) wording is inconsistent with the Heads of Agreement.   
8(2) should be deleted and any reference to investments of the fund and 
investment principals etc. included in 8(1), making it clear that the 
Pensions Board shall be to review such activities in order to fulfil its remit 
set out in paragraph 5 of the 2014 Regulations and the 2013 Act.  

8(3) Requisitioning reports:  
Change ‘requisition’ to ‘seek’  
The paragraph should also be amended so that the Pensions Board may only 
seek reports from the Scheme Manager where it (acting reasonably) 
determines that this would be necessary to enable it to properly carry out 
its functions in accordance with the 2014 Regulations.  

9 Pension Committee and Pension Board disagreements: the title of this 
section is unhelpful - the Pension Board and the Scheme Manager have 
different functions.  A more appropriate title should refer to the situation 
when the Pension Board asks the Scheme Manager to reconsider a decision.   
The provision should also be amended to ensure that a review may only be 
requested where the Pension Board has demonstrated valid concerns in 
relation to the decision being in breach of any applicable law, regulation or 
Code of Practice.  
The grounds for review set out in paragraph 9(2) are too loosely construed 
and should therefore be amended accordingly and appropriately aligned to 
the remit of the Pensions Board itself. In particular, 2(a) and (d) are so 
general in nature as to enable a review to be requested on virtually any 
decision of the Scheme Manager.  
This section is also inconsistent with the Heads of Agreement. 

9(3) The definition of a ‘joint secretarial report’ is unclear.  Separate reports on 
the issue by the Pensions Board and the Scheme Manager may be more 
appropriate and practical.  There should also be a requirement for these 
reports to be passed to the Scheme Advisory Board within certain 
timescales to allow the Scheme Advisory Board to undertake its role as 
defined in 9(4). 

Training Programme 
10 This should include appropriate reference to the requirements and guidance 

issued by the Pensions Regulator from time to time. 
Also consistent across all Scottish Funds. 

 

Page 54



V
e
rs

io
n

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 F

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
Im

p
a
c
t

R
is

k
 S

c
o

re

P
a

rt
ia

lly
 

3
4

1
2

P
a

rt
ia

lly
 

4
3

1
2

S
e

m
in

a
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ite
 v

is
its

 t
o

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

P
a

rt
ia

lly
 

4
3

1
2

R
e
vi

e
w

 a
ll 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ta
tio

n
 in

 2
0

1
4

P
a

rt
ia

lly
 

3
4

1
2

Y
e

s 
3

3
9

A
g

re
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
tio

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

P
M

, 
P

P
O

 -
 B

e
n

e
fit

s 
a

n
d

 S
P

O
Y

e
s 

3
3

9
0

1
-N

o
v-

1
4

E
P

/N
M

/A
L

L

L
G

0
1

-N
o
v-

1
4

S
ta

ff
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 in
co

rr
e

ct
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 t

o
 

sc
h

e
m

e
 e

m
p

lo
ye

rs
 a

n
d

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 
T

ra
in

in
g

 d
a

te
s 

to
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
te

s 
p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 b

y 
E

ri
c 

P
e

n
n

o
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
2

0
1

4
L

G
/E

P

0
1

-N
o
v-

1
4

L
G

/E
P

/M
S

/J
H

0
1

-N
o
v-

1
4

In
cr

e
a

se
 le

ve
l o

f 
co

n
ta

ct
 w

ith
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
o

st
s,

 
n

e
w

s 
le

tt
e

rs
, 

se
m

in
a

rs
 e

tc
. 

 
P

ro
vi

d
e

 d
e

a
d

lin
e

s 
fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 f

e
e

d
b

a
ck

 t
o

 n
e

sp
f

0
1

-N
o
v-

1
4

0
1

-N
o
v-

1
4

P
e

n
s

io
n

 S
e

c
ti

o
n

 -
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
, 

  

d
u

e
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

2
0

1
4

 V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
, 

th
e

re
 i

s
 

li
m

it
e

d
 r

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

P
e

n
s

io
n

s
 S

e
c

ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
n

e
w

 

s
c

h
e

m
e

 w
it

h
in

 i
ts

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
tr

u
tu

re

O
n

g
o

in
g

 r
e

vi
e

w
 o

f 
st

a
ff

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

E
ff

e
ct

ve
 m

o
n

ito
ri

n
g

 b
y 

th
e

 
P

ro
je

ct
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 d
is

cu
ss

e
d

 
a

t 
m

o
n

th
ly

 m
e

e
tin

g

L
G

S
ta

ff
 K

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 -

 D
u

e
 t

o
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

w
o

rk
 p

re
s

s
u

re
s

, 
ti

m
e

 t
o

 t
ra

in
 t

h
e

 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
ta

ff
 i

s
 l

im
it

e
d

 

N
e
w

 L
G

P
S

 2
0
1
5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
 

K
e
y
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s

A
re

 C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

?

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 

R
is

k
 (

li
k

e
li

h
o

o
d

 x
 i

m
p

a
c

t)
  

  
  

  
  A

c
ti

o
n

 n
o

w
 p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
R

e
v
ie

w
 D

a
te

R
is

k
 D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
h

re
a

t 
to

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s

s
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e

S
c

o
p

e
/p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 

o
f 

ri
s

k
R

is
k

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

D
o
cu

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 t
o

 b
e

 
re

vi
e

w
e

d
 a

t 
m

o
n

th
ly

 m
e

e
tin

g
 

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 c

o
rr

e
ct

 r
e

co
rd

s 

C
o
st

s 
a

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y 
to

 t
h

e
 

P
e

n
si

o
n

s 
C

o
m

m
itt

e
e

 o
f 

A
C

C
 a

n
d

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
st

s 
n

o
w

 w
ill

 m
iti

g
a

te
 

a
d

d
iti

o
n

a
l w

o
rk

 in
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 

M
o

n
ito

ri
n

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y 
th

e
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s

is
te

n
c

y
 -

 e
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l 

to
 m

e
e

t 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
, 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 u

n
io

n
s

D
o
cu

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 n
o

t 
a

cc
u

ra
te

 o
r 

re
a

d
y 

in
 t

im
e

 f
o

r 
in

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 
sc

h
e

m
e

 

C
o

s
ts

 -
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 a
re

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 

s
c

h
e

m
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

s
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 t
o

 b
e

 

m
o

n
it

o
re

d

C
o
st

s 
to

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

si
o

n
s 

fu
n

d
 a

t 
a

 t
im

e
 

w
h

e
n

 p
e

n
si

o
n

 f
u

n
d

s 
a

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

sc
ru

tin
y 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 o
ld

 

a
n

d
 n

e
w

 s
c

h
e

m
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 t
o

 b
e

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

s
 c

o
rr

e
c

tl
y
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 

M
e

e
tin

g
s 

to
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 m
o

n
th

ly
 

fr
o

m
 J

a
n

 o
n

w
a

rd
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 

a
n

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 
to

 s
ta

ff
 a

t 
re

g
u

la
r 

st
a

ff
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 m

e
e

tin
g

s 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 -

 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

n
e

w
 c

a
re

 

s
c

h
e

m
e

, 
a

n
d

 c
a

p

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 a
ss

e
ss

 in
te

rn
a

l r
is

k
L

G
/C

M

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

sc
h

e
m

e
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 a
n

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 o
f 

n
e

w
 s

ch
e

m
e

, 
fa

ilu
re

s 
a

re
 

m
a

d
e

 in
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 r
e

su
lti

n
g

 in
 

b
e

n
e

fit
 m

is
ca

lc
u

la
tio

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

st
s 

to
 

th
e

 F
u

n
d

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
ci

l
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

6

Page 55



V
e
rs

io
n

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 F

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
Im

p
a
c
t

R
is

k
 S

c
o

re

N
e
w

 L
G

P
S

 2
0
1
5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
 

K
e
y
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s

A
re

 C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

?

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 

R
is

k
 (

li
k

e
li

h
o

o
d

 x
 i

m
p

a
c

t)
  

  
  

  
  A

c
ti

o
n

 n
o

w
 p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
R

e
v
ie

w
 D

a
te

R
is

k
 D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
h

re
a

t 
to

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s

s
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e

S
c

o
p

e
/p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 

o
f 

ri
s

k
R

is
k

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

P
a

rt
ia

lly
 

3
3

9

P
ro

je
ct

 P
la

n
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
e

vi
e

w
s 

a
n

d
 o

ve
rs

ig
h

t 
in

 p
la

ce
Y

e
s 

3
3

9

Y
e

s 
3

3
9

0
1

-N
o
v-

1
4

0
1

-N
o
v-

1
4

0
1

-N
o
v-

1
4

E
P

/A
L

L

G
G

/N
M

/A
L

L

J
H

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

a
ly

st
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

co
n

su
lta

tio
n

 e
xe

rc
is

e
 a

n
d

 
re

p
o

rt
 t

o
 P

e
n

si
o

n
s 

C
o

m
m

itt
e

e
 

o
n

 r
e

vi
e

w
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 D

e
c 

2
0

1
5

E
m

p
o

ri
u

m
 n

o
t 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

n
e

w
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 h
o

ld
 c

o
rr

e
ct

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 
w

o
u

ld
 r

e
su

lt 
in

 in
co

rr
e

ct
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 

to
 s

ta
ke

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

E
m

p
o

ri
u

m
 t

o
 b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 w

ith
 n

e
w

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 b
y 

E
P

M
e

e
tin

g
s 

to
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 m
o

n
th

ly
 

fr
o

m
 J

a
n

 o
n

w
a

rd
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 

a
n

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 
to

 s
ta

ff
 a

t 
re

g
u

la
r 

st
a

ff
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 m

e
e

tin
g

s 

F
a

il
u

re
 t

o
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

 P
S

P
A

 2
0

1
3

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
P

e
n

si
o

n
s 

B
o

a
rd

 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
fir

m
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
ith

 
P

e
n

si
o

n
s 

R
e

g
u

la
to

r 
g

u
id

a
n

ce
 

F
a

il
u

re
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 s
u

c
c

e
s

s
fu

l 
ro

ll
 

o
u

t 
o

f 
s

y
s

te
m

 r
e

v
is

io
n

s
 

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

b
e

n
e

fit
s 

co
rr

e
ct

ly
 a

n
d

 in
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a

n
n

e
r,

 
re

su
lti

n
g

 in
 c

o
st

s 
to

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
 

P
ro

je
ct

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
to

 e
n

su
re

 
o

ve
ra

ll 
co

n
tr

o
l o

f 
p

ro
je

ct
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 

C
o
n

su
lta

tio
n

 o
n

 P
e

n
si

o
n

s 
B

o
a

rd
 in

 li
n

e
 

w
ith

 is
su

e
 o

f 
d

ra
ft

 r
e

g
u

la
tio

n
s,

 P
e

n
si

o
n

s 
A

n
a

ly
st

 t
o

 r
e

vi
e

w
 r

e
g

u
la

to
r 

g
u

id
a

n
ce

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
ci

l
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

6

Page 56



    
S

ta
tu

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 3
1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

 

 
  P

ro
je

ct
 N

a
m

e
: 
N

e
w

 L
G

P
S

 S
co

tla
n
d

 2
0

1
5

 
D

ir
e
ct

o
ra

te
: 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
: 

F
in

a
n

ce
, 
P

e
n
si

o
n

s 
 

F
o
cu

s:
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 N
e
w

 L
G

P
S

 S
co

tla
n

d
 2

0
1

5
 

 P
re

p
a
re

d
 B

y
: 

 D
o
cu

m
e

n
t 
O

w
n

e
r(

s)
 

P
ro

je
ct

/O
rg

a
n

iz
a

tio
n

 R
o

le
 

L
a

u
ra

 G
o

o
d

ch
ild

  
P

ro
je

ct
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
 

 
 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 B

y
: 

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
p

o
n

so
r 

D
a
te

 

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n

ce
  

 

P
ro

je
ct

 S
u

p
p
o

rt
 A

n
a

ly
st

 
 

  P
ro

je
c

ts
 S

ta
tu

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 V
e

rs
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
 V
e

rs
io

n
 

D
a
te

 
A

u
th

o
r 

C
h
a

n
g
e

 D
e

sc
ri
p

tio
n

 

1
 

1
/7

/2
0

1
4
 

 
In

iti
a
l D

ra
ft

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 57



   C
o

p
y
 o

f 
m

in
u

te
 o

f 
1

0
th

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 a
tt

a
c

h
e
d

 
C

o
p

y
 o

f 
ri

s
k

 r
e

g
is

te
r 

a
tt

a
c

h
e
d

 
  It

e
m

 
N

o
. 

T
it

le
  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
P

o
s
it

io
n

 
A

g
re

e
d

 A
c

ti
o

n
  

R
is

k
 

     

 L
o

w
 

 M
e
d

iu
m

 
 H

ig
h

 

M
il

e
s
to

n
e
s

 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
  

1
. 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
  

 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o

 
C

o
m

m
itt

e
e

 
 

C
o
p

y 
o
f 

m
o
n
th

ly
 s

ta
tu

s 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 

b
e
 is

su
e

d
 t
o

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 w
ith

 
e
ff

e
ct

 f
ro

m
 e

n
d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

4
 

R
e
g
u

la
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 e

n
su

re
s 

p
ro

p
e
r 

o
ve

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 

p
ro

je
ct

 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o

 
th

e
 N

o
ve

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

m
e
e
tin

g
 o

f 
P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e

 

L
G

 

2
. 

E
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 
S

co
tt
is

h
 M

in
is

te
rs

  
 

T
ra

n
si

tio
n
a

l R
e

g
u

la
tio

n
s 

p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 2

7
 A

u
g
u
st

 2
0
1

4
 

a
ft

e
r 

co
n
su

lta
tio

n
. 

P
ro

p
o
se

d
 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

itt
e
d
 t
o
 

S
co

tt
is

h
 M

in
is

te
rs

 a
n
d
 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

re
g
u

la
tio

n
s 

to
 

fo
llo

w
  

 D
ra

ft
 G

o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

 R
e

g
u

la
tio

n
s 

is
su

e
d
 f

o
r 

co
n
su

lta
tio

n
 3

0
th
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

to
 1

1
th
 N

o
ve

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

. 
 

 

        L
G

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

w
ith

 o
th

e
r 

S
co

tt
is

h
 

F
u
n
d
s 

o
n

 3
1

st
 O

ct
o
b
e
r 

to
 

p
re

p
a
re

 jo
in

t 
re

sp
o
n
se

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 
a
ls

o
 p

re
p
a
re

 in
d
iv

id
u
a

l r
e
sp

o
n
se

 
to

 c
o
n
su

lta
tio

n
. 

 

F
a
ilu

re
 o

f 
S

P
P

A
 t

o
 r

e
sp

o
n
d

 
to

 c
o
n
ce

rn
s 

o
f 

a
d
m

in
is

te
ri

n
g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
re

 t
h

e
 t
ra

n
si

tio
n
 

re
g
s 

co
u
ld

 r
e
su

lt 
in

 d
e

la
y 

in
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

tio
n
 o

f 
fu

ll 
re

g
u
la

tio
n
s 

B
e
n

e
fit

 a
n

d
 A

d
m

in
 

R
e
g
u

la
tio

n
s 

p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

 
 T

ra
n
si

tio
n
a

l 
R

e
g
u

la
tio

n
s 

p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

 

K
L

 

3
. 

E
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 
S

ch
e
m

e
 

E
m

p
lo

ye
rs

  
 

E
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
n
e
d

 f
o
r 

a
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1

4
 

 T
w

o
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
ss

io
n
s 

h
a

ve
 

b
e
e
n

 h
e

ld
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 

e
m

p
lo

ye
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 s

e
ss

io
n
s 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 f

o
r 

D
e
c 

2
0

1
4
 

o
n

w
a
rd

s.
 

   

L
C

 t
o
 in

ve
st

ig
a
te

 o
p
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

 
e
m

p
lo

ye
r 

e
ve

n
ts

  
F

a
ilu

re
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 
e
m

p
lo

ye
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 c

o
u
ld

 
re

su
lt 

in
 in

co
rr

e
ct

 in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 

su
p
p
lie

d
 t

o
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri

n
g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

2
3
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r,

 E
ve

n
t 

le
d
 b

y 
T

im
 H

a
ze

lw
o
o

d
 

a
tt
e
n

d
e
d

 b
y 

3
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
. 

 2
3
 O

ct
o
b

e
r,

 E
ve

n
t 
h

e
ld

 
a
t 
A

E
C

C
, 

5
9
 d

e
le

g
a
te

s 
a
tt
e
n

d
e
d

 f
ro

m
 3

2
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

. 
P

e
n
si

o
n
 

F
u
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 a
ls

o
 

a
tt
e
n

d
e
d

. 
 

L
C

 

4
. 

E
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 
S

ch
e
m

e
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

  

S
co

tt
is

h
 w

e
b
si

te
 is

 n
o

w
 li

ve
 

a
n
d
 li

n
ke

d
 t

o
 f

ro
m

 N
E

S
P

F
 

si
te

. 
 

S
e
n

io
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
tio

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

e
n
g
a

g
in

g
 a

s 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

jo
in

t 
co

m
m

s 
te

a
m

 o
n
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 o

f 
re

vi
e

w
 b

y 

D
e
la

y 
in

 S
L
O

G
P

A
G

 
a
p
p
ro

va
l o

f 
co

m
m

u
n
ic

a
tio

n
s 

co
u
ld

 r
e
su

lt 
in

 c
o

n
ce

rn
 b

y 

T
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

in
iti

a
l 

sc
h
em

e
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y 

K
L
/J

H
 

Page 58



  

 
P

re
se

n
ta

tio
n
 f

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 u

se
 

n
e
a
rl

y 
co

m
p
le

te
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

co
m

m
s 

st
ill

 in
 p

ro
d
u
ct

io
n

. 
 

S
L
O

G
P

A
G

 
sc

h
em

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
n
 f

u
tu

re
 

o
f 

sc
h
em

e
  

e
n
d
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
0
1
4

 

5
. 

E
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 
T

ra
d
e
 U

n
io

n
s  

   

M
e
e
tin

g
 h

e
ld

 1
1

th
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

w
ith

 T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
s 

re
g

a
rd

in
g
 

G
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
 

L
C

 t
o
 c

o
n
ta

ct
 t

ra
d
e
 u

n
io

n
s 

to
 

d
is

cu
ss

 t
h
e
ir
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

co
m

m
u
n
ic

a
tio

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

 

T
ra

d
e
 u

n
io

n
 e

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 t
h
e

ir
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 p
ro

vi
d
e

s 
a
d
d

iti
o
n
a

l s
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
o
 F

u
n

d
 

e
n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 

A
g
re

e
 a

 m
e
e
tin

g
 d

a
te

 
w

ith
 t

ra
d
e
 u

n
io

n
s 

to
 

d
is

cu
ss

 jo
in

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
a
g
e
n

d
a

 
 

L
C

/K
L
/L

G
 

6
. 

A
lta

ir
 S

ys
te

m
 

C
h
a
n

g
e
s 

 

W
e
b
in

a
r 

h
o
s
te

d
 b

y
 H

e
y
w

o
o

d
’s

 
fo

r 
st

a
ff

  
 A

lta
ir
 s

ys
te

m
 u

p
d
a
te

 
p
ro

vi
si

o
n
a
l N

o
ve

m
b
e
r/

D
e
c 

d
a
te

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 t
e
st

in
g
 t
o
 b

e
g

in
 

P
u
b

lic
a
tio

n
 o

f 
re

g
u

la
tio

n
s 

a
w

a
ite

d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

sy
st

e
m

 
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 

D
e
la

ys
 in

 le
g

is
la

tio
n
 c

o
u

ld
 

re
su

lt 
in

 d
e
la

y 
in

 s
ys

te
m

 
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

P
u
b

lic
a
tio

n
 o

f 
a
ll 

re
g
u
la

tio
n
s 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 

tim
e
lin

e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 

fo
r 

sy
st

e
m

 t
e
st

in
g
  

N
M

 

7
. 

R
is

k 
R

e
g
is

te
r 

 
R

is
k 

R
e
g
is

te
r 

re
vi

e
w

e
d
 a

n
d

 
u
p
d
a

te
d
  

T
o
 b

e
 a

tt
a
ch

e
d
 t

o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 s

ta
tu

s 
re

p
o
rt

 w
ith

 e
ff

e
ct

 f
ro

m
 e

n
d
 J

u
ly

 
2
0
1
4

 

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 

re
vi

e
w

 r
is

k 
re

g
is

te
r 

co
u

ld
 

re
su

lt 
in

 p
o
te

n
tia

l e
rr

o
r 

in
 

n
e

w
 s

ch
e
m

e
 im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

tio
n

 

W
e
e
kl

y 
si

g
n
 o

ff
 b

y 
P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

w
ith

 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
 S

p
o
n
so

r 
G

ro
u
p

 

L
G

 

8
. 

S
ta

ff
 T

ra
in

in
g
  

 
W

e
b
in

a
r 

h
o
s
te

d
 b

y
 H

e
y
w

o
o

d
’s

 
fo

r 
st

a
ff
 

 In
-h

o
u
se

 s
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g

 s
e
ss

io
n
 

b
e
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

d
 f

o
r 

e
a
rl

y 
N

e
w

 
Y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 L

G
E

 p
ra

ct
io

n
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 s

e
ss

io
n
s 

in
 E

d
in

b
u
rg

h
 

2
0

th
 a

n
d
 2

7
th
 J

a
n
 2

0
1
5
 if

 s
ta

ff
 

u
n
a
b

le
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 in

-h
o

u
se

. 

N
M

 a
n

d
 E

P
 t

o
 c

o
n
tin

u
e
 t

o
 

p
ro

vi
d
e
 s

ta
ff

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 

e
n
g
a

g
e
 s

ta
ff

 in
 s

ys
te

m
 t

e
st

in
g
 in

 
le

a
d
 u

p
 t

o
 n

e
w

 s
ch

e
m

e
  

B
e
n

e
fit

 T
e
a
m

 p
ro

-a
ct

iv
e
 in

 
st

a
ff

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

h
e

a
d
 o

f 
n
e

w
 

sc
h
em

e
  

S
ys

te
m

 T
e
st

in
g
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5

 
A

L
L

 

9
. 

D
o
cu

m
e
n
t 

R
e
vi

e
w

  
 

A
w

a
iti

n
g
 f

in
a
l r

e
g
u

la
tio

n
s 

to
 

a
llo

w
 r

e
vi

e
w

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

  
E

P
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
ke

 r
e
vi

e
w

  
F

a
ilu

re
 t

o
 r

e
vi

e
w

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

d
o
cu

m
e
n
ta

tio
n
 c

o
u

ld
 r

e
su

lt 
in

 in
co

rr
e
ct

 o
r 

m
is

le
a
d

in
g

 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 b

e
in

g
 is

su
e
d

 t
o
 

sc
h
em

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

  

D
o
cu

m
e
n
ts

 a
p
p
ro

ve
d
 

b
y 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 

E
P

/L
G

 

1
0
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
tio

n
  

 
S

co
tt
is

h
 W

e
b
si

te
 a

p
p
ro

ve
d
 

a
n
d
 is

 n
o

w
 li

ve
. 

P
a

yr
o
ll 

G
u

id
e
 

is
su

e
d
 t

o
 E

m
p
lo

ye
rs

 o
n
 2

6
th
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

  
V

id
e
o
 is

 f
in

is
h

e
d
. 
W

o
rk

 s
til

l 
o
n
g
o

in
g
 o

n
 n

e
w

sl
e
tt

e
r 

a
n

d
 

m
o
d
e
lle

r.
 

L
C

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
ith

 S
co

tt
is

h
 c

o
m

m
s 

te
a
m

 o
n
 p

ro
g
re

ss
in

g
 r

e
vi

se
d
 

d
o
cu

m
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

sc
h
em

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

  

S
co

tt
is

h
 W

id
e
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 t

o
 

e
n
su

re
 c

o
n
si

st
e
n
cy

  
E

st
a
b

lis
h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
e
b
si

te
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d

 
b
o
o
kl

e
ts

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d
 b

y 
S

L
O

G
P

A
G

 
 

L
C

 

Page 59



  1
1
. 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

B
o
a
rd

  
D

ra
ft

 C
o
n
su

lta
tio

n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

B
o

a
rd

 
 M

e
e
tin

g
 h

e
ld

 w
ith

 T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 

re
p
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 B

o
a
rd

 
a
n
d
 s

e
cr

e
ta

ri
a
t 
su

p
p
o
rt

.  
 E

m
p
lo

ye
rs

 c
o
n
ta

ct
e
d
 f

o
r 

T
ra

d
e
 U

n
io

n
 a

ss
o
ci

a
tio

n
s 

to
 

h
e
lp

 w
ith

 e
st

a
b
lis

h
in

g
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 

b
o
a
rd

. 
  

C
o
n
su

lta
tio

n
 t

o
 b

e
 is

su
e
d
 t

o
 a

ll 
sc

h
em

e
 e

m
p
lo

ye
rs

 e
a
rl

y 
N

o
ve

m
b
e
r/

D
e
ce

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

 
  

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 c

o
n
su

lt 
co

u
ld

 
re

su
lt 

in
 la

ck
 o

f 
co

n
se

n
su

s 
o
f 

ro
le

 o
f 

th
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

B
o
a
rd

 

T
im

e
ta

b
le

 is
su

e
d
 b

y 
S

P
P

A
. 

    

L
G

 

 

Page 60



  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
IN

U
T

E
S

  

L
G

P
S

 2
0
1
5
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
e
e
ti

n
g

 
 

D
a
te

  
M

o
n
d
a
y 

1
0

th
 N

o
ve

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

 
T

im
e
 

1
4
:0

0
 

 
A

tt
e
n

d
e
e
s

 
L
a
u
ra

 G
o
o
d
ch

ild
, 
C

la
ir
e
 M

u
lle

n
, 
K

e
n
n
y 

L
yo

n
, 

N
e
il 

M
id

d
le

to
n
, 

L
o
u
is

e
 C

a
m

p
b
e
ll,

 M
a
ir
i 

S
u
tt
ie

, 
E

ri
c 

P
e
n
n
o
 

A
p

o
lo

g
ie

s
 

Jo
a
n
n
e
 H

o
p
e
, 
G

a
ry

 G
ra

y 

It
e
m

 
N

o
te

s
 o

f 
D

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 

1
. 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 

Ø
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

P
a
n
e
l n

o
w

 t
h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e

 

Ø
 N

e
xt

 m
e
e
tin

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 2

4
/1

1
/2

0
1
4
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 in

cl
u
d
e
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 2

0
1
5
 p

ro
je

ct
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

Ø
 M

S
 t

o
 c

ir
cu

la
te

 c
o
p
y 

o
f 

co
m

m
itt

e
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 n

e
w

 
sc

h
e
m

e
 t
o
 p

ro
je

ct
 t
e
a
m

 

 
2
. 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

ith
 

S
co

tt
is

h
 M

in
is

te
rs

 

Ø
 B

o
th

 s
e
ts

 o
f 

R
e
g
u
la

tio
n
s 

a
re

 n
o
w

 o
u
t.
 M

is
c 

A
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
e
 o

u
t 

b
y 

A
p
ri
l 2

0
1
5
. 
S

h
o
u
ld

 ju
st

 b
e
 

m
in

o
r 

co
sm

e
tic

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s 

e
.g

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 f
o
r 

o
ve

r 
6
5
 

ill
 h

e
a
lth

 r
e
tir

e
m

e
n
t 

Ø
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s 
d
u
e
 f

ro
m

 T
e
rr

y 
E

d
w

a
rd

s 
o
n
 a

re
a
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

C
e
rt

ifi
ca

te
s 

o
f 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n
. 
 

Ø
 M

S
/L

G
 t

o
 c

ir
cu

la
te

 r
e
m

it 
o
f 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

B
o
a
rd

 t
o
 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 
  

 

Page 61



Ø
 K

L
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 n

e
xt

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 m
e
e
tin

g
 o

n
 

0
5
/1

2
/2

0
1
4
. 

Ø
 S

co
tt

is
h
 F

u
n
d
s 

m
e
t 
o
n
 3

1
/1

0
/2

0
1
4
 t
o
 d

is
cu

ss
 jo

in
t 

re
sp

o
n
se

 t
o
 G

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 R
e
g
u
la

tio
n
s.

 L
G

 t
o
 

su
b
m

it 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l r

e
sp

o
n
se

 b
y 

cl
o
se

 o
f 
co

n
su

lta
tio

n
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

n
 1

1
/1

1
/2

0
1
4
  

3
. 

E
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 
Ø

 E
m

p
lo

ye
r 

L
G

P
S

 2
0
1
5
 b

u
lle

tin
 t

o
 b

e
 is

su
e
d
 t

h
is

 
m

o
n
th

. 
Ø

 E
m

p
lo

ye
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 s

e
ss

io
n
s 

h
a
ve

 b
o
th

 t
a
ke

n
 p

la
ce

 
w

ith
 p

o
si

tiv
e
 f

e
e
d
b
a
ck

 f
ro

m
 e

m
p
lo

ye
rs

. 
  

Ø
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l e

m
p
lo

ye
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 s

e
ss

io
n
s 

to
 b

e
 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 f
ro

m
 D

e
c 

2
0
1
4
 o

n
w

a
rd

s,
 a

t 
e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 
re

q
u
e
st

 –
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 in

 e
m

p
lo

ye
r 

b
u
lle

tin
 

 

Ø
 T

o
 in

ve
st

ig
a
te

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

se
p
a
ra

te
 f

o
ru

m
 is

 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
ve

r 
e
m

p
lo

ye
r 

d
is

cr
e
tio

n
s 

4
. 

S
ch

e
m

e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
Ø

 L
G

P
S

 2
0
1
5
 w

e
b
si

te
 is

 n
o
w

 li
ve

. 
L
in

k 
to

 t
h
is

 o
n
 

N
E

S
P

F
 w

e
b
si

te
 a

n
d
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 in

 a
n
n
u
a
l m

e
m

b
e
r 

b
e
n
e
fit

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
Ø

 I
n
- h

o
u
se

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
ss

io
n
 o

rg
a
n
si

se
d
 f
o
r 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 

F
u
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 w

ith
 d

a
te

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fir

m
e
d
. 
2
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

L
G

E
 

p
ra

ct
io

n
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 s

e
ss

io
n
s 

in
 E

d
in

b
u
rg

h
 o

n
 

2
0

th
/2

7
th
 J

a
n
 2

0
1
5
 f
o
r 

st
a
ff
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 in

-
h
o
u
se

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

 
 

5
. 

U
n
io

n
 

R
e
p
re

se
n
ta

tiv
e
s 

Ø
 N

o
 r

e
ce

n
t 
co

m
m

u
n
ic

a
tio

n
 w

ith
 U

n
io

n
s 

 

6
. 

A
lta

ir
 &

 P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

S
ys

te
m

s 
Ø

 N
M

 c
h
a
si

n
g
 u

p
 H

e
yw

o
o
d
s 

fo
r 

co
n
fir

m
a
tio

n
 o

f 
d
a
te

 
fo

r 
2
0
1
5
 r

e
le

a
se

. 
 

 

Page 62



Ø
 G

G
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 H

e
yw

o
o
d
s 

U
se

r 
G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 m

a
y 

g
e
t 

u
p
d
a
te

 t
h
e
re

. 
L
o
o
ki

n
g
 a

t 
p
o
ss

ib
ly

 e
n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v/

D
e
c 

b
e
fo

re
 t
e
st

in
g
 c

a
n
 b

e
g
in

. 
  

Ø
 3

 S
co

tt
is

h
 s

ite
s 

ta
ki

n
g
 p

a
rt

 in
 t
e
st

in
g
. 
  

7
. 

R
is

k 
R

e
g
is

te
r 

Ø
 U

p
d
a
te

s 
b
e
in

g
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 b

y 
JH

/M
S

 
 

8
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
tio

n
s 

Ø
 P

re
se

n
ta

tio
n
 f
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 n

e
a
rl
y 

fin
is

h
e
d
. 

O
n
ce

 it
 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

ve
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 is

su
e
d
 t
o
 F

u
n
d
s.

  
Ø

 V
id

e
o
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
N

e
w

sl
e
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 

m
o
d
e
lle

r 
st

ill
 b

e
in

g
 w

o
rk

e
d
 o

n
. 
 

 

 

 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL   
 
 
COMMITTEE:  PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    24TH NOVEMBER 2014 
 
REPORT BY:  HEAD OF FINANCE       
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SRI 
 
REPORT NUMBER: PC/NOV14/CGSRI 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To review the Pension Fund’s Corporate Governance and Social 
Responsible Investment activity for the three month period ending 30th Sep 
2014. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
It is recommended that the committee note the report. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The costs associated with Corporate Governance and Socially Responsible 
Investment activity are met by the Fund.  Good corporate governance is a 
vital element of effective corporate management leading to good 
management, performance and stewardship of shareholders money. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None 
 
5. BACKGROUND  

 
5.1.   Corporate Governance 

 
Good corporate governance is a vital element of effective corporate 
management leading to good management, performance and stewardship 
of shareholders money. Through its policy of In-house voting and 
membership of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, and the UNPRI, 
the Fund supports good corporate governance in the companies in which it 
invests, and challenges companies who do not meet the standards set by 
their peers or reasonable expectations as measured by best practice. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 65



A report is presented quarterly to the Joint Investment Advisory Committee 
on the Fund’s Corporate Governance and Socially Responsive Investment 
Activity. 
 

5.2. Quarterly Report 
 
5.2.1 VOTING 

 
During the Quarter to end Sep 2014 the Fund voted at 26 meetings. 
 
Our Quarterly Voting Report is attached in Appendix 1 
 
the most contentious areas were: 
 
Directors 

· Insufficient Independence on board 
· Independent Directors who have spent over 9 years on the board. 
· Poor Attendance  

 
Executive Pay Schemes 

· Lack of disclosure with performance targets not being provided 
· Vesting period not considered sufficiently long term 
 
Remuneration Reports/Policy 

· Poor Disclosure  
· Lack of multiple  performance indicators 
· Targets not sufficiently challenging resulting in excessive payments 

 
 

5.2.2 LOCAL AUTHORITY PENSION FUND FORUM (LAPFF) 
 

At the LAPFF business meeting held on the 8th Oct the following topics were 
discussed. 
 
· Quarterly Engagement Report 
A report on LAPFF’s engagement for the quarter ending Sep 2014 can be 
found in Appendix 2 

 
· Global Tax Transparency – 2014 G20 Meeting   
The Annual G20 Summit is scheduled to take place in November in 
Brisbane Australia this will give LAPFF an opportunity to: 

· Demonstrate institutional investor support for international tax reform 
and good corporate governance. 

· Advocate a sound position on improved transparency and disclosure 
in reform of international taxation rules. 

· Assist in building links and relationships between LAPFF and other 
organisations on an international policy that affects institutional 
investors and beneficiaries. 

 

Page 66



LAPFF Action Plan 

· LAPFF will seek to enter the debate with a public statement of support for 
the international taxation reform in the context of Organisation for Economic 
C0-operation & Development (OECD) 2013 Action Plan, the November G20 
Summit and the specific Action Plan measures that promote improved 
governance around transparency and disclosure. 

· LAPFF will seek to build a coalition of like minded organisations prepared to 
support such a statement. Endorsement will be sought from mutual based 
pension funds, governance bodies and representative organisations in the 
UK, US & Australia to maximize potential impact. 

· LAPFF will coordinate the initiative and seek to have an agreed statement 
for simultaneous international release by the end of October/early 
November. 

 
5.2.3 UNITED NATION’S PRINCIPLES FOR RESPOSIBLE INVESTMENT  
 

Working Group - Sustainable Stock Exchange 
A letter from our working group has been posted out to the Secretary 
General and all Board members of the International Organisation of 
Securities Commission (IOSCO). 
The letter was endorsed by 97 investors and 21 coalitions and services 
providers from 18 countries representing combined assets of $9.3 trillion in 
AUM. 
 
The letter urges the IOSCO to consider the following 

· Leading dialogue with regulators and exchange operators to determine a 
pathway for more consistent ESG disclosure rules to be brought forward in 
each market; 

· Encouraging the development of disclosure rules and accountability 
mechanisms that facilitate meaningful, comparable, and consistent ESG 
disclosures across markets, without imposing undue compliance or liability 
risks on issuers. 

· Creating a Task Force dedicated to improving ESG disclosures market-
wide, and whose work would feed into IOSCO’s Issuer Accounting, Auditing 
and Disclosure Committee. 

· Publishing an official statement explaining the rationale for ESG 
disclosure, to help issuers and capital market influencers better understand 
the benefits. 
 
 

6. IMPACT ON THE PENSION FUND  
At a time when companies are facing challenging markets, good corporate 
governance is key in protecting the Fund’s investments. 
 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
PIRC Quarterly Voting Report Appendix 1 

 LAPFF Research & Engagement Appendix 2 
 
   

Page 67



8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Caroline Mann 
Pensions Officer 
camann@nespf.org.uk 
01224 264168 

 

Page 68



QUARTERLY
ENGAGEMENT 
REPORT
J U L Y  T O  S E P T E M B E R  2 0 1 4  

Local Authority Pension Fund Forum 
(LAPFF)

LAPFF exists to promote the investment interests of local authority 
pension funds, and to maximise their influence as shareholders whilst 
promoting social responsibility and corporate governance at the 
companies in which they invest. Formed in 1990, LAPFF brings 
together a diverse range of local authority pension funds in the UK 
with combined assets of over £150 billion, www.lapfforum.org. 

Voting machines at National Grid AGM 

Page 69



  Quarterly Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014        Page 1 

ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY  
J U L Y  T O  S E P T E M B E R  2 0 1 4

The Forum engaged with 30 companies over the period  

�

������

���������	�
���
�

����	������


����	������	

��
����


�
���������	��

��	�	����������	��	�

���
����	�����	����


�������	����	���
 

������	�

!�"

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

�����#���$�����

����	������%

��	��
�����

���	&�	�$�����

%����	�

�
����'

���

��	(���	�����



����	���
�

����
����������

)	�����*�	����

)	����������


%�
��
��

����+
����(�*����

��	������

�,��-��
�	�

�,���	

)*./�����
�	�


���	��

�����	�

'	��	�
��

������

0��
����

�,����	����
��	
�

��+
��	���
�
'����#���	�

%��������
'����#���	�

���

������#���	�

Page 70



  Quarterly Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014        Page 2 

ACHIEVEMENTS
During the Quarter, LAPFF has maintained a consistent profile, engaging on governance and 
corporate responsibility concerns and publicly raising significant shareholder issues by direct 
questioning at company AGMs as part of the engagement process.   

• Cllr Greening questioned the board on the links between 
executive pay and longer term climate risks and mitigation 
strategies at the British Land AGM.   

• Asked the chair of Vodafone at the AGM about excessive 
executive pay, given the Company’s performance has not been 
very strong over the past year. Received response to Cllr 
Greening’s question that bonuses rarely result in a 100% payout 
and that the long term incentive metric outperformed the market. 

• Cllr Greening also questioned Betfair at its AGM over illegal dividends and share 
buybacks after LAPFF issued a voting alert on this topic. 

• Cllr Cameron Rose attended the BT Group AGM to ask how the Company ensures that 
its customer service performance is adequately reflected in pay incentives when the 
importance of this area has been downgraded in the performance 
metrics. 

• Raised concerns over remuneration at the Burberry AGM in light 
of the increase in salary and other arrangements for the newly 
appointed CEO Christopher Bailey.   

• Attended the National Grid AGM to continue engagement 
around progress towards achieving a top level within the Carbon 
Disclosure Project’s Climate Performance Leadership Index. 
Were told that LAPFF was the first investor group to raise the 
issue of progress on reporting Scope 3 emissions.  

• After collaborative engagement on sustainable palm oil practices, Sime Darby, Kuala 
Lumpur Berhad, Asian Agri Resources and IOI Group have announced an 
immediate moratorium on clearance of high carbon stock forests. 

• Met with G4S’s senior independent director to discuss changes at the head of the 
company and the effect on operational and reputational risk management including 
challenges from complex, international contracts, diversity and succession planning.  

• Met with Glencore for a second time on carbon management within the Aiming for A 
investor initiative, as well as raising other social and governance risk management 
concerns.  

• Pursued previous engagement with BAE by meeting with the chair, Sir Roger Carr. 
Topics covered anti-corruption processes, executive pay and gender diversity at board 
level as well as throughout the company.  

      National Grid AGM

British Land AGM

Page 71



© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014

THE FORUM IN THE NEW

     

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

LAPFF Press Mentions, Q3 2014

Local Government Chronicle

LAPFF targets 
City A.M., Reuters, Investment & Pensions Europe

Standard

Professional Pensions

Sunday Telegraph, 

Quarterly Engagement Report | 

thority Pension Fund Forum, 2014     

THE FORUM IN THE NEWS 

LAPFF Press Mentions, Q3 2014

  Director Remuneration 
Lexology

Local Government Pension Schemes 
Local Government Chronicle, Investment and Pensions Europe

LAPFF targets SportsDirect over Mike Ashley’s pay package
Investment & Pensions Europe, The Guardian
Standard, The Journal, Express and Star

Corporate Governance Code 
Financial Times, Accountancy Age

IFRS Failings 
Professional Pensions, Investment and Pensions Europe, Financial Director

Betfair 
, SBC News, economia, Financial News, Shares Magazine

Chinese press.   

Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

  Page 3 

LAPFF Press Mentions, Q3 2014

vestment and Pensions Europe

SportsDirect over Mike Ashley’s pay package
The Guardian, BBC, Evening 

Financial Director

Shares Magazine

Page 72



  Quarterly Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014        Page 4 

COMPANY ENGAGEMENT 

$��0����'���/�*�1���%��'�/���
The issue of the production and sale of cluster munitions was raised at the June executive 
meetings and LAPFF agreed to engage with nine aerospace and defence companies over the 
production and sale of cluster munitions.  The concern is that these weapons kill people 
indiscriminately and that they continue to be dangerous after conflicts have ended.  Of the 
companies contacted – Textron, ATK, L-3, General Dynamics, Lockheed Martin, Doosan, 
Hanwha and Singapore Technologies – four have responded to letters requesting 
confirmation that these companies do not produce or sell cluster munitions.   

By and large, the responses received so far state that the companies do not produce or sell 
cluster munitions within the definition of the Oslo Convention.  However, neither the U.S. nor 
South Korea – both of which are major clients of these firms – have ratified or acceded to the 
Oslo Convention.  This lack of state commitment to the law makes it more difficult to discern 
the extent of companies’ involvement. 

A meeting was held with the chair of BAE, Sir Roger Carr, to discuss cluster munitions and to 
follow up from previous meetings with the company. Sir Roger provided assurances that BAE 
is completely compliant with the terms of the Oslo Convention, which is the international law 
that bans cluster munitions. The meeting gave the opportunity to assess progress on anti-
corruption processes, looked at simplification of pay arrangements and assessed the 
measures BAE was putting in place to ensure not only board diversity, but gender diversity 
throughout the company.  

���%�!'/�����0���2��/�/���

Executive Pay 

LAPFF continues to push companies on their executive pay 
arrangements, especially in relation to rewards for sub-par 
performance and on complexity.  At the Vodafone AGM, Cllr 
Greening asked Chairman Gerard Kleisterlee how the Company 
could have rewarded its executives with variable pay when the 
financials for the year were not good. Mr Kleisterlee responded that 
bonus payments rarely reach a 100% payout and that metrics informing the long term incentive 
plan outperformed the market.  However, he did not address the lack of a link between pay and 
performance.   

A second meeting with the senior independent director of G4S, aimed to ascertain whether 
changes at the head of the Company have led to better operational management on the 

Page 73



  Quarterly Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014        Page 5 

ground and have lessened reputational risk. The new chief executive, Mr Almanza, appears to 
be making significant changes, and post-Olympics, the company believes there is improved 
contract assurance and greater scrutiny of contracts with newly established risk committees at 
the executive and board levels to deal with complex contracts.  LAPFF again raised the issue 
of pay complexity. The company has engaged extensively with its major shareholders, but has 
come up against opposing investor opinion on metrics. A follow-up phone call established that 
some elements of the EPS adjustments were confusing and would be removed.  

Complex pay arrangements are also of concern at Hays. Hays’ scheme is problematic in that it 
has too many components, six in total, thus making it difficult for investors to track payments 
and whether the payments were deserved. LAPFF has written to the company seeking a 
meeting.  At the BT AGM, Cllr Rose asked how pay incentives helped improve customer 
service given that the relative importance of customer service has dropped in the Company’s 
performance metrics for executives. 

Reliable Accounts 

Betfair has stated in its Annual Report that it paid illegal dividends and share buyback 
distributions for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013.  LAPFF issued a voting alert ahead of the 
September AGM aiming to hold relevant Board members responsible for the distribution 
payments. The alert includes a recommendation to abstain on the resolution approving the 
payment of dividends for the year under review as it is not clear that the accounting problems 
have been remedied.  It appears that the illegal dividends were paid in part because the 
Company’s accounts were not audited in line with the ‘true and fair view’ standard set at law.   

%�/��'/���/2'��/%�/!�$��'�*�

Palm oil  

LAPFF’s engagement with companies to encourage sustainable 
palm oil production and supplies has met some success.  A group of 
palm oil growers, including Sime Darby, Kuala Lumpur Berhad, 

Asian Agri Resources and IOI Group, released a ‘Sustainable 
Palm Oil Manifesto’ directed at ensuring future palm oil 
developments are subject to high standards of environmental 
protection and limit deforestation.  While the Manifesto might be 
regarded as a step forward, LAPFF shared concerns that it does not 
set the same strong standards as those followed by major industry leaders whom the Forum 
has supported such as Wilmar and Golden-Agri.  

The Manifesto does not adequately extend to the companies’ third party suppliers or protect 
peatlands and allowed the companies to continue deforestation while definitional issues are 
resolved.  LAPFF again co-signed letters with Green Century Capital Management to raise 
these concerns with these companies, seeking an immediate moratorium on deforestation and 

Page 74



  Quarterly Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014        Page 6 

requested the companies adopt a time-bound plan for fully traceable palm oil. By mid-
September members of the Palm Oil Manifesto Group announced that they would be adopting 
an immediate moratorium on clearance of high carbon stock forests. 

LAPFF is continuing to work with the PRI Investor Group and is participating in collective 
engagement with the largest buyer of palm oil from an Indonesian supplier on working to find a 
way to engage with that supplier over concerns with its practices for palm oil production. 

Energy and Environmental Risk   

LAPFF has continued to engage on climate risks 
at AGMs during the 2014 season.  At the British 

Land AGM, Cllr Greening focussed on the 
extent to which the Company has considered 
future climate impacts in land purchase and 
developments, particularly flood and inundation 
risk. The board was also asked about the 
Company’s influence with local authorities to 

improve sustainability and resilience factors in housing and commercial developments. The 
concern is that if climate impacts have not been considered adequately, both in location and 
design, British Land developments could face longer term risks from extreme weather or other 
environmental impacts.  If these risks materialise, they could affect shareholder value. 

This extended notion of climate risks was reflected in the question asked to Sir Peter Gershon, 
the National Grid chairman, at the company’s AGM regarding measurement and reporting of 
Scope 3 emissions.  To date, most companies have focused reporting on Scope 1 and 2 
emissions.  However, it is important to recognise that company emission profiles encompass 
their supply chains and major contractors, or Scope 3 
emissions. This AGM attendance continues LAPFF’s 
participation in the ‘Aiming for A’ engagement which 
encourages company progress within the Carbon 
Disclosure Project’s Climate Performance Leadership 
Index. The Chair, Sir Peter Gershon, noted that LAPFF 
was the first investor group to raise the issue of progress 
on monitoring Scope 3 emissions.  Identifying the emissions profiles generated throughout 
complex supply chains also helps to begin to address the deeper issues of climate risk 
management and the development of adaptation and resilience measures critical to energy 
supply companies operating vital infrastructure networks.  

LAPFF continued its engagement with Glencore on carbon management within a discussion 
on the overall environmental, social and governance risk management processes.  Questions 
were posed both at a sustainability presentation and a separate meeting with the head of the 
board environment and safety committee. On its carbon management, the company was 
encouraged to establish emissions reduction initiatives and set associated targets in order to 

Page 75



  Quarterly Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014        Page 7 

and to clearly identify links between the initiatives and reductions made. Closer questioning on 
performance against health and safety metrics indicated a more effective monitoring system 
being implemented. On board governance, succession planning and gender and other aspects 
of diversity were addressed.  

!����!'/�����'�$�'��)���

Employment Standards  

The issue of modern day slavery is beginning to rise 
on companies’ radars.  Recent reports on Asian slave 
labour helping to produce prawns destined for US 
and UK supermarkets and the UK Government’s 
Modern Slavery Bill, introduced in June has given a 
greater focus on transparency in supply chains. For 
extractive companies such as Glencore, concerns 
include child labour, artisinal mining and exposure to 
social risks particularly in countries such as 
Mauritania.  

Social and Reputational Risks 

LAPFF continues to engage with a range of stakeholders in order to inform better campaign 
and engagement approaches.  Western Sahara Resource Watch (WSRW) requested a 
meeting to explain its position on company engagement in Western Sahara.  Citing a UN legal 
decision on Western Sahara’s right to exploit its natural resources as a Non-Self-Governing 
Territory, the organisation takes the stance that Morocco is illegally occupying Western Sahara 
and that therefore foreign companies, particularly phosphate and oil companies, should not be 
signing contracts with Morocco in relation to projects in Western Sahara.  WSRW would like to 
see the political situation between Morocco and Western Sahara resolved before foreign 
companies undertake projects in Western Sahara. It believes this resolution would allow 
companies to engage with Saharawis to ensure that projects are mutually beneficial.   

"It is difficult to accept that modern 

Britain is home to slavery, but this 

appalling crime is taking place 

here - often out of sight - in shops, 

fields, building sites and behind 

the curtains of houses on ordinary 

streets" (Home Secretary Theresa 

May, BBC, 31 July 2014)�

Page 76



  Quarterly Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014        Page 8 

CONSULTATIONS & PUBLIC POLICY

�/���'/��3'!����$'�1&%�*����
LAPFF has co-signed a letter to the International Organisation of Securities Commissions 
(IOSCO) to support working more closely with regulators, stock exchanges and other related 
parties to improve the disclosure of material and high-quality corporate Environmental, Social 
and Governance information in the global marketplace.  

LAPFF hosted fringe meetings at the Labour Party Conference and the Conservative Party 

Conference on ‘The Future of the Local Government Pension Scheme.’  Speakers included 
the LAPFF chair, Cllr Kieran Quinn, Henry Boucher of Sarasin and Partners and Cllr Denise Le 
Gal, Chair, Surrey Pension Fund. 

NETWORKS & EVENTS  
� 30% Club Investor Group – ‘Next steps for accelerating change’ with CEO of 

Women on Boards 

� Glencore Sustainability Presentation by Tony Hayward (Chairman), Ivan 
Glasenberg (CEO) and Peter Coates (Chair of HSEC Committee) 

� CCLA – event highlighting the importance of collective action on climate change, 
hosted by St Paul’s/CCLA. 

� Threadneedle/UKSIF event on UK preparations for fracking

� Clifford Chance – seminar on whether an arbitration tribunal similar to 
investment tribunals would be feasible for human rights

� PRI in Person, Montreal –included debates on fossil fuel divestment, investor 
tax responsibility, green bonds, fracking, human rights in extractives and 
executive remuneration 

           

Page 77



  Quarterly Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014        Page 9 

COMPANY PROGRESS REPORT  
Company Topics Outcome

Glencore  Carbon management, board diversitySmall Improvement 

Textron Reputational risk, human rights Dialogue 

Alliant Techsystems  Reputational risk, human rights Awaiting Response

L-3 Communications Reputational risk, human rights Dialogue 

General Dynamics Reputational risk, human rights Awaiting Response

Lockheed Martin Reputational risk, human rights Dialogue 

Doosan Reputational risk, human rights Awaiting Response

Hanwha Corporation Reputational risk, human rights Awaiting Response

Singapore TechnologiesReputational risk, human rights Dialogue 

Hays  Remuneration Dialogue 

Astrazeneca  Mergers and acquisitions Dialogue 

BAE Systems  Remuneration, board composition Moderate Improvement 

Burberry Group Remuneration Dialogue 

BT Group Remuneration Dialogue 

British Land Remuneration, climate change Dialogue 

G4S Remuneration, human rights Moderate Improvement 

National Grid Carbon management Dialogue 

Svenska Handelsbanken Remuneration Dialogue 

National Express Employment standards Dialogue 

Vodafone Remuneration, tax Dialogue 

Betfair Finance & accounting Dialogue 

Sime Darby Sustainable palm oil Substantial Improvement 

Kuala Lumpur Berhad Sustainable palm oil  Substantial Improvement 

Asian Agri Resources Sustainable palm oil Substantial Improvement 

IOI Group Sustainable palm oil Substantial Improvement 

Novartis Holdings Based Engagement Dialogue 

Total Carbon management, fracking Dialogue 

Deutsche Telekom Employment Standards Dialogue 

Severn Trent Remuneration Dialogue 

Olam Sustainable palm oil Dialogue 

Companies LAPFF has not previously engaged with individually are indicated in bold. 

Page 78



  Quarterly Engagement Report | July to September 2014 

© Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, 2014        Page 
10 

Local Authority Pension Fund Forum Members 

Report prepared by PIRC Ltd. for the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum 

Lincolnshire CC 

London Pension Fund Authority 

Lothian Pension Fund 

Merseyside Pension Fund 

Newham LB 

Norfolk Pension Fund 

North East Scotland Pension Fund 

North Yorkshire CC Pension Fund 

Northamptonshire CC 

NILGOSC 

Nottinghamshire CC 

Rhondda Cynon Taf 

Sheffield City Region Combined 
Authority  

Shropshire Council 

Somerset CC 

South Yorkshire Pensions Authority 

Southwark LB 

Staffordshire Pension Fund 

Surrey CC 

Teesside Pension Fund 

Tower Hamlets LB 

Tyne and Wear Pension Fund 

Waltham Forest LB 

Wandsworth LB 

Warwickshire Pension Fund 

West Midlands PTA Pension Fund 

West Midlands Pension Fund 

West Yorkshire Pension Fund 

Wiltshire CC 

Worcestershire CC 

Avon Pension Fund 

Barking and Dagenham LB 

Bedfordshire Pension Fund 

Camden LB 

Cheshire Pension Fund 

City of London Corporation 

Clwyd Pension Fund 

Croydon LB 

Cumbria Pension Scheme 

Derbyshire CC 

Devon CC 

Dorset County Pension Fund 

Dyfed Pension Fund 

Ealing LB 

East Riding of Yorkshire Council 

East Sussex Pension Fund 

Enfield LB 

Falkirk Council 

Greater Gwent Fund 

Greater Manchester Pension Fund 

Greenwich Pension Fund RB 

Gwynedd Pension Fund 

Hackney LB 

Hampshire Pension Fund 

Haringey LB 

Harrow LB 

Hounslow LB 

Islington LB 

Lancashire County Pension Fund 

Lambeth LB 

Lewisham LB 

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 N

O
R

T
H

 E
A

S
T

 S
C

O
T

L
A

N
D

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 F
U

N
D

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L

Y
 V

O
T

IN
G

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 
 1
. 

T
h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
 r

e
ce

iv
e
d
 v

o
tin

g
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

3
8
0
 r

e
so

lu
tio

n
s 

a
t 

2
6
 m

e
e
tin

g
s 

in
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 2

0
1
4
-0

9
-3

0
. 

 2
. 

T
h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 2

7
7

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
so

lu
tio

n
 (

7
2
.8

9
%

).
 

 
3
. 

T
h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
 v

o
te

d
 a

g
a
in

st
 o

n
 6

5
 o

cc
a
si

o
n
s 

(1
7
.1

1
%

).
 

 
4
. 

T
h
e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
 a

b
st

a
in

e
d
 o

n
 3

8
 o

cc
a
si

o
n
s 

(1
0
.0

%
).

 
 5
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 0
 n

o
n
-v

o
tin

g
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 it

e
m

s 
(0

.0
%

).
 

 6
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 0
 w

ith
h
e
ld

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 it

e
m

s 
(0

.0
%

).
 

 7
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 0
 n

o
t 
su

p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 it

e
m

s 
(0

.0
%

).
 

 
 

Page 81



  T
A

B
L

E
 1

: 
G

E
O

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 V
O

T
IN

G
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 
 

G
e
o
g

ra
p
h
ic

 R
e
g

io
n
 

M
e
e
tin

g
 

R
e
so

lu
tio

n
s 

F
o
r 

O
p
p
o
se

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
W

ith
h
e
ld

 
S

a
y 

W
h
e
n
 o

n
 P

a
y 

N
o
n
-V

o
tin

g
 

S
O

U
T

H
 A

N
D

 C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

R
E

S
T

 O
F

 T
H

E
 W

O
R

L
D

 
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

A
S

IA
 

3
 

1
4
 

8
 

5
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

N
O

R
T

H
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
 

1
 

9
 

1
 

4
 

4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

U
K

 
2
1
 

3
4
6
 

2
5
9
 

5
4
 

3
3
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
U

 
1
 

1
1
 

9
 

2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

JA
P

A
N

 
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

 T
A

B
L

E
 2

: 
A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 O
F

 U
K

 A
L

L
S

H
A

R
E

 V
O

T
IN

G
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 
R

e
so

lu
tio

n
 T

yp
e
 

F
o
r 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 %

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 %

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 %

 
T

o
ta

l 

A
n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

s 
1
5
 

8
8
.2

4
 

0
 

0
.0

 
2
 

1
1
.7

6
 

1
7
 

R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

s 
7
 

4
1
.1

8
 

6
 

3
5
.2

9
 

4
 

2
3
.5

3
 

1
7
 

A
rt

ic
le

s 
o
f 

A
ss

o
ci

a
tio

n
 

2
 

6
6
.6

7
 

0
 

0
.0

 
1
 

3
3
.3

3
 

3
 

A
u
d
ito

rs
 A

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

4
 

2
3
.5

3
 

1
0
 

5
8
.8

2
 

3
 

1
7
.6

5
 

1
7
 

D
ir
e
ct

o
rs

 
1
2
5
 

7
9
.6

2
 

1
3
 

8
.2

8
 

1
9
 

1
2
.1

 
1
5
7
 

D
iv

id
e
n
d
 

1
2
 

1
0
0
.0

 
0
 

0
.0

 
0
 

0
.0

 
1
2
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e
 P

a
y 

S
ch

e
m

e
 

1
 

1
1
.1

1
 

0
 

0
.0

 
8
 

8
8
.8

9
 

9
 

  
 

Page 82



  T
A

B
L

E
 3

: 
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 O

P
P

O
S

E
 V

O
T

E
S

 
 C

o
m

p
a
n

y
 

D
a
te

 
T

y
p

e
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n
 

%
O

p
p

o
s
e
 

C
O

B
H

A
M

 P
L
C

 
0
2
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 A

cq
u
is

iti
o
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

4
2
1
5
4
5
6
1
 

S
T

R
A

T
A

S
Y

S
 L

T
D

 
1
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 M
s 

Z
iv

a
 P

a
tir

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
T

R
A

T
A

S
Y

S
 L

T
D

 
1
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 

A
p
p
ro

ve
 a

 C
a
sh

 B
o
n
u
s 

O
f 

1
,8

8
0
,8

0
0
 N

e
w

 I
sr

a
e
li 

S
h
e
ke

ls
 (

""
N

is
""

) 
(A

p
p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 $

5
4
1
,5

5
0
) 

T
o
 B

e
 P

a
id

 
T

o
 M

r.
 D

a
vi

d
 R

e
is

, 
O

u
r 

C
h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

A
n
d
 A

 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r,

 I
n
 R

e
sp

e
ct

 O
f 
H

is
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 F
o
r 

T
h
e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
e
d
 D

e
ce

m
b
e
r 

3
1
, 

2
0
1
3
. 

A
b
st

a
in

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
T

R
A

T
A

S
Y

S
 L

T
D

 
1
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 

A
p
p
ro

ve
 a

 C
a
sh

 B
o
n
u
s 

O
f 

$
1
7
7
,7

1
6
 T

o
 B

e
 P

a
id

 T
o
 M

r.
 

S
. 

S
co

tt
 C

ru
m

p
, 
O

u
r 

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n

  
A

n
d
 C

h
ie

f 
In

n
o
va

tio
n
 

O
ff

ic
e
r,

 I
n
 R

e
sp

e
ct

 O
f 

H
is

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 F
o
r 

T
h
e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
e
d
  

D
e
ce

m
b
e
r 

3
1
, 
2
0
1
3
. 

A
b
st

a
in

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
T

R
A

T
A

S
Y

S
 L

T
D

 
1
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 

A
p
p
ro

ve
 a

 C
a
sh

 B
o
n
u
s 

O
f 

N
is

 5
7
4
,5

0
0
 (

A
p
p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 

$
1
6
5
,4

2
0
) 

T
o
 B

e
 P

a
id

 T
o
 M

r.
 I

la
n

 L
e
vi

n
, 

A
 D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

A
n
d
 

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
 O

f 
B

a
cc

io
 C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n
, 
T

h
e
 P

a
re

n
t 
E

n
tit

y 
O

f 
O

u
r 

M
a
ke

rb
o
t 
G

ro
u
p
 O

f 
C

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s,
 I

n
 R

e
sp

e
ct

 O
f 

H
is

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 F
o
r 

T
h
e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
e
d
 D

e
ce

m
b
e
r 

3
1
, 
2
0
1
3
. 

A
b
st

a
in

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
T

R
A

T
A

S
Y

S
 L

T
D

 
1
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 

A
p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 T

e
rm

s 
O

f 
A

 G
ra

n
t 
O

f 
O

p
tio

n
s 

T
o
 P

u
rc

h
a
se

 
2
2
,0

0
0
 O

rd
in

a
ry

 S
h
a
re

s,
 N

o
m

in
a
l V

a
lu

e
 N

is
 0

.0
1
 P

e
r 

S
h
a
re

, 
O

f 
S

tr
a
ta

sy
s 

L
td

. 
T

o
 M

r.
 E

d
w

a
rd

 J
. 
F

ie
rk

o
 A

s 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

O
f 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y.

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
T

R
A

T
A

S
Y

S
 L

T
D

 
1
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 

A
p
p
ro

ve
 T

h
e
 T

e
rm

s 
O

f 
A

 G
ra

n
t 
O

f 
O

p
tio

n
s 

T
o
 P

u
rc

h
a
se

 
2
2
,0

0
0
 O

rd
in

a
ry

 S
h
a
re

s,
 N

o
m

in
a
l V

a
lu

e
 N

is
 0

.0
1
 P

e
r 

S
h
a
re

, 
O

f 
S

tr
a
ta

sy
s 

L
td

. 
T

o
 M

r.
 J

o
h
n
 J

. 
M

ce
le

n
e

y 
A

s 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

O
f 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y.

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

Page 83



  S
T

R
A

T
A

S
Y

S
 L

T
D

 
1
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 

A
p
p
ro

ve
 T

h
e
 T

e
rm

s 
O

f 
A

 G
ra

n
t 
O

f 
O

p
tio

n
s 

T
o
 P

u
rc

h
a
se

 
2
2
,0

0
0
 O

rd
in

a
ry

 S
h
a
re

s,
 N

o
m

in
a
l V

a
lu

e
 N

is
 0

.0
1
 P

e
r 

S
h
a
re

, 
O

f 
S

tr
a
ta

sy
s 

L
td

. 
T

o
 M

r.
 C

lif
fo

rd
 H

. 
S

ch
w

ie
te

r 
A

s 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

O
f 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y.

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
T

R
A

T
A

S
Y

S
 L

T
D

 
1
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 

A
p
p
ro

ve
 O

f 
A

n
 I
n
cr

e
a
se

 I
n
 T

h
e
 C

o
ve

ra
g

e
 U

n
d
e
r 

T
h
e
 

C
o
m

p
a
n
y'

S
 D

ir
e
ct

o
rs

 A
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 L
ia

b
ili

ty
 I

n
su

ra
n
ce

 
P

o
lic

y 
T

o
 A

g
g
re

g
a
te

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 C
o
ve

ra
g

e
 O

f 
$
8
0
 M

ill
io

n
. 

A
b
st

a
in

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
T

R
A

T
A

S
Y

S
 L

T
D

 
1
0
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.1

9
4
5
0
6
8
1
4
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
5
.5

4
8
1
3
4
7
3
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

5
2
.3

4
1
4
9
5
4
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
0
2
0
1
0
0
3
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 S
ir
 J

o
h
n
 P

e
a
ce

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
2
.1

8
3
0
0
6
5
4
6
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 P
h
ili

p
 B

o
w

m
a
n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
2
.9

8
5
6
7
0
1
7
9
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 I
a
n
 C

a
rt

e
r 

F
o
r 

5
.5

6
6
4
4
4
9
7
5
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 J
e
re

m
y 

D
a
rr

o
ch

 
F

o
r 

6
.6

0
8
4
3
6
3
2
1
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 S
te

p
h
a
n
ie

 G
e
o
rg

e
 

F
o
r 

0
.7

0
3
3
5
0
4
8
5
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 M
a
tt

h
e
w

 K
e
y 

F
o
r 

0
.0

6
4
8
3
9
5
9
3
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 D
a
vi

d
 T

yl
e
r 

O
p
p
o
se

 
2
.2

5
2
1
2
7
9
2
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 C
h
ri
st

o
p
h
e
r 

B
a
ile

y 
F

o
r 

0
.6

4
5
4
2
0
3
6
7
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 C
a
ro

l F
a
ir
w

e
a
th

e
r 

F
o
r 

0
.6

7
6
3
0
4
0
0
7
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 J
o
h
n
 S

m
ith

 
F

o
r 

0
.6

5
8
9
9
8
8
3
2
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.3

0
5
9
7
1
9
0
5
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.3

3
6
1
8
6
6
5
2
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 n

e
w

 e
xe

cu
tiv

e
 s

h
a
re

 o
p
tio

n
 s

ch
e
m

e
/p

la
n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
8
.7

8
9
7
6
8
4
6
1
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 P

o
lit

ic
a
l D

o
n
a
tio

n
s 

F
o
r 

1
.3

2
6
5
4
9
5
6
1
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

1
.4

4
1
1
5
6
8
1
8
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

1
.7

2
4
8
7
9
9
1
3
 

Page 84



  B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

9
7
6
8
6
8
2
 

B
U

R
B

E
R

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
1
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

7
.5

5
7
9
6
0
1
5
8
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.4

4
3
2
2
7
5
4
1
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

2
.5

0
1
7
6
0
3
2
1
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
2
.6

8
3
0
0
5
9
8
7
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 J
e
n
n
ife

r 
A

lle
rt

o
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

9
8
9
4
3
5
9
6
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 P
h
ili

p
 A

ik
e
n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
0
.7

5
0
8
5
5
2
2
9
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 R
ic

h
a
rd

 L
o
n
g
d
o
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

9
7
6
2
2
9
9
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 J
a
m

e
s 

K
id

d
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

9
7
6
2
2
9
9
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 B

ro
o
ks

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

9
9
5
8
1
2
6
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 P
h
ili

p
 D

a
ye

r 
F

o
r 

0
.1

5
9
2
4
2
4
7
9
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.0

0
2
3
3
5
5
8
7
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

7
7
9
6
4
8
2
2
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

5
2
7
2
0
4
9
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

1
.6

6
8
5
6
3
4
0
3
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.2

5
6
7
9
3
7
7
9
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

3
.1

8
1
0
0
8
5
6
4
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 n

e
w

 lo
n
g

 t
e
rm

 in
ce

n
tiv

e
 p

la
n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
3
.4

2
2
7
5
1
1
4
5
 

A
V

E
V

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
C

h
a
n
g

e
 t
h
e
 li

m
it 

o
n
 D

ir
e
ct

o
rs

' f
e
e
s 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.4

8
1
8
6
4
7
0
8
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 S

ta
n
d
a
lo

n
e
 F

in
a
n
ci

a
l S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 C

o
n
so

lid
a
te

d
 F

in
a
n
ci

a
l S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

D
is

ch
a
rg

e
 o

f 
B

o
a
rd

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 A

llo
ca

tio
n
 o

f 
In

co
m

e
 a

n
d
 D

iv
id

e
n
d
s 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 s

h
a
re

 s
p
lit

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

Page 85



  IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

m
e
n
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 1

7
.1

 R
e
: 
M

e
e
tin

g
 N

o
tic

e
 o

f 
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
M

e
e
tin

g
s 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

m
e
n
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

7
.1

 R
e
: 
E

le
ct

io
n
 a

n
d
 T

e
rm

 o
f 

D
ir
e
ct

o
rs

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

m
e
n
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 8

.1
 o

f 
G

e
n
e
ra

l M
e
e
tin

g
 R

e
g

u
la

tio
n
s 

R
e
: 

M
e
e
tin

g
 N

o
tic

e
 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 C
a
rl
o
s 

E
sp

in
o
sa

 d
e
 lo

s 
M

o
n
te

ro
s 

B
e
rn

a
ld

o
 d

e
 

Q
u
ir
Ã

³s
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 R
o
d
ri
g

o
 E

ch
e
n
iq

u
e
 G

o
rd

ill
o
 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IN
D

IT
E

X
 (

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
S

 D
E

 
D

IS
E

N
O

 T
E

X
T

IL
) 

S
A

 
1
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
ze

 B
o
a
rd

 t
o
 R

a
tif

y 
a
n
d
 E

xe
cu

te
 A

p
pr

o
ve

d
 

R
e
so

lu
tio

n
s 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
.4

0
5
6
8
5
9
4
5
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
3
.6

6
8
6
0
5
8
5
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
2
.3

9
3
8
1
0
0
8
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 J
a
n
 B

a
b
ia

k 
F

o
r 

0
.2

9
0
6
1
8
7
7
3
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 F
a
b
io

la
 A

rr
e
d
o
n
d
o
 

F
o
r 

0
.8

6
5
2
6
8
9
6
4
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 B
ri
a
n
 C

a
ss

in
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

3
6
7
2
2
5
0
9
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 R
o
g

e
r 

D
a
vi

s 
F

o
r 

1
.1

9
8
3
0
0
1
4
4
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 A
la

n
 J

e
b
so

n
 

F
o
r 

1
.1

5
9
8
3
8
1
6
9
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 D
e
ir
d
re

 M
a
h
la

n
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
5
.3

0
8
6
2
7
1
6
7
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 D
o
n
 R

o
b
e
rt
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
8
.7

9
7
3
7
7
7
9
3
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 G
e
o
rg

e
 R

o
se

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
2
.1

0
5
6
3
2
3
5
8
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 J
u
d
ith

 S
p
ri
e
se

r 
F

o
r 

1
.7

4
3
0
6
8
7
7
7
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 P
a
u
l W

a
lk

e
r 

F
o
r 

2
.2

3
4
9
0
4
5
3
6
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
2
.0

4
9
2
5
0
3
8
3
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

2
.0

2
9
9
8
4
7
6
 

Page 86



  E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

2
.8

3
8
7
5
7
1
0
3
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.7

9
0
6
5
7
0
8
1
 

E
X

P
E

R
IA

N
 P

L
C

 
1
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

8
0
1
6
9
2
0
4
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

5
5
2
7
9
5
9
4
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
1
.4

3
4
7
9
8
4
0
8
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
.8

9
3
1
8
6
6
7
9
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

2
1
7
3
9
0
1
2
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 A

sq
u
ith

 
F

o
r 

1
.2

0
3
5
5
1
7
8
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 S
im

o
n
 B

o
rr

o
w

s 
F

o
r 

3
.7

2
5
1
8
2
3
0
2
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 A
lis

ta
ir
 C

o
x 

F
o
r 

0
.3

4
0
7
1
5
9
5
5
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 D
a
vi

d
 H

u
tc

h
is

o
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

4
1
0
7
4
1
3
3
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 S
ir
 A

d
ri
a
n
 M

o
n
ta

g
u
e
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.4

3
1
4
6
8
7
9
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 M
a
rt

in
e
 V

e
rl
u
yt

e
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.3

4
6
3
7
0
3
0
6
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 J
u
lia

 W
ils

o
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.2

5
4
7
5
2
7
5
6
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.3

9
7
1
1
2
9
0
7
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

5
9
8
7
6
0
9
2
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

d
o
p
t 

th
e
 R

e
vi

se
d
 I

n
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y 
F

o
r 

0
.0

6
1
0
9
9
4
9
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 P

o
lit

ic
a
l D

o
n
a
tio

n
s 

F
o
r 

3
.9

1
7
6
5
4
1
4
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

2
.3

2
2
5
2
7
8
1
2
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

7
0
9
2
6
5
2
4
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

7
8
0
1
3
5
5
1
 

3
i G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

7
.6

2
8
6
5
9
8
7
5
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

2
3
4
3
4
4
8
1
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
A

b
st

a
in

 
0
.8

6
2
2
2
4
3
5
2
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

2
.3

0
8
9
7
2
4
7
6
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
.2

3
0
5
3
6
3
5
6
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-a

p
p
o
in

t 
L
o
rd

 S
m

ith
 o

f 
K

e
lv

in
 

F
o
r 

0
.7

1
8
2
3
9
2
8
2
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-a

p
p
o
in

t 
A

lis
ta

ir
 P

h
ill

ip
s-

D
a
vi

e
s 

F
o
r 

4
.7

3
1
9
6
3
3
4
8
 

Page 87



  S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-a

p
p
o
in

t 
G

re
g

o
r 

A
le

xa
n
d
e
r 

F
o
r 

2
.0

9
8
2
0
9
3
0
9
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-a

p
p
o
in

t 
Je

re
m

y 
B

e
e
to

n
 

F
o
r 

0
.5

3
3
2
4
9
1
2
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-a

p
p
o
in

t 
K

a
tie

 B
ic

ke
rs

ta
ff

e
 

F
o
r 

0
.5

2
7
7
6
5
1
8
5
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-a

p
p
o
in

t 
S

u
e
 B

ru
ce

 
F

o
r 

0
.1

9
9
5
2
9
9
5
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-a

p
p
o
in

t 
R

ic
h
a
rd

 G
ill

in
g

w
a
te

r 
F

o
r 

3
.7

8
4
2
9
1
1
8
2
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-a

p
p
o
in

t 
P

e
te

r 
L
yn

a
s 

F
o
r 

0
.3

6
1
6
9
1
3
3
6
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
1
.2

9
7
6
4
5
0
3
7
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

1
.1

3
3
8
8
7
8
7
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

1
6
.1

5
3
7
5
5
3
3
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

2
.0

4
1
9
9
8
9
5
3
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.3

4
0
1
8
7
6
5
5
 

S
S

E
 P

L
C

 
1
7
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

1
0
.3

5
6
7
4
8
3
2
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.1

2
3
4
2
9
1
6
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
0
.9

1
7
1
4
2
1
7
5
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
2
.3

8
9
9
4
9
4
4
5
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
2
1
9
4
8
6
1
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 M
r 

JF
 W

a
lk

e
r 

F
o
r 

2
.3

5
6
8
8
5
1
6
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 M
r 

D
G

 J
o
n
e
s 

F
o
r 

2
.2

5
2
3
9
1
2
2
9
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

T
E

P
 S

te
ve

n
so

n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
2
.2

2
0
1
3
9
0
2
4
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

N
A

P
 C

a
rs

o
n
 

F
o
r 

2
.3

6
2
9
5
4
4
5
3
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
s 

O
 D

e
sf

o
rg

e
s 

F
o
r 

0
.8

0
7
1
9
7
3
3
6
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

A
M

 F
e
rg

u
so

n
 

F
o
r 

0
.8

0
6
4
6
8
9
1
4
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

R
J 

M
a
cL

e
o
d
 

F
o
r 

2
.2

5
2
0
6
7
0
9
8
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

C
S

 M
a
tt

h
e
w

s 
F

o
r 

0
.5

2
9
1
5
0
8
2
3
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

L
C

 P
e
n
tz

 
F

o
r 

2
.3

6
3
3
0
9
8
2
5
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
rs

 D
C

 T
h
o
m

p
so

n
 

F
o
r 

0
.5

3
0
4
9
9
5
7
5
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

F
o
r 

0
.6

7
0
2
0
2
5
9
4
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.3

7
2
4
7
7
6
9
2
 

Page 88



  JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 P

o
lit

ic
a
l D

o
n
a
tio

n
s 

F
o
r 

1
.3

3
3
8
2
0
4
7
8
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

7
.2

7
8
6
1
0
9
5
9
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.2

5
1
3
9
9
2
9
5
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.1

4
2
3
5
2
5
1
4
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 M
A

T
T

H
E

Y
 P

L
C

 
2
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

7
.4

1
2
1
8
7
0
4
6
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
.1

6
4
0
5
7
8
0
2
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
4
.6

1
6
0
3
9
2
3
4
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
6
.6

8
5
3
1
3
5
0
6
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

M
 H

 A
rm

o
u
r 

F
o
r 

0
.3

7
1
7
2
1
1
1
8
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

G
 C

 B
ib

le
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
4
.2

2
9
2
7
9
1
4
4
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

A
 J

 C
la

rk
 

F
o
r 

2
.0

5
5
2
6
0
6
0
2
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

D
 S

 D
e
vi

tr
e
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
7
.0

7
8
6
6
7
3
0
6
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

G
 R

 E
lli

o
tt
 

F
o
r 

0
.3

2
7
1
1
2
7
1
2
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
s 

L
 M

 S
 K

n
o
x 

F
o
r 

0
.4

3
2
5
4
0
5
2
6
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

P
 J

 M
a
n
se

r 
A

b
st

a
in

 
1
.2

2
9
2
1
6
2
5
7
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

J 
A

 M
a
n
zo

n
i 

O
p
p
o
se

 
1
.3

3
6
3
7
0
9
5
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 D
r 

D
 F

 M
o
yo

 
F

o
r 

0
.1

5
2
7
6
3
5
5
2
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

C
 A

 P
Ã

©
re

z 
D

Ã
¡v

ila
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
4
.1

5
8
9
8
5
5
3
3
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

A
 S

a
n
to

 D
o
m

in
g

o
 D

Ã
¡v

ila
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
4
.2

1
4
6
3
5
8
6
9
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
s 

H
 A

 W
e
ir
 

F
o
r 

0
.3

1
3
8
3
0
4
2
1
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

H
 A

 W
ill

a
rd

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
4
.2

0
4
3
6
9
1
5
1
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

J 
S

 W
ils

o
n
 

F
o
r 

2
.5

3
9
5
6
8
5
3
9
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
4
1
0
7
1
9
3
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
1
.1

6
6
1
9
1
6
2
2
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.7

4
0
4
3
9
4
6
9
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

4
.6

5
0
1
6
5
6
1
2
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 E

m
p
lo

ye
e
 S

h
a
re

 P
u
rc

h
a
se

 P
la

n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

6
6
2
3
5
9
3
9
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 S

h
a
re

sa
ve

 p
la

n
 

F
o
r 

1
.2

1
9
7
4
2
0
0
6
 

Page 89



  S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 

E
st

a
b
lis

h
 S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
r 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s 

to
 t

h
e
 E

m
p
lo

ye
e
 

S
h
a
re

 P
u
rc

h
a
se

 P
la

n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

th
e
 S

h
a
re

sa
ve

 
P

la
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.2

7
5
6
9
9
8
8
2
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

4
.7

9
2
0
8
9
9
6
6
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.8

4
7
1
0
2
8
9
2
 

S
A

B
M

ill
e
r 

P
L
C

 
2
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

8
.1

6
7
2
8
9
5
6
8
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

0
0
3
1
0
6
8
6
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

N
. 
G

. 
M

cN
a
ir
 S

co
tt
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
1
2
.5

6
0
7
3
6
0
8
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

M
. 

E
. 
S

la
d
e
 

F
o
r 

3
.1

3
6
0
7
9
1
8
7
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

T
. 

J.
 M

u
rp

h
y 

F
o
r 

3
.2

5
0
9
0
4
2
8
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

G
. 
A

. 
K

a
ye

 
F

o
r 

3
.2

7
5
0
5
6
3
3
1
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

M
. 

C
. 
B

o
n
n
in

g
-S

n
o
o
k 

F
o
r 

3
.2

7
5
0
5
6
3
3
1
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

J.
 S

. 
P

itm
a
n
 

F
o
r 

3
.2

7
5
0
5
6
3
3
1
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

D
. 
C

. 
E

. 
W

a
lk

e
r 

F
o
r 

3
.2

7
5
0
5
6
3
3
1
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

R
. 
D

. 
G

ill
in

g
w

a
te

r 
A

b
st

a
in

 
3
.8

3
0
5
6
7
4
4
5
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

R
. 
J.

 G
ra

n
t 

F
o
r 

1
.3

2
1
4
2
1
6
9
2
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

A
. 
E

. 
G

. 
G

u
lli

fo
rd

 
F

o
r 

1
.3

2
1
4
2
1
6
9
2
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 M
r 

M
. 

K
. 
O

'D
o
n
n
e
ll 

F
o
r 

1
.3

2
1
4
2
1
6
9
2
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
1
4
9
0
2
1
9
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
0
3
1
0
6
8
6
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
2
5
.1

8
7
2
1
0
0
1
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
7
.5

8
0
3
2
5
5
7
9
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

8
.3

1
2
6
4
6
7
6
5
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
7
8
5
8
2
0
2
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

0
8
9
8
3
0
9
8
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

d
o
p
t 

n
e
w

 A
rt

ic
le

s 
o
f 

A
ss

o
ci

a
tio

n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
0
.2

8
2
3
4
5
6
6
8
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

3
.7

6
4
4
8
7
8
8
3
 

H
E

L
IC

A
L
 B

A
R

 P
L
C

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 n

e
w

 lo
n
g

 t
e
rm

 in
ce

n
tiv

e
 p

la
n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
5
.5

6
8
6
2
4
8
8
2
 

Page 90



  S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

d
o
p
t 

F
in

a
n
ci

a
l S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 D

ir
e
ct

o
rs

' a
n
d
 A

u
d
ito

rs
' 

R
e
p
o
rt

s 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 P
e
te

r 
O

n
g

 B
o
o
k 

K
w

e
e
 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 L
o
w

 C
h
e
ck

 K
ia

n
 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 C
h
ri
st

in
a
 H

o
n
 K

w
e
e
 F

o
n
g
 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 D

ir
e
ct

o
rs

' F
e
e
s 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 a

n
d
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 g

e
n
e
ra

l s
h
a
re

 is
su

e
 m

a
n
d
a
te

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 I

ss
u
a
n
ce

 o
f 

S
h
a
re

s 
a
n
d
 G

ra
n
t 
o
f 

A
w

a
rd

s 
P

u
rs

u
a
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 S

in
g
T

e
l P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 S
h
a
re

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
2
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 A

lte
ra

tio
n
s 

to
 t

h
e
 S

in
g
T

e
l P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 S
h
a
re

 
P

la
n
 2

0
1
2
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
tio

n
 b

y 
th

e
 R

e
le

va
n
t 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e
 D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

in
 t

h
e
 S

in
g
T

e
l P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 S
h
a
re

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
2
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

 
T

E
L
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

 
2
5
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
tio

n
 b

y 
th

e
 R

e
le

va
n
t 

N
o
n

-E
xe

cu
tiv

e
 

D
ir
e
ct

o
r 

in
 t

h
e
 S

in
g
T

e
l P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
ce

 S
h
a
re

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
2
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

6
6
6
0
9
7
7
7
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 G
e
ra

rd
 K

le
is

te
rl
e
e
 

F
o
r 

1
.3

0
7
3
3
8
9
9
1
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 V
itt

o
ri
o 

C
o
la

o
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

9
2
5
1
9
8
3
7
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 N
ic

k 
R

e
a
d
 

F
o
r 

1
.1

9
9
8
6
9
3
3
2
 

Page 91



  V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

u
se

y 
F

o
r 

0
.7

3
0
7
2
7
7
2
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 S
ir
 C

ri
sp

in
 D

a
vi

s 
F

o
r 

0
.4

7
8
4
8
1
3
4
2
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 D
a
m

e
 C

la
ra

 F
u
rs

e
 

F
o
r 

0
.4

7
7
6
4
3
0
0
6
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 V
a
le

ri
e 

G
o
o
d
in

g
 

F
o
r 

0
.6

6
9
5
7
7
8
2
4
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 R
e
n
e
e
 J

a
m

e
s 

A
b
st

a
in

 
1
.1

2
0
2
0
3
9
0
3
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 S
a
m

u
e
l J

o
n
a
h
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
1
.2

4
0
0
0
5
0
9
3
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 O
m

id
 K

o
rd

e
st

a
n
i 

F
o
r 

0
.5

3
9
8
4
6
3
8
7
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 N
ic

k 
L
a
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
.7

5
3
8
9
5
1
7
8
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 L
u
c 

V
a
n
d
e
ve

ld
e
 

F
o
r 

0
.9

9
2
4
9
2
5
1
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 P
h
ili

p
 Y

e
a
 

F
o
r 

0
.8

4
7
2
1
1
9
7
4
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

5
5
7
3
5
0
4
6
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
3
.9

8
0
7
4
4
0
8
3
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
2
.6

2
8
3
1
2
0
6
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 a

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 V

o
d
a
fo

n
e
 G

lo
b
a
l I

n
ce

n
tiv

e
 P

la
n
 r

u
le

s 
O

p
p
o
se

 
4
.5

7
5
5
5
2
9
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
1
.5

0
8
5
7
1
7
8
9
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.2

2
5
1
0
4
3
6
4
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

6
.5

5
4
1
4
5
5
8
3
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

1
.8

1
5
6
2
4
9
2
3
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.2

6
4
6
4
6
6
9
5
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 P

o
lit

ic
a
l D

o
n
a
tio

n
s 

F
o
r 

2
.4

6
6
0
9
8
0
1
4
 

V
O

D
A

F
O

N
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 P

L
C

 
2
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

1
0
.5

9
8
6
1
6
3
5
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.3

5
0
5
7
7
6
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
3
.9

3
7
9
3
5
6
5
9
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
8
.3

2
9
5
2
7
8
7
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 A
 W

 P
id

g
le

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
5
.2

4
2
2
6
7
9
2
6
 

Page 92



  B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 R
 C

 P
e
rr

in
s 

F
o
r 

1
.2

5
0
3
1
0
7
3
7
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 N
 G

 S
im

p
ki

n
 

F
o
r 

1
.2

5
2
8
6
9
8
0
3
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 G
 J

 F
ry

 
F

o
r 

1
.2

5
3
9
5
8
7
0
6
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 K
 W

h
ite

m
a
n
 

F
o
r 

1
.2

5
3
9
5
8
7
0
6
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 S
 E

lli
s 

F
o
r 

1
.2

5
3
8
8
0
7
2
1
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 S
ir
 J

 A
 A

rm
itt

 
F

o
r 

3
.7

2
5
3
7
4
2
8
5
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 A
 N

im
m

o
 

F
o
r 

0
.3

2
3
7
5
4
5
8
3
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 V
 W

a
d
le

y 
F

o
r 

0
.3

2
8
1
5
2
5
5
7
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 G
 B

a
rk

e
r 

F
o
r 

4
.1

7
6
1
4
1
5
3
3
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 A
 L

i 
F

o
r 

2
.2

3
6
2
3
9
5
3
2
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 A
 M

ye
rs

 
F

o
r 

0
.2

7
4
3
9
8
6
9
2
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 D
 B

ri
g

h
tm

o
re

-A
rm

o
u
r 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
5
9
5
1
8
9
8
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

F
o
r 

0
.2

5
0
1
7
1
3
2
6
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

2
2
5
1
8
4
1
4
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

1
.5

6
3
8
0
7
8
7
5
 

Page 93



  B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.4

5
1
1
4
8
5
0
8
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.8

2
0
5
9
7
5
3
5
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 P

o
lit

ic
a
l D

o
n
a
tio

n
s 

F
o
r 

1
.0

6
6
1
4
3
6
7
2
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

5
.3

8
9
3
9
7
8
0
3
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 a

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
st

a
n
tia

l p
ro

p
e
rt

y 
tr

a
n
sa

ct
io

n
 in

vo
lv

in
g

 
G

 J
 F

ry
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
2
.3

8
5
1
3
4
2
5
6
 

B
E

R
K

E
L
E

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 H
L
D

G
S

 
P

L
C

 
0
1
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 a

 n
e
w

 b
o
n
u
s 

p
la

n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
4
.9

2
5
4
5
7
8
6
3
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.3

7
7
6
7
1
6
4
4
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
2
8
.2

4
8
9
4
2
0
6
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
3
.0

7
5
8
2
8
4
2
7
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 C
h
ri
s 

C
o
le

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
7
.6

5
7
5
2
8
4
8
7
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 G
e
o
ff

 D
ra

b
b
le

 
F

o
r 

9
.0

5
4
8
8
5
5
0
9
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 B
re

n
d
a
n
 H

o
rg

a
n
 

F
o
r 

1
.9

4
4
2
9
9
4
2
9
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 S
a
t 

D
h
a
iw

a
l 

F
o
r 

1
.9

4
8
9
5
2
3
3
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 S
u
za

n
n
e
 W

o
o
d
 

F
o
r 

2
.0

6
6
0
0
4
0
5
8
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 M
ic

h
a
e
l B

u
rr

o
w

 
F

o
r 

0
.5

0
4
4
7
4
3
4
6
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 B
ru

ce
 E

d
w

a
rd

s 
F

o
r 

0
.3

8
4
0
7
8
6
3
1
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 I
a
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 
F

o
r 

0
.4

0
6
9
8
5
4
0
7
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 W
a
yn

e
 E

d
m

u
n
d
s 

F
o
r 

0
.1

5
2
8
3
1
7
9
5
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.0

4
9
0
6
3
9
7
8
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

5
5
6
5
8
0
8
4
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 n

e
w

 lo
n
g

 t
e
rm

 in
ce

n
tiv

e
 p

la
n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
1
0
.7

8
3
5
6
8
9
8
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

7
.0

4
8
7
4
2
9
8
3
 

Page 94



  A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

3
2
2
9
6
1
0
8
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

4
.1

8
0
6
8
6
5
4
4
 

A
S

H
T

E
A

D
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

5
.4

0
1
0
1
9
0
3
6
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

1
.1

1
5
6
8
4
9
7
3
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 N
ig

e
l K

e
e
n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
2
.4

4
6
0
6
9
0
1
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 F

lin
t 

F
o
r 

1
.0

0
0
0
2
3
0
0
8
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 K
e
vi

n
 B

o
yd

 
F

o
r 

1
.0

0
0
0
2
3
0
0
8
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 J
o
ck

 L
e
n
n
o
x 

F
o
r 

1
.1

5
5
4
8
6
8
8
4
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 T
h
o
m

a
s 

G
e
itn

e
r 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.8

7
0
8
7
0
4
4
1
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 J
e
n
n
ife

r 
A

lle
rt

o
n
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.8

5
6
8
5
4
2
4
1
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

4
0
9
9
3
4
3
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
8
2
7
4
8
3
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
.1

6
2
1
4
0
7
8
8
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.3

6
1
4
6
2
7
3
5
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

1
2
.4

5
4
3
3
8
9
1
 

Page 95



  O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

1
4
8
8
3
4
1
4
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

2
5
3
2
7
4
2
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

4
.6

1
9
6
3
5
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

m
e
n
d
 A

rt
ic

le
s 

F
o
r 

0
.0

1
0
9
3
2
8
3
5
 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

P
L
C

 
0
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 n

e
w

 lo
n
g

 t
e
rm

 in
ce

n
tiv

e
 p

la
n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
2
.1

9
4
5
2
4
5
0
6
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

0
0
1
0
4
5
2
1
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n

 R
e
p
o
rt

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
2
.1

0
3
2
0
0
8
5
5
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
2
.1

8
7
0
3
9
1
5
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 K
e
ith

 H
e
lla

w
e

ll 
F

o
r 

6
.7

2
8
5
2
6
3
1
2
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 M
ik

e
 A

sh
le

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
1
.8

7
5
0
0
9
3
9
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 S
im

o
n
 B

e
n
tle

y 
F

o
r 

2
.0

8
5
9
7
0
7
7
1
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 D
a
ve

 F
o
rs

e
y 

F
o
r 

0
.0

2
3
8
0
9
7
9
7
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 D
a
ve

 S
in

g
le

to
n
 

F
o
r 

5
.3

1
2
5
1
3
3
1
1
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 C
la

ir
e
 J

e
n
ki

n
s 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.2

2
4
3
9
4
7
9
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.2

8
2
6
6
1
7
0
1
 

Page 96



  S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.2

4
9
0
7
7
5
8
8
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

6
6
2
1
1
2
8
3
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 a

d
d
iti

o
n
a
l s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

1
.5

6
2
9
6
1
7
7
7
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.2

6
2
9
2
6
5
7
5
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

0
3
1
8
1
8
0
6
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

1
.5

1
4
5
9
4
5
0
3
 

S
P

O
R

T
S

 D
IR

E
C

T
 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

L
C

 
1
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 P

o
lit

ic
a
l D

o
n
a
tio

n
s 

F
o
r 

0
.0

4
0
5
3
2
7
8
2
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 G
L
O

B
A

L
 S

IC
A

V
 -

 
A

S
IA

 P
A

C
IF

IC
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

 F
U

N
D

 1
5
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 L
yn

n
 B

ir
d
so

n
g
 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 G
L
O

B
A

L
 S

IC
A

V
 -

 
A

S
IA

 P
A

C
IF

IC
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

 F
U

N
D

 1
5
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 R
o
n
a
ld

o
 A

. 
D

a
 F

ro
ta

 N
o
g

u
e
u
ira

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 G
L
O

B
A

L
 S

IC
A

V
 -

 
E

M
E

R
G

IN
G

 M
A

R
K

E
T

S
 

E
Q

U
IT

Y
 F

U
N

D
 

1
5
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 L
yn

n
 B

ir
d
so

n
g
 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 G
L
O

B
A

L
 S

IC
A

V
 -

 
E

M
E

R
G

IN
G

 M
A

R
K

E
T

S
 

E
Q

U
IT

Y
 F

U
N

D
 

1
5
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 R
o
n
a
ld

o
 A

. 
D

a
 F

ro
ta

 N
o
g

u
e
u
ira

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 G
L
O

B
A

L
 S

IC
A

V
 -

 
JA

P
A

N
E

S
E

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 F

U
N

D
, 

L
U

X
E

 
1
5
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 L
yn

n
 B

ir
d
so

n
g
 

F
o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 G
L
O

B
A

L
 S

IC
A

V
 -

 
JA

P
A

N
E

S
E

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 F

U
N

D
, 

L
U

X
E

 
1
5
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 E

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 R
o
n
a
ld

o
 A

. 
D

a
 F

ro
ta

 N
o
g

u
e
u
ira

 
F

o
r 

N
o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

Page 97



  N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

0
5
2
1
4
4
4
5
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

4
3
9
7
8
6
2
8
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
A

b
st

a
in

 
0
.0

4
8
2
7
2
4
3
3
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
5
2
1
4
4
4
5
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
: 
K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
0
.0

2
3
3
3
7
5
3
8
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
9
3
6
1
0
8
7
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 R
o
b
 C

o
tt
o
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

7
5
9
0
0
0
2
6
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 P
a
u
l M

itc
h
e
ll 

F
o
r 

1
.2

1
8
5
2
8
8
4
8
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 D
e
b
b
ie

 H
e
w

itt
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
9
9
6
5
3
8
3
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 T
h
o
m

a
s 

C
h
a
m

b
e
rs

 
F

o
r 

0
.2

8
6
6
5
3
0
9
6
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 A
tu

l P
a
te

l 
F

o
r 

0
.0

0
5
2
1
4
4
4
5
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

8
.6

9
1
6
0
3
4
9
8
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

1
.8

7
1
2
2
9
5
9
8
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

5
0
0
8
4
1
6
3
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

4
.0

1
8
0
4
9
5
5
7
 

N
C

C
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
6
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

m
e
n
d
 e

xi
st

in
g
 lo

n
g
 t
e
rm

 in
ce

n
tiv

e
 p

la
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

0
9
9
6
5
3
8
3
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

1
.1

3
4
7
4
2
0
5
5
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
2
.9

3
3
7
1
0
7
7
3
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
2
.5

0
8
1
0
9
9
8
2
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 d

iv
id

e
n
d
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

2
5
9
2
4
9
5
5
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 P
B

 B
ru

ze
liu

s 
A

b
st

a
in

 
1
.3

5
7
1
4
7
4
1
4
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 L
M

 D
a
n
o
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.4

0
5
7
1
0
9
8
5
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 L
o
rd

 D
a
vi

e
s 

F
o
r 

0
.5

4
6
0
5
2
5
0
4
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 H
o
 K

w
o
n
P

in
g
 

F
o
r 

4
.4

7
0
9
2
1
9
4
4
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 B
D

 H
o
ld

e
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.7

2
6
2
0
4
8
7
3
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 D
r 

F
B

 H
u
m

e
r 

F
o
r 

0
.4

3
3
3
9
3
1
0
4
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 D
 M

a
h
la

n
 

F
o
r 

0
.3

8
4
8
6
1
0
9
5
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 I
 M

e
n
e
ze

s 
F

o
r 

0
.0

4
4
0
0
7
6
1
9
 

Page 98



  D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-e

le
ct

 P
G

 S
co

tt
 

F
o
r 

0
.3

2
3
6
8
1
6
5
1
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 N
S

 M
e
n
d
e
ls

o
h
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.3

2
5
9
5
0
6
6
9
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
E

le
ct

 A
JH

 S
te

w
a
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.3

2
2
9
7
9
6
5
9
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
: 
K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
0
.4

8
1
6
7
6
8
3
7
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

6
7
0
2
1
0
6
8
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

2
.1

4
8
5
7
6
8
7
6
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

1
.6

9
6
0
7
6
2
0
3
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

8
6
1
5
1
1
5
2
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 P

o
lit

ic
a
l D

o
n
a
tio

n
s 

O
p
p
o
se

 
2
.7

3
8
4
9
1
6
6
7
 

D
IA

G
E

O
 P

L
C

 
1
8
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 n

e
w

 lo
n
g

 t
e
rm

 in
ce

n
tiv

e
 p

la
n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
3
.1

4
3
3
8
2
4
9
7
 

C
T

R
IP

.C
O

M
 I

N
T

L
 L

T
D

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

m
e
n
d
 A

rt
ic

le
s:

 I
n
cr

e
a
se

 a
u
th

o
ri
se

d
 s

h
a
re

 c
a
p
ita

l. 
O

p
p
o
se

 
N

o
t 

D
is

cl
o
se

d
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
.4

2
6
8
8
0
0
5
4
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

1
.0

1
1
4
3
8
1
6
8
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.9

8
7
0
1
7
0
8
4
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 K
a
te

 R
o
ck

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

0
9
6
7
2
1
7
5
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 G
e
o
ff

 S
h
in

g
le

s 
O

p
p
o
se

 
4
.3

9
9
5
8
3
0
3
7
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 S
ir
 H

o
ss

e
in

 Y
a
ss

a
ie

 
F

o
r 

1
.8

4
0
1
9
9
4
9
9
 

Page 99



  IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 R
ic

h
a
rd

 S
m

ith
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

7
1
3
4
4
4
2
6
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 D
a
vi

d
 A

n
d
e
rs

o
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.5

3
0
6
6
3
9
8
1
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 G
ill

e
s 

D
e
lfa

ss
y 

A
b
st

a
in

 
0
.6

0
4
0
0
5
9
0
7
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 A
n
d
re

w
 H

e
a
th

 
A

b
st

a
in

 
0
.6

6
5
9
7
8
9
7
8
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 I
a
n
 P

e
a
rs

o
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

2
8
8
1
8
6
7
4
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
: 
K

P
M

G
 L

L
P

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
.2

6
9
7
6
4
4
8
5
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.0

1
7
0
6
2
2
4
8
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

1
6
.4

6
9
2
4
2
2
7
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

1
4
3
0
6
3
6
2
 

IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

u
th

o
ri
se

 S
h
ar

e
 R

e
p
u
rc

h
a
se

 
F

o
r 

0
.0

2
3
4
9
5
5
1
7
 

Page 100



  IM
A

G
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
T

E
C

H
N

O
L
O

G
IE

S
 G

R
O

U
P

 
P

L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

3
.3

4
5
8
4
7
6
1
6
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

0
.2

7
1
3
8
3
1
0
5
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

o
r 

3
4
.7

6
2
3
2
0
6
3
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 P

o
lic

y 
A

b
st

a
in

 
1
.7

8
6
7
0
5
5
8
4
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 e

le
ct

 M
r 

B
ru

n
o
 A

n
g

e
lic

i 
F

o
r 

0
.5

3
0
0
9
2
9
0
3
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 D
r 

S
u
sa

n
 F

od
e
n
 

F
o
r 

0
.1

9
3
8
3
1
2
5
4
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 D
r 

T
re

vo
r 

P
h
ill

ip
s 

F
o
r 

0
.5

2
3
9
3
4
2
0
9
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
T

o
 r

e
-e

le
ct

 D
r 

Jo
h
n
 B

ro
w

n
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
2
8
.4

0
7
6
3
9
5
2
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
R

e
-a

p
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
: 
D

e
lo

itt
e
 L

L
P

 
O

p
p
o
se

 
1
.9

9
4
0
7
8
5
8
8
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

llo
w

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
ito

rs
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

F
o
r 

5
.4

7
1
7
6
9
5
3
1
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
A

p
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 V

e
ct

u
ra

 G
ro

u
p
 p

lc
 2

0
1
4
 S

h
a
re

sa
ve

 S
ch

e
m

e
 F

o
r 

0
.3

8
0
5
2
6
3
3
1
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
w

ith
 p

re
-e

m
p
tio

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 
F

o
r 

0
.1

6
8
6
2
4
0
9
6
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
Is

su
e
 s

h
a
re

s 
fo

r 
ca

sh
 

O
p
p
o
se

 
4
.7

8
7
6
1
1
2
3
9
 

V
E

C
T

U
R

A
 G

R
O

U
P

 P
L
C

 
1
9
/0

9
/2

0
1
4
 A

G
M

 
M

e
e
tin

g
 n

o
tif

ic
a
tio

n
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
F

o
r 

2
.2

6
5
1
9
9
9
3
 

 U
n

it
e
d

 K
in

g
d

o
m

  
 L

a
w

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
 o

n
 F

id
u

c
ia

ry
 D

u
ty

  

R
e
p

o
rt

 c
la

ri
fi

e
s
 r

e
le

v
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
E

S
G

 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
n

 t
ru

s
te

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
  

T
h
e
 L

a
w

 C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 h

a
s 

re
le

a
se

d
 it

s 
lo

n
g
 a

w
a
ite

d
 T

h
e
 F

id
u
ci

a
ry

 D
u
tie

s 
o
f 

In
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

In
te

rm
e
d
ia

ri
e
s 

re
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
g

u
id

e
lin

e
s 

a
n
d
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
tio

n
s 

a
ro

u
n
d
 in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 
is

su
e
s.

 

T
a
ki

n
g

 a
 le

a
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 K

a
y 

R
e
vi

e
w

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 m
a
in

ta
in

s 
a
 f
o
cu

s 
o
n
 lo

n
g

e
r-

te
rm

 d
e
ci

si
o
n
 m

a
ki

n
g

 a
n
d
 d

e
fin

e
s 

va
ri
o
u
s 

fa
ct

o
rs

 t
ru

st
e
e
s 

m
a
y 

ta
ke

 
in

to
 a

cc
o
u
n
t 

in
 a

ss
e
ss

in
g
 b

o
th

 r
is

ks
 a

n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
s 

in
 in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 
d
e
ci

si
o
n
 m

a
ki

n
g

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 n
o
te

s 
tr

u
st

e
e
s 

sh
o
u
ld

 f
o
cu

s 
o
n
 in

ve
st

in
g

 f
o
r 

"r
e
a
lis

tic
" 

re
tu

rn
s 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

tt
e
m

p
tin

g
 t
o
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 s

h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

 r
e
su

lts
. 

 

Page 101



  In
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
tu

rn
o
ve

r 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
su

lta
n
ts

 p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 u

n
d
e
r 

sc
ru

tin
y 

in
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll 

re
p
o
rt

 b
u
t 
m

o
st

 a
tt
e
n
tio

n
 h

a
s 

ce
n
tr

e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
s 

vi
e
w

s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 in

te
ra

ct
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 E

S
G

 a
n
d
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b
ili

ty
 c

o
n
si

d
e
ra

tio
n
s 

a
n
d
 f

id
u
ci

a
ry

 d
u
ty

 a
s 

e
xp

re
ss

e
d
 in

 t
h
e
 G

u
id

a
n
ce

 f
o
r 

P
e
n
si

o
n
 F

u
n
d
 T

ru
st

e
e
s.

  
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 h

a
s 

b
a
lk

e
d
 a

t 
m

a
ki

n
g
 a

n
 e

xp
lic

it 
re

co
m

m
e

n
d
a
tio

n
 f
o
r 

ch
a
n
g

e
 in

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

la
w

, 
h
a
n
d
in

g
 o

ff
 t
o
 g

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 
a
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
tio

n
 

to
 r

e
vi

e
w

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
O

cc
u
p
a
tio

n
a
l P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

S
ch

e
m

e
s 

R
e
g

u
la

tio
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

a
ro

u
n
d
 s

o
ci

a
l, 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l o
r 

e
th

ic
a

l c
o
n
si

d
e
ra

tio
n
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

d
iff

e
re

n
ce

s 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l a

n
d
 n

o
n

-f
in

a
n
ci

a
l f

a
ct

o
rs

. 
 

H
o
w

e
ve

r,
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 h

a
s 

e
xp

re
ss

e
d
 it

s 
vi

e
w

s 
in

 r
e
a
so

n
a
b
ly

 c
le

a
r 

la
n
g

u
a
g

e
 o

n
 m

a
te

ri
a
lit

y 
o
f 

fin
a
n
ci

a
l c

o
n
si

d
e
ra

tio
n
s 

th
a
t 

a
 t
ru

st
e
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
ta

ke
 a

cc
o
u
n
t 
in

 in
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

d
e
ci

si
o
n
s:

  
 

 ‘W
h
e
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 e

q
u
it
ie

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
o
n
g

-t
e
rm

, 
th

e
 r

is
ks

 w
ill

 in
cl

u
d
e
 r

is
ks

 t
o
 t

h
e
 lo

n
g

-t
e
rm

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
’s

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 

m
a
y
 a

ri
s
e
 f
ro

m
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
fa

c
to

rs
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
o
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
d
e
g
ra

d
a
ti
o
n
, 

o
r 

th
e
 r

is
k
s
 t

o
 a

 c
o
m

p
a
n
y
’s

 r
e
p
u
ta

tio
n
 a

ri
si

n
g
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 w

a
y 

it 
tr

e
a
ts

 it
s 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

, 
su

p
p
lie

rs
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s.

’ 

‘W
h
e
re

 p
o
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

th
ic

s
 r

a
is

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

a
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
’s

 l
o
n
g

-t
e
rm

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
, 

“w
e
 w

o
u

ld
 c

la
s
s
if
y
 t
h
e
m

 a
s
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
fa

c
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 r

is
k
.’
 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

th
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
lit

y 
o
f 
is

su
e
s 

a
 T

ru
st

e
e
 m

a
y 

ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

o
u
n
t:
  

 ‘A
n
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
fa

c
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

is
k
s
 t
o
 a

 c
o
m

p
a
n
y
’s

 l
o
n
g

-t
e
rm

 s
u
st

a
in

a
b
ili

ty
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l,
 s

o
c
ia

l 
o
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 f
a
c
to

rs
 (

o
ft

e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 a

s
 “

E
S

G
” 

fa
c
to

rs
).

’ 
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
cl

u
si

o
n
 is

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 is
 n

o
 im

p
e
d
im

e
n
t 
to

 t
ru

st
e
e
s 

ta
ki

n
g
 a

cc
o
u
nt

 o
f 
e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l, 
so

ci
a
l o

r 
g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 f
a

ct
o
rs

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
y 

a
re

, 
o
r 

m
a
y 

b
e
, 
fin

a
n
ci

a
lly

 m
a
te

ri
a
l. 

 

In
 a

 b
o
o
st

 t
o
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

a
d
vo

ca
cy

 c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s,

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s 

a
ls

o
 o

u
tli

n
e
d
 a

 t
w

o
 s

ta
g

e
 t

e
st

 f
o
r 

n
o
n
 f

in
a
n
ci

a
l f

a
ct

o
rs

 t
h

a
t 
m

a
y 

b
e
 t

a
ke

n
 in

to
 

a
cc

o
u
n
t 

b
y 

T
ru

st
e
e
s,

 in
cl

u
d
in

g
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

vi
e

w
s 

o
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
in

ve
st

m
e
n
ts

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
tio

n
s 

e
n
co

m
p
a
ss

 a
d
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 g
u
id

a
n
ce

 in
to

 
th

e
 P

e
n
si

o
n
s 

R
e
g

u
la

to
r 

T
ru

st
e

e
 T

o
o
lk

it 
a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
tia

lly
 lo

n
g

e
r-

te
rm

 in
cl

u
si

o
n
 in

 t
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
ct

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 b

ro
a
d
ly

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
d
 w

ith
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 P

R
I 

a
n
d
 N

A
P

F
 is

su
in

g
 p

o
si

tiv
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

. 

 

Page 102



  S
S

E
 I

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
 G

a
in

s
 T

o
e
h

o
ld

 i
n

 A
s
ia

 

T
h

a
i 

E
x
c
h

a
n

g
e
 J

o
in

s
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 S

to
c
k
 E

x
c
h

a
n

g
e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 w
it

h
 c

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

t 
to

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 T

h
e
 S

to
ck

 E
xc

h
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
T

h
a
ila

n
d
 (

S
E

T
) 

h
a
s 

jo
in

e
d

 1
2
 o

th
e
r 

le
a
d
in

g
 e

xc
h
a
n
g

e
s 

in
 s

ig
n
in

g
 u

p
 t
o
 t

h
e
 S

S
E

 I
n
iti

a
tiv

e
. 
 

 ‘T
o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 A

S
E

A
N

 j
o
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 S

S
E

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
s
 o

u
r 

re
g

io
n
a
l 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 S

E
T

 in
te

rn
a
tio

n
a
l r

e
co

g
n
iti

o
n
. 

S
E

T
 C

h
a
ir
 S

a
th

it 
L
im

p
o
n
g

p
a
n
 s

a
id

, 
‘T

h
is

 f
o
llo

w
s
 S

E
T

’s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
m

a
rk

a
b
le

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
g

io
n
, 

p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 b

y
 

a
ch

ie
vi

n
g

 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 A

S
E

A
N

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 s
co

re
 f
o
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 in
 a

 r
o
w

 (
2
0
1
3

-2
0
1
4
),

 b
e
in

g
 A

s
ia

’s
 t

o
p
 s

c
o
re

 o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 –

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 O

b
se

rv
a
n
ce

 o
f 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s 
a
n
d
 C

o
d
e
s,

 a
s 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 W

o
rl
d
 B

a
nk

. W
e
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
 t

h
is

 in
iti

a
tiv

e
 a

s 
it 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 u

s 
to

 
s
h
a
re

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

e
x
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
.’
 

 S
E

T
 P

re
si

d
e
n
t 

K
e
sa

ra
 M

a
n
ch

u
sr

e
e
 s

a
id

 t
h
a
t 

‘T
h
e
 T

h
a
i 
b
o
u
rs

e
 h

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
a
im

in
g
 t

o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 a

ll 
d
im

e
n
si

o
n
s 

o
f 
q

u
a
lit

y 
to

w
a
rd

s 
su

st
a
in

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 T

h
a
i c

a
p
ita

l m
a
rk

e
t,
 e

co
n
o
m

y,
 s

o
ci

e
ty

, 
a
n
d
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t.
 I
t 

w
o

u
ld

 f
o
cu

s 
o
n

 f
iv

e
 k

e
y 

a
re

a
s,

 
n
a
m

e
ly

 m
a
rk

e
t 

va
lu

e
, 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

 o
p
e
ra

tio
n
s,

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s,

 s
o
ci

e
ty

, 
a
n
d
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t.
 S

E
T

 w
o
u
ld

 s
o
o
n
 e

st
a
b
lis

h
 a

 w
o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 t

o
 s

u
b
st

a
n
tia

lly
 

co
n
st

ru
ct

 s
h
o
rt

, 
m

e
d
iu

m
 a

n
d
 lo

n
g

-t
e
rm

 p
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 f

iv
e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s
.’
 

 T
h
e
 a

n
n
o
u
n
ce

m
e
n
t 
fo

llo
w

s 
th

e
 C

o
lu

m
b
ia

n
 S

e
cu

ri
tie

s 
E

xc
h

a
n
g

e
 (

B
V

C
) 

a
n
n
o
u
n
ce

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

Ju
ly

 2
0
1
4
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 J

u
n
e
 L

S
E

 G
ro

u
p
 d

e
ci

si
o
n
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

w
ith

 t
h
e
 S

S
E

. 
 

 T
h
e
 T

h
a
i d

e
ci

si
o
n
 a

d
d
s 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

m
o
m

e
n
tu

m
 f
o
r 

th
e
 S

S
E

 I
n
iti

a
tiv

e
, 

in
iti

a
lly

 la
u
n
ch

e
d
 in

 2
0
0
9
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
lly

 b
u
ilt

 e
n
g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

ith
 1

2
 

st
o
ck

 e
xc

h
a
n
g

e
s 

w
o
rl
d

w
id

e
 a

n
d
 is

 b
a
ck

e
d
 b

y 
a
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
g

lo
b
a
l s

u
st

a
in

a
b
ili

ty
 h

e
a
vy

w
e
ig

h
ts

 in
cl

u
d
in

g
 U

N
C

T
A

D
, 
th

e
 U

N
 F

in
a
n
ce

 I
n
iti

a
tiv

e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 P

ri
n
ci

p
le

s 
fo

r 
R

e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 I
n
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

(P
R

I)
. 

 J
a
p

a
n

  

T
h

ir
d

 A
rr

o
w

 S
tr

ik
e
s
 

A
b

e
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e
s
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 c

o
d

e
 

T
h
e
 J

a
p
a
n
e
se

 g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 
fo

rm
a
lly

 a
n
n
o
u
n
ce

d
 p

la
n
s 

to
 la

u
n

ch
 a

 n
e
w

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 c
o
d
e
 a

s 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

its
 R

e
vi

ta
lis

a
tio

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y.

 

T
h
e
 a

n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 l
iv

e
 o

n
 t

e
le

v
is

io
n
 a

s
  

p
a
rt

 o
f 

P
ri
m

e
 M

in
is

te
r 

S
h
in

z
o
 A

b
e
’s

 ‘
th

ir
d
 a

rr
o
w

’ 
o
f 

re
fo

rm
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 J

a
p
a
n
e
se

 
e
co

n
o
m

y 
th

ro
u
g

h
 a

 s
e
ri
es

 o
f 

m
e
a
su

re
s 

to
 s

tim
u
la

te
 g

ro
w

th
, 
sh

a
ke

 u
p
 t

h
e
 m

o
ri
b
u
n
d
 e

co
n
o
m

y 
a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
 a

 s
tu

lti
fie

d
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 c
u
ltu

re
. 
 (

S
e
e
 P

IR
C

 
A

le
rt

s 
2
4
/0

7
 a

n
d
 2

2
/0

1
) 

Page 103



  T
h
e
 c

o
d
e
 is

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 T

o
ky

o
 S

to
ck

 E
xc

h
a
n
g

e
 a

n
d
 is

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d
 t

o
 t

a
ke

 e
ff

e
ct

 n
e
xt

 y
e
a
r.

 I
n
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

ve
in

 t
o
 m

a
n
y 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 

g
o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
s 

w
o
rl
d
w

id
e
, 

it 
w

ill
 o

p
e
ra

te
 o

n
 a

 'c
o
m

p
ly

 o
r 

e
xp

la
in

' b
a
si

s.
 C

o
u
p
le

d
 w

ith
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

ly
 in

tr
o
d
u
ce

d
 S

te
w

a
rd

sh
ip

 C
o
d
e
 it

 m
a
y 

h
e
lp

 
a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h
e
 im

p
ro

ve
d
 g

o
ve

rn
a
n
ce

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s 
th

a
t 
b
o
th

 A
b
e 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
y 

fo
re

ig
n
 in

ve
st

o
rs

 a
re

 lo
o
ki

n
g

 f
o
r.

  

"W
e
 w

a
n
t 
to

 e
st

a
b
lis

h
 t
h
is

 c
o
d
e
 b

e
ca

u
se

 w
e
 b

e
lie

ve
 le

a
n
, 

e
n
e
rg

e
tic

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lth

y 
co

m
p
a
n
ie

s 
a
re

 g
o
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
st

o
re

 J
a
p
a

n
's

 c
o
m

p
e
tit

iv
e
n
e
ss

,"
 s

a
id

 
Y

a
su

h
is

a
 S

h
io

za
ki

, 
a
 L

ib
e
ra

l D
e
m

o
cr

a
t 
P

a
rt

y 
la

w
m

a
ke

r.
  

O
n
e
 f
o
cu

s 
is

 o
n
 in

cr
e
a
si

n
g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
o
n
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e
 d

ir
e
ct

o
rs

 in
 lo

ca
l c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s.
 H

is
to

ri
ca

lly
, 
Ja

p
a
n
e
se

 b
o
a
rd

s 
h
a
ve

 h
a
d
 f

e
w

 if
 a

n
y 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

d
ir
e
ct

o
rs

 a
n
d
 p

o
o
r 

le
ve

ls
 s

h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
r 

e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
. 

H
o
w

e
ve

r,
 t

h
is

 h
a
s 

n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

e
t 

p
o
si

tiv
e
ly

 b
y 

a
ll.

 T
h
e
 p

e
a
k 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

 lo
b
b
y 

K
e
id

a
n
re

n
, 
h
a
s 

o
p
p
o
se

d
 t

h
e
 id

e
a
 w

ith
 m

a
n
a
g

in
g

 d
ir
e
ct

o
r,

 Y
a
su

h
is

a
 

A
b
e
 s

ta
tin

g
 "

T
h
e
re

 is
 a

b
so

lu
te

ly
 n

o
 b

a
si

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 a

rg
u
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
co

m
p
a
n
ie

s 
w

ith
 o

u
ts

id
e
 d

ire
ct

o
rs

 p
e
rf

o
rm

 b
e
tt

e
r.

" 

   ©
 P

IR
C

 L
td

 2
0
1
4
 

 In
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 is

 b
e
lie

ve
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
rr

e
ct

 b
u
t 
ca

n
n
o
t 
b
e
 g

u
a
ra

n
te

e
d
. 
O

p
in

io
n
s 

a
n
d
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
tio

n
s 

co
n
st

itu
te

 o
u
r 

ju
d
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
s 

o
f 

th
is

 d
a
te

 a
n
d
 

a
re

 s
u
b
je

ct
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 w

ith
o
u
t 

n
o
tic

e
. 
T

h
e
 d

o
cu

m
e
n
t 

is
 n

o
t 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 a

s 
a
n
 o

ff
e
r,

 s
o
lic

ita
tio

n
 o

r 
a
d
vi

ce
 t

o
 b

u
y 

o
r 

se
ll 

se
cu

ri
tie

s.
 C

lie
n
ts

 o
f 

P
e
n
si

o
n
s 

&
 I

n
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
R

e
se

a
rc

h
 C

o
n
su

lta
n
ts

 L
td

 m
a
y 

h
a
ve

 a
 p

o
si

tio
n
 o

r 
e
n
g

a
g

e
 in

 t
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 in

 a
n
y 

o
f 

th
e
 s

e
cu

ri
tie

s 
m

e
n
tio

n
e

d
. 

  

Page 104



   

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Page 107

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 12 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 12 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 119

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Minute of the Special Meeting of the Pensions Panel held on 30th June 2014 - For Approval
	3b Minute of the Meeting of the Pensions Panel held on 8th September 2014 - For Approval
	5 Draft Minute of the Meeting of the Joint Investment Advisory Committee held on 28th & 29th August 2014 - For Information
	6 Report on the 2013/14 Audit of North East Scotland Pension Fund - Report by the External Auditor
	7 New Local Government Pensions Scheme (Scotland) (2015)
	Item 7 - Appendix i
	Item 7 - Appendix ii
	Item 7 - Appendix iii
	Item 7 - Appendix iv

	8 Corporate Governance Report
	Item 8 - Appendix i
	Item 8 - Appendix ii

	9 Governance Report
	Item 9 - Appendix i

	10 Fund Performance Report

